
 

 
 
 
 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, April 22, 2019 

Regular Meeting - 7:00 P.M. 
 

Union Sanitary District 
Administration Building 

5072 Benson Road 
Union City, CA 94587 

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
 
 
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
 
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 
 

1. Call to Order.   
 

 

2. Salute to the Flag. 
  

 

3. Roll Call. 
 

 

Motion 4. Approve Minutes of the Regular Meeting of April 8, 2019. 
 

 

Information 5.  March 2019 Monthly Operations Report (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance and 
Legal/Community Affairs Committees). 
 

 

 6. Written Communications. 
 

 

7. Oral Communications. 
 

The public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received 
at the Union Sanitary District office at least one working day prior to the meeting).  This portion of the agenda is where a member of the public may address 
and ask questions of the Board relating to any matter within the Board’s jurisdiction that is not on the agenda.  If the subject relates to an agenda item, the 
speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individuals, with a maximum of 30 
minutes per subject.  Speaker’s cards will be available in the Boardroom and are to be completed prior to discussion. 

 

 
 

 

Motion 8. Authorize Staff to Approve CSRMA Invoice for Settlement and Expenses Associated 
with Fernando Trujillo and Maria Del Carmen Bibiano v. USD, Case No. 1781769683 
(to be reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee). 
 

 

Motion 9. Reject All Bids Received for the Newark Pump Station Cathodic Protection System 
Upgrade Project and Authorize Staff to Re-bid the Project (to be reviewed by the 
Engineering and Information Technology Committee). 
 

 

Motion 10. Review and Consider Approval of Policy No. 3210, Boardmember Use of E-mail for 
District Business (to be reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee). 
 

 

Direction 11. Receive Information and Provide Direction Regarding Union Sanitary District Ad-Hoc 
Recommendations for East Bay Dischargers Authority JPA Negotiations. 
 

 

Direction 12. Receive Information and Provide Direction Regarding Policy No. 2040, Exceptions to 
Ordinance Fees (to be reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee). 
 

 

1 of 112



Information 13. Union Sanitary District to Purchase Natural Gas from the California Department of 
General Services (DGS) (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee). 
 

 

Information 14. Legislative Update on Regional Issues of Interest to the Board (to be reviewed by the 
Legislative Committee). 
 

 

Information 15. Cal-Card Quarterly Activity Report (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance 
Committee). 
 

 

Information 16. Boardmember Expenses, Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2019 (to be reviewed by the Budget 
& Finance Committee). 
 

 

Information 17. National Association of Clean Water Agencies (NACWA) 2019 Winter Conference. 
 

 

Information 18. Check Register. 
 

 

Information 19. Committee Meeting Reports. (No Board action is taken at Committee meetings):  
a. Budget & Finance Committee – Wednesday, April 17, 2019, at 10:00 a.m. 

• Director Kite and Director Toy 
b. Engineering and Information Technology Committee – Thursday, April 18, 2019, at 12:30 p.m. 

• Director Handley and Director Lathi 
c. Legal/Community Affairs Committee – Friday, April 19, 2019, at 10:30 a.m. 

• Director Fernandez and Director Handley 
d. Legislative Committee – Friday, April 19, 2019, at 11:00 a.m. 

• Director Fernandez and Director Lathi 
e. Audit Committee – will not meet. 
f. Personnel Committee – will not meet. 
 

 

Information  20.  General Manager’s Report. (Information on recent issues of interest to the Board). 
 

 

 21.   Other Business: 
a. Comments and questions. Directors can share information relating to District 

business and are welcome to request information from staff. 
b. Scheduling matters for future consideration.  
 
 

 

22. Adjournment – The Board will adjourn to a Combined Board Workshop in the 
Boardroom on Tuesday, April 23, 2019, at 6:00 p.m. 
 

 

23. Adjournment – The Board will then adjourn to the Plant Master Plan #3 Board 
Workshop in the Boardroom on Wednesday, May 8, 2019, at 5:30 p.m. 
 

 

24. Adjournment – The Board will then adjourn to the next Regular Meeting in the 
Boardroom on Monday, May 13, 2019, at 7:00 p.m. 
 

The Public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received at the Union Sanitary 
District at least one working day prior to the meeting). 
If the subject relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  If the subject is within the Board’s jurisdiction but not on the agenda, 
the speaker will be heard at the time “Oral Communications” is calendared.  Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  
Speaker’s cards will be available in the Boardroom and are to be completed prior to discussion of the agenda item. 

The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at the meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510) 
477-7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting.  THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND 

2 of 112



REVISED 

 

 

 
 

 

BUDGET & FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING  

Committee Members:  Director Kite and Director Toy 

 

AGENDA 

Wednesday, April 17, 2019 

10:00 A.M. 

 

Mission Alvarado Conference Room 

5072 Benson Road 

Union City, CA 94587 
 

Directors 

Manny Fernandez 

Tom Handley 

Pat Kite 

Anjali Lathi 

Jennifer Toy 

 

 

Officers 

Paul R. Eldredge 

General Manager/ 

District Engineer 

 

Karen W. Murphy 

Attorney 

 
1.    Call to Order 

 

 

2.  Roll Call 
 

 

3.  Public Comment 
 

 

4.  Items to be reviewed for the Regular Board meeting of April 22, 2019: 

 March 2019 Monthly Operations Report – Financial Reports 

 Union  Sanitary  District  to  Purchase  Natural  Gas  from  the  California  Department  of 
General Services 

 Cal‐Card Quarterly Activity Report 

 Boardmember Expenses, Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2019 
 

 

5.  Adjournment 
 

 

Items reviewed at committee meetings will be included in the agenda packet for the upcoming Board meeting.  No action will be taken at committee meetings. 

 

The Public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received at the Union Sanitary 

District at least one working day prior to the meeting). 

 

If the subject relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  If the subject is within the Board’s jurisdiction but not on the agenda, 

the speaker will be heard at the time “Public Comment”  is calendared.   Oral comments are  limited to three minutes per  individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  

Speaker’s cards will be available and are to be completed prior to discussion of the agenda item. 

 
The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at the meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510) 
477‐7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND 

3 of 112



REVISED 

ENGINEERING AND INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

COMMITTEE MEETING  

Committee Members:  Director Handley and Director Lathi 

AGENDA 

Thursday, April 18, 2019 

12:30 P.M. 

Alvarado Conference Room 

5072 Benson Road 

Union City, CA 94587 

Directors 

Manny Fernandez 

Tom Handley 

Pat Kite 

Anjali Lathi 

Jennifer Toy 

Officers 

Paul R. Eldredge 

General Manager/ 

District Engineer 

Karen W. Murphy 

Attorney 

THIS MEETING WILL BE TELECONFERENCED WITH DIRECTOR LATHI FROM THE GUEST PARKING 
AREA ON OCASO CAMINO, WEST OF AND CLOSEST TO THE INTERSECTION OF PASEO PADRE 

PARKWAY IN FREMONT, CALIFORNIA.   
THE TELECONFERENCE LOCATION SHALL BE ACCESSIBLE TO THE PUBLIC. 

1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call

3. Public Comment

4. Items to be reviewed for the Regular Board meeting of April 22, 2019:

 Reject  All  Bids  Received  for  the  Newark  Pump  Station  Cathodic  Protection  System
Upgrade Project and Authorize Staff to Re‐bid the Project

5. Adjournment

Items reviewed at committee meetings will be included in the agenda packet for the upcoming Board meeting.  No action will be taken at committee meetings. 

The Public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received at the Union Sanitary 

District at least one working day prior to the meeting). 

If the subject relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  If the subject is within the Board’s jurisdiction but not on the agenda, 

the speaker will be heard at the time “Public Comment”  is calendared.   Oral comments are  limited to three minutes per  individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  

Speaker’s cards will be available and are to be completed prior to discussion of the agenda item. 

The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at the meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510) 
477‐7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND 

4 of 112



 

 

 

 
 

 

LEGAL/COMMUNITY AFFAIRS COMMITTEE MEETING  

Committee Members:  Director Fernandez and Director Handley 

 

AGENDA 

Friday, April 19, 2019 

10:30 A.M. 

 

Alvarado Conference Room 

5072 Benson Road 

Union City, CA 94587 
 

Directors 

Manny Fernandez 

Tom Handley 

Pat Kite 

Anjali Lathi 

Jennifer Toy 

 

 

Officers 

Paul R. Eldredge 

General Manager/ 

District Engineer 

 

Karen W. Murphy 

Attorney 

 
1.    Call to Order 

 

 

2.  Roll Call 
 

 

3.  Public Comment 
 

 

4.  Items to be reviewed for the Regular Board meeting of April 22, 2019: 

 March 2019 Monthly Operations Report – Odor and Work Group Reports 

 Authorize Staff to Approve CSRMA Invoice for Settlement and Expenses Associated with 
Fernando Trujillo and Maria Del Carmen Bibiano v. USD, Case No. 1781769683 

 Review and Consider Approval of Policy No. 3210, Boardmember Use of E‐mail for District 
Business 

 Review and Provide Direction Regarding Policy No. 2040, Exceptions to Ordinance Fees 
 

 

5.  Adjournment 
 

 

Items reviewed at committee meetings will be included in the agenda packet for the upcoming Board meeting.  No action will be taken at committee meetings. 

 

The Public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received at the Union Sanitary 

District at least one working day prior to the meeting). 

 

If the subject relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  If the subject is within the Board’s jurisdiction but not on the agenda, 

the speaker will be heard at the time “Public Comment”  is calendared.   Oral comments are  limited to three minutes per  individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  

Speaker’s cards will be available and are to be completed prior to discussion of the agenda item. 

 
The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at the meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510) 
477‐7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND 

5 of 112



 

 

 

 
 

 

LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE MEETING  

Committee Members:  Director Fernandez and Director Lathi 

 

AGENDA 

Friday, April 19, 2019 

11:00 A.M. 

 

Alvarado Conference Room 

5072 Benson Road 

Union City, CA 94587 
 

Directors 

Manny Fernandez 

Tom Handley 

Pat Kite 

Anjali Lathi 

Jennifer Toy 

 

 

Officers 

Paul R. Eldredge 

General Manager/ 

District Engineer 

 

Karen W. Murphy 

Attorney 

 
1.    Call to Order 

 

 

2.  Roll Call 
 

 

3.  Public Comment 
 

 

4.  Items to be reviewed for the Regular Board meeting of April 22, 2019: 

 Legislative Update on Regional Issues of Interest to the Board 
 

 

5.  Adjournment 
 

 

Items reviewed at committee meetings will be included in the agenda packet for the upcoming Board meeting.  No action will be taken at committee meetings. 

 

The Public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received at the Union Sanitary 

District at least one working day prior to the meeting). 

 

If the subject relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  If the subject is within the Board’s jurisdiction but not on the agenda, 

the speaker will be heard at the time “Public Comment”  is calendared.   Oral comments are  limited to three minutes per  individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  

Speaker’s cards will be available and are to be completed prior to discussion of the agenda item. 

 
The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at the meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510) 
477‐7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND 

6 of 112



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

April 8, 2019 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
President Lathi called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
SALUTE TO THE FLAG 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PRESENT: Anjali Lathi, President 

Jennifer Toy, Secretary  
Tom Handley, Director 
Pat Kite, Director  

 
ABSENT: Manny Fernandez, Vice President 
 
STAFF: Paul Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 

Karen Murphy, District Counsel  
  Armando Lopez, Treatment and Disposal Services Manager 

Sami Ghossain, Technical Services Manager 
Robert Simonich, Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction Manager 
James Schofield, Collection Services Manager 
Michael Dunning, Environmental Compliance Team Coach 
Regina McEvoy, Executive Assistant to the General Manager/Board Clerk 

 
VISITORS:   Roelle Balan, Tri-City Voice Newspaper 
   
 
APPROVE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 25, 2019 
 
It was moved by Director Handley, seconded by Director Kite, to Approve the Minutes of the 
Regular Meeting of March 25, 2019.  Motion carried with the following vote: 
 

AYES:  Handley, Kite, Lathi, Toy 
NOES:  None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Fernandez 

 
WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS 
 
There were no written communications. 
 
 
 

7 of 112



ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
 
There were no oral communications. 
 
CONSIDER A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT A SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT FOR 
TRACT 7927 – DECOTO CROSSING, LOCATED NEAR DECOTO ROAD AND PASEO 
PADRE PARKWAY IN THE CITY OF FREMONT 
 
This item was reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee.  Technical Services 
Manager Ghossain stated Grupe Decoto Crossing, LLC, will construct 10 single-family 
residences for Tract 7927, located at the corner of Decoto Road and Paseo Padre 
Parkway in the City of Fremont.  Sexton Common has been designated a private street 
due to the City of Fremont’s dimensions and structure setback requirements for public 
streets.  Grupe Decoto Crossing, LLC, has constructed the new sewer main and granted 
the District a sanitary sewer easement to provide for access, maintenance, and service 
of the new sewer main in the private roadway.  Staff recommended the Board consider a 
resolution to accept a sanitary sewer easement for Tract 7927 – Decoto Crossing, located 
near the corner of Decoto Road and Paseo Padre Parkway in the City of Fremont. 
 
It was moved by Secretary Toy, seconded by Director Handley, to Adopt Resolution       
No. 2857 to Accept a Sanitary Sewer Easement for Tract 7927 – Decoto Crossing, 
Located Near Decoto Road and Paseo Padre Parkway in the City of Fremont, California.  
Motion carried with the following vote: 
 

AYES:  Handley, Kite, Lathi, Toy 
NOES:  None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Fernandez 

 
CONSIDER A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT THREE SANITARY SEWER EASEMENTS 
FOR TRACTS 8228 AND 8288 – PATTERSON RANCH PHASES 2 AND 3, LOCATED 
NEAR ARDENWOOD BOULEVARD AND PASEO PADRE PARKWAY IN THE CITY 
OF FREMONT 
 
This item was reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee.  Technical Services 
Manager Ghossain stated Fremont Pat Ranch, LLC, will construct 208 single-family 
residences for Tract 8228 and 66 single-family residences for Tract 8288, located near 
Ardenwood Boulevard and Paseo Padre Parkway in the City of Fremont.  Sanitary sewer 
service for Tract 8228 will be provided by new sewer mains in the development’s public 
roadways and in Parcel B, which discharges to an existing trunk sewer in Ardenwood 
Boulevard.  Parcel B has been designated a Public Utility Easement/Storm Drain 
Easement on the recorded tract map.  Fremont Pat Ranch, LLC, constructed the new 
sewer mains and granted the District a sanitary sewer easement in Parcel B to provide 
for access, maintenance, and service of the new sewer main across the parcel.  Sanitary 
sewer service for Tract 8288 will be provided by new sewer mains in the development’s 
public roadways and discharge to an existing main in Bardolph Circle.  The sewer main 
that connects Tract 8288 sewers to the sewer in Bardolph Circle passes through Parcel 
B of the tract, a Union Pacific Railroad (UPRR) right-of-way, and Parcel A that is owned 

8 of 112



by the City of Fremont.  Fremont Pat Ranch, LLC, constructed the new sewer mains and 
granted the District a 20-foot wide sanitary sewer easement in Parcel B.  The City of 
Fremont has granted the District a 20-foot wide sanitary sewer easement in Parcel A.  
The District previously accepted a UPRR Pipeline Crossing Agreement on April 10, 2017.  
Staff recommended the Board consider a resolution to accept three sanitary sewer 
easements for Tract 8228 and 8828 – Patterson Ranch Phases 2 and 3, located near 
Ardenwood Boulevard and Paseo Padre Parkway in the City of Fremont. 
 
It was moved by Director Kite, seconded by Director Handley, to Adopt Resolution          
No. 2858 to Accept Three Sanitary Sewer Easements for Tracts 8228 and 8288 – 
Patterson Ranch Phases 2 and 3, Located Near Ardenwood Boulevard and Paseo Padre 
Parkway in the City of Fremont, California.  Motion carried with the following vote: 
 

AYES:  Handley, Kite, Lathi, Toy 
NOES:  None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Fernandez 

 
REVIEW PROPOSED BOARD REPORT TEMPLATE AND PROVIDE DIRECTION 
 
Executive Assistant to the General Manager/Board Clerk McEvoy presented a template 
that illustrated proposed changes to Board reports.   
 
The Board directed staff to proceed with the proposed Board item report template. 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS: 
 
Earth Day 2019 
This item was reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee.  Environmental 
Compliance Team Coach Dunning stated the District’s Environmental Compliance team 
will participate in the Earth Day event hosted by the City of Fremont and Washington 
Hospital on Saturday, April 20, 2019.  The event will be held at Washington Hospital’s 
Conrad E. Anderson, M.D. Auditorium in Fremont.  Environmental Compliance staff will 
share information with the public related to pollution prevention, proper disposal of 
mercury-containing devices and unused medications, and will also distribute various 
handouts.  The District’s advertisement for the event will be printed in the April 16, 2019, 
issue of the Tri-City Voice. 
 
Certificates of Merit to Union Sanitary District’s Class I Permitted Industries 
This item was reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee.  Environmental 
Compliance Team Coach Dunning stated the Certificates of Merit presentation is an 
annual event held to recognize industries that have exceeded the requirements of their 
wastewater discharge permits during the prior calendar year.  The District invited 28 
Significant Industrial Users with Class I Wastewater Discharge Permits to receive 
Certificates of Merit at the ceremony to be held at the District on May 2, 2019. 
 
 
 

9 of 112



Report on the East Bay Dischargers Authority (EBDA) Meeting of March 21, 2019 
Director Handley provided an overview of the EBDA meeting minutes included in the 
Board meeting packet. 
 
Check Register 
Staff responded to Boardmember questions regarding the Check Register. 
 
COMMITTEE MEETING REPORTS: 
 
The Legal/Community Affairs Committee meeting was canceled, and individual briefings 
were held with Boardmembers. 
 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT: 
General Manager Eldredge reported the following: 

• The District received a flyer from an auditing firm; copies of the flyer were made 
available to the Board. 

• General Manager Eldredge stated Incumbent Ayn Wieskamp will seek re-
nomination to serve as the Special District Member on the Alameda Local Agency 
Formation Commission (LAFCO).  

 
OTHER BUSINESS: 
There was no other business 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:22 p.m. to the next Regular Meeting in the Boardroom 
on Monday, April 22, 2019, at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
SUBMITTED:     ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________   _________________________ 
REGINA McEVOY     JENNIFER TOY 
BOARD CLERK     SECRETARY 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
ANJALI LATHI 
PRESIDENT 

 
 

Adopted this 22nd day of April 2019 

10 of 112



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
APRIL 22, 2019 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA ITEM # 5 

 
TITLE: Monthly Operations Report for March 2019 (This is an Information Item)  
 
SUBMITTED: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
   
 
Recommendation 
 
Information only. 
 
Previous Board Action 
 
None 
 
Background 
 
Attached are Monthly Operations Reports for March 2019.  Staff is available to answer 
questions regarding information contained in the report. 
 
Work Group Managers 
 
General Manager/Administration   Paul Eldredge  GM   
Collection Services     James Schofield CS   
Technical Support     Sami Ghossain  TS   
Treatment and Disposal Services   Armando Lopez  T&D  
Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction  Robert Simonich FMC 
 
ODOR COMPLAINTS:   
During the month of March 2019, there was one odor complaint received by the Collection 
System.   

11 of 112



SAFETY: 
• The employee with the strained back is back to work at full duty.  An investigation was 

completed to try and prevent future injuries 

• A Vactor truck accidentally hit a parked car.  No injuries and no damage to the District 
vehicle.  This matter is currently being investigated. 

• The annual respirator fit tests and hearing tests were completed.  

• We experienced a few unusual security incidents that highlighted elements of the 
facility security. The Security Taskforce has recommended some improvements and are 
reviewing additional concerns. 

 
 
STAFFING & PERSONNEL:   
 
Completed Recruitments Resulting in Promotions: 

• Collection Services Trainer (replacement for Tom Herlihy – retirement) – Kevin Coffee – 
Promotion (effective 3/25/19) 

 
Other Completed Recruitments:  

• Collection System Worker I (replacement for Rick Lebon – promotion) – Damien Hogue 
– Date of Hire 3/4/19. 

• Environmental Compliance Inspector I/II (replacement for Jason Yeates – promotion) – 
Michael Lothian – Date of Hire 3/18/19. 

 
Recruitments Opened: 

• CSW I (replacement for Kevin Coffee – promotion) 
 

Continuing Recruitments:  
• Mechanic I/II (replacement for Mat Grabowski – retirement) 

 
Separations: 

• Mat Grabowski – retirement 3/11/19 
 
Other Accomplishments: 

• Leadership School session on Time and Flow management held. 
• Human Resources Manager and Analyst attend CalGovHR Conference. 
• Human Resources Analyst and Administrative Specialist attended Alliant Benefits 

Symposium. 
 

 
 
 

12 of 112



G.M. ACTIVITIES:  For the month of March, the General Manager was involved in the following: 
 

• Attended the East Bay Dischargers Authority (EBDA) Managers Advisory Committee 
(MAC) meeting 

• Attended the EBDA Meeting 
• Participated in EBDA Ad Hoc Meetings 
• Attended three EBDA MAC JPA Discussion Meetings 
• Attended the EBDA JPA Workshop 
• Participated in Interviews for ACWD Operations Manager 
• Attended the Mid-Year Budget Board Workshop 
• Attended the Fremont State of the City Luncheon 
 

Attachments: Odor Report and Map 
 Hours Worked and Leave Time by Work Group 
 Business Services 
 Technical Services 
 Collection Services 
 Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction 
 Treatment and Disposal Services 
 

13 of 112



 

  
 ODOR REPORT 
 March 2019 
 
 During the recording period from March 01, 2019 through March 31, 2019, there was one odor  
 related service request received by the District. 
 

 City:  Union City 
 
 1. Complaint Details:  
 Date:  3/14/2019 Time:  12:15 pm 
 Location:   DORADO DR Reported By: Jacob Pulickal 
 Wind (from): N/A Wind Speed:  25 mph 
 Temperature:  69 Degrees F Weather: Clear 
 
 Response and Follow-up: 

 We inspected manholes, storm drain inlets and manholes around Mariner Park and the flood  
 canal. We checked Dorado Drive and Regents Boulevard and found no sign of any odor. The  
 grass had just been cut and there was a smell of fresh cut grass. The reporting party said that  
 there was an odor two days ago. We told them to call us at the time of the smell should the odor  
 return again. 
 

14 of 112



1. No odor found

#

#

#

#

#

#

!

#

#

!

##

^

#

!

!̂̂

!

^

#

#

#

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Location of Odor Reports
April 2018 to March 2019 .0 1 2 3 4 50.5

Miles

Legend
Odor Complaints: March 2019

Odor Complaints: Apr. 2018 to Feb. 2019
No odor found (1)

Odor found, not related to USD (5)
Odor found, USD resolved (4)

No odor found (13)

#

!

^

#

! Odor found, not related to USD (0)
^ Odor found, USD resolved (0)

1. No odor found

15 of 112



NOTES

(1) Regular hours does not include hours worked by part-time or temporary employees.

(2) Overtime hours includes call outs. 

(3) Discretionary Leave includes Vacation, HEC, Holiday, MAL, FLEX, Funeral, Jury Duty, Military, OT Banked Use, 

     Paid Admin., SLIP, VRIP, Holiday Banked Use leaves.

(4) Sick Leave includes sick and catastrophic sick leaves as well as protected time off, of which the District has

     no discretion.

An employee using 15 vacation, 11 holiday, 2 HEC, and 5 sick days will work an average of 34. 9  hour s

per week over the course of a year; with 20 vacation days, 34. 2  hour s  per  week .

HOURS WORKED AND LEAVE TIME BY WORK GROUP

June 28, 2018 through March 20, 2019

Weeks to Date: 38 out of 52 (73.08%)

30.0 31.3 
28.0 26.8 

33.5 

42.8 

33.1 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

GM BS FMC TD TS CS All Groups

Average Annual Sick Leave Used Per Employee to Date 

Target is 47

34.0 34.4 34.1 35.2 34.1 35.7 34.8 

 -

 5.0

 10.0

 15.0

 20.0

 25.0

 30.0

 35.0

 40.0

GM BS FMC TD TS CS All Groups

At-Work Hours Per Employee Per Week

Target is 34

16 of 112



Regular                       

(1)

Overtime               

(2)

Discretionary 

(3)

Short Term 

Disability

Workers 

Comp 

Sick                     

(4)

Average 

Number of 

Employees

At-Work 

Hours Per 

Week Per 

Employee

Annual 

Sick Leave 

Used

GM 2 2,545.00           27.83              34.0 435.00            -              -             60.00             30.0 2 35.9 18.5

BS 16 20,799.25         40.00              34.4 3,005.67         9.00            -             501.25           31.3 20 35.4 41.0

FMC 28 35,499.50         632.12            34.1 5,935.17         262.29       48.50         783.55           28.0 23 34.2 43.9

TD 26 34,108.81         493.27            35.2 4,829.04         12.38         -             697.62           26.8 26 35.4 61.5

TS 32 41,091.99         173.73            34.1 5,875.59         -              -             1,072.42        33.5 31 35.4 48.7

CS 30 38,227.12         2,279.85         35.7 6,159.24         260.58       -             1,282.81        42.8 31 35.2 56.0

All Groups 134 172,945.17       3,646.80         34.8 26,239.71      544.25       48.50         4,429.15       33.1 133 35.1 50.5

SICK LEAVE INCENTIVE PROGRAM TARGETS ≥34 ≤47

The Sick Leave Incentive Program target goals are 47 or less hours of sick leave per employee annually, and 34 or more hours of at-work time per week per employee. 

NOTES

(1) Regular hours does not include hours worked by part-time or temporary employees.

(2) Overtime hours includes call outs. 

(3) Discretionary Leave includes Vacation, HEC, Holiday, MAL, FLEX, Funeral, Jury Duty, Military, OT Banked Use, Paid Admin., SLIP, VRIP, Holiday Banked Use leaves.

(4) Sick Leave includes sick and catastrophic sick leaves, as well as protected time off, of which the District has no discretion.

An employee using 15 vacation, 11 holiday, 2 HEC, and 5 sick days will work an average of 34.9 hours per week over the course of a year;  

with 20 vacation days, 34.2 hours per week.

LEAVE HOURS FY18

HOURS WORKED AND LEAVE TIME BY WORK GROUP

June 28, 2018 through March 20, 2019

Weeks to Date: 38 out of 52 (73.08%)

Average Annual Sick 

Leave Used Per 

Employee To Date

AT-WORK HOURS At-Work Hours 

Per Employee 

Per Week

Group Average 

Number of 

Employees

17 of 112



 BUDGET AND FINANCE REPORT

FY 2019       Year-to-date as of 03/31/2019 75% of year elapsed
Audited

Revenues % of  Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Rec'd Actuals 6/30/18

  Capacity Fees 16,211,521$    12,827,823$            79% 23,623,947$           
  Sewer Service Charges 57,016,142      29,272,055              51% 54,260,096             
  Operating (Work Groups) 1,326,550        868,462                   65% 1,512,908               
  Interest 650,000           1,887,176                290% 1,436,168               
  Misc. (LAVWMA, Admin Fines, Forfeited Deposits) 250,000           953,775                   382% 118,962                  

 Subtotal Revenues 75,454,213$    45,809,290$            61% 80,952,081$           

  SRF Loan Proceeds -                   -                           456,642                  

Total Revenues + SRF Proceeds 75,454,213$    45,809,290$            61% 81,408,723$           

Expenses % of  Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Used Actuals

  Capital Improvement Program:
       Capacity Proj. 3,150,000$      1,194,378$              38% 2,555,801$             
       Renewal & Repl. Proj. 6,142,500        3,502,774                57% 5,149,632               
  Operating 39,162,656      26,169,756              67% 38,749,578             
  Special Projects 1,410,000        395,291                   28% 914,943                  
  Retiree Medical (ADC) 626,089           996,841                   159% 514,807                  
  Vehicle & Equipment 660,201           610,397                   92% 552,020                  
  Information Systems 712,300           451,061                   63% 154,654                  
  Plant & Pump Stat. R&R 500,000           234,878                   47% 219,622                  
  Emerg. Fund -                   -                           0% -                          
  Pretreatment Fund 7,000               1,746                       25% 2,076                      
  Cty Fee for SSC Admin. 107,000           54,172                     51% 107,581                  
  Debt Servicing:
     SRF Loans 3,902,080        3,902,110                100% 4,282,954               

Total Expenses 56,379,826$    37,513,404$            67% 53,203,669$           

Total Revenue & Proceeds less Expenses 19,074,387$   8,295,886$             28,205,054             

Audited
Operating (Work Group) Expenses % of  Last Year

Budget Actual Budget Used Actuals
Board of Directors 179,111$         100,222$                 56% 138,798$                
General Manager/Admin. 1,043,506        573,653                   55% 817,042                  
Business Services 3,762,036        2,275,190                60% 5,039,969               
Collection Services 6,888,191        4,708,618                68% 7,208,772               
Technical Services 6,347,451        4,337,118                68% 6,690,818               
Treatment & Disposal Services 12,025,839      7,730,355                64% 11,569,991             
Fabrication, Maint. & Construction 8,264,514        5,950,737                72% 6,753,251               
Non-Departmental 652,008           493,864                   76% 530,937                  

Total 39,162,656$    26,169,756$            67% 38,749,578$           

Operating (Work Group) Expenses by Type % of  Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Used Actuals

Personnel (incl D&E) 26,614,085$    18,300,299$            69% 28,073,162$           
Repairs & Maintenance 2,256,450        1,597,420                71% 2,166,967               
Supplies & Matls (chemicals, small tools) 3,182,740        1,954,623                61% 2,398,715               
Outside Services (utilities, biosolids, legal) 6,764,691        4,238,652                63% 5,942,890               
Fixed Assets 344,690           78,762                     23% 167,845                  

Total 39,162,656$    26,169,756$            67% 38,749,578$           

18 of 112



REVENUES AND EXPENSES REPORT 
as of 3/31/19

16,211,521

57,016,142 

1,326,550 
650,000 250,000 -

12,827,823

29,272,055 

868,462 1,887,176 953,775 -
 $-

 $10,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $30,000,000

 $40,000,000

 $50,000,000

 $60,000,000

  Capacity Fees   Sewer Service
Charges

  Operating (Work
Groups)

  Interest   Misc. (LAVWMA,
Admin Fines,

Forfeited Deposits)

  SRF Loan Proceeds

Total Revenues
 Budget  Actual

3,150,000
6,142,500 

39,162,656 

1,410,000 
626,089 660,201 712,300 500,000 -

7,000 107,000 

3,902,080 

1,194,378

3,502,774

26,169,756

395,291 996,841 610,397 451,061 234,878
0 1,746 54,172

3,902,110

$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

$30,000,000

$35,000,000

$40,000,000

$45,000,000

Total Expenses
 Budget  Actual

19 of 112



REVENUES AND EXPENSES REPORT 
as of 3/31/19

179,111
1,043,506

3,762,036

6,888,191 6,347,451

12,025,839

8,264,514

652,008

100,222
573,653

2,275,190

4,708,618 4,337,118

7,730,355

5,950,737

493,864
 $-

 $2,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $8,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $12,000,000

 $14,000,000

Operating Expenses by Work Group
 Budget  Actual

26,614,085

2,256,450
3,182,740

6,764,691

344,690

18,300,299

1,597,420 1,954,623 

4,238,652 

78,762 
 $-

 $5,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $15,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $25,000,000

 $30,000,000

Personnel (incl D&E) Repairs & Maintenance Supplies & Matls
(chemicals, small tools)

Outside Services
(utilities, biosolids, legal)

Fixed Assets

Operating Expenses by Type
 Budget  Actual

20 of 112



 
 

 
 
 

 
• Recruitment for Collection System Worker I was completed; Damien Hogue was hired on 3/4/2019. 
• Recruitment for EC Inspector was completed; Michael Lothian was hired on 3/18/2019. 

 
 
 

Performance Measures for the USD Investment Portfolio    
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 

0.00%

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

3.00%

3.50%

Average Monthly Yield

LAIF 2 Year Treasury USD Yield

Business Services Group  
March 2019 

21 of 112



 

22 of 112



Union Sanitary District
Portfolio Holdings
Board Report - Holdings
Report Format: By Transaction
Group By: Asset Class
Average By: Cost Value
Portfolio / Report Group: All Portfolios
As of 3/31/2019

Description CUSIP/Ticker
Credit 

Rating 1
Settlement 

Date
Face 

Amount/Shares Cost Value
Coupon 

Rate Market Value
YTM @ 

Cost
Next Call 

Date
Maturity 

Date
% of 

Portfolio

Agencies

FFCB 1.17 5/16/2019-17 3133EF7L5 Moodys-
Aaa 5/16/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.170 998,520.00 1.170 5/16/2019 0.80

FFCB 1.3 11/25/2019-16 3133EGBK0 Moodys-
Aaa 5/25/2016 1,000,000.00 997,950.00 1.300 993,200.00 1.360 11/25/2019 0.80

FFCB 1.35 6/24/2019 3133EEZ60 Moodys-
Aaa 5/24/2017 1,000,000.00 1,003,480.00 1.350 998,180.00 1.180 6/24/2019 0.81

FFCB 1.59 3/23/2020-17 3133EFR25 Moodys-
Aaa 3/23/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.590 992,180.00 1.590 3/23/2020 0.80

FFCB 1.7 5/3/2021-17 3133EF5T0 Moodys-
Aaa 5/3/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.700 986,750.00 1.700 5/3/2021 0.80

FHLB 1.93 12/21/2020-17 3130AADQ8 None 12/21/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.930 988,790.00 1.930 12/21/2020 0.80

FHLB 2 10/26/2021-19 3130AB3D6 None 4/26/2017 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 2.000 987,440.00 2.000 4/26/2019 10/26/2021 0.80

FHLB 2.05 12/29/2021-17 3130AAET1 Moodys-
Aaa 12/29/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 2.050 991,870.00 2.050 6/29/2019 12/29/2021 0.80

FHLB 2.4 12/22/2021-17 3130AAHC5 None 12/22/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 2.400 996,240.00 2.400 12/22/2021 0.80

FHLB Step 4/28/2021-16 3130A7PR0 Moodys-
Aaa 4/28/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.500 998,370.00 2.114 4/28/2019 4/28/2021 0.80

FHLB Step 4/28/2021-16 3130A7QX6 Moodys-
Aaa 4/28/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.500 994,510.00 2.021 4/28/2021 0.80

FHLMC 1.25 10/28/2019-
17 3134G8XQ7 Moodys-

Aaa 4/28/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.250 992,810.00 1.250 10/28/2019 0.80

FHLMC 1.4 6/14/2019-17 3134GBRH7 Moodys-
Aaa 6/14/2017 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.400 997,890.00 1.400 6/14/2019 0.80

FHLMC 1.41 4/26/2019-18 3134GBEG3 None 4/26/2017 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.410 999,280.00 1.410 4/26/2019 0.80

FHLMC 1.5 12/30/2019-17 3134GAYY4 S&P-AA+ 12/30/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.500 991,950.00 1.500 6/30/2019 12/30/2019 0.80

FHLMC 1.5 9/9/2019-18 3134GA7A6 Moodys-
Aaa 5/10/2017 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.500 995,650.00 1.500 9/9/2019 0.80

FHLMC 2 12/30/2021-17 3134GAYV0 None 12/30/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 2.000 990,060.00 2.000 6/30/2019 12/30/2021 0.80

3134G8VZ9 4/28/2016 2,500,000.00 2,500,000.00 1.500 2,481,000.00 2.116 4/28/2021 2.01

Page 1 of 4

23 of 112



Description CUSIP/Ticker
Credit 

Rating 1
Settlement 

Date
Face 

Amount/Shares Cost Value
Coupon 

Rate Market Value
YTM @ 

Cost
Next Call 

Date
Maturity 

Date
% of 

Portfolio

FHLMC Step 4/28/2021-
16

Moodys-
Aaa

FHLMC Step 4/28/2021-
16 3134G8Z28 Moodys-

Aaa 5/10/2016 1,000,000.00 999,500.00 1.500 994,570.00 2.044 4/28/2019 4/28/2021 0.80

FNMA 1.5 6/16/2021-16 3136G3QX6 Moodys-
Aaa 6/16/2016 1,000,000.00 995,000.00 1.500 978,320.00 1.604 6/16/2019 6/16/2021 0.80

Sub Total / Average 21,500,000.00 21,495,930.00 1.595 21,347,580.00 1.745 17.26

CAMP

CAMP LGIP LGIP4000 None 5/31/2011 9,280,837.17 9,280,837.17 2.610 9,280,837.17 2.610 N/A N/A 7.45

Sub Total / Average 9,280,837.17 9,280,837.17 2.610 9,280,837.17 2.610 7.45

Cash in Banks

BNY Cash LGIPBNY None 3/31/2019 1,727,195.45 1,727,195.45 1.000 1,727,195.45 1.000 N/A N/A 1.39

Union Bank Cash LGIPUNIONBANK None 12/31/2016 5,251,936.75 5,251,936.75 2.050 5,251,936.75 2.050 N/A N/A 4.22

Sub Total / Average 6,979,132.20 6,979,132.20 1.790 6,979,132.20 1.790 5.60

Certificates of Deposit

Ally Bank 1.35 10/28/2019 02006LQ48 None 10/27/2016 248,000.00 248,000.00 1.350 246,144.07 1.350 10/28/2019 0.20

American Expr Centurion 
2.45 4/5/2022 02587DN38 None 4/5/2017 247,000.00 247,000.00 2.450 248,037.70 2.450 4/5/2022 0.20

Belmont Savings Bank 
2.15 3/22/2022 080515BV0 None 3/20/2017 248,000.00 248,000.00 2.150 246,818.11 2.150 3/22/2022 0.20

BMW Bank 2.15 
3/10/2022 05580AGR9 None 3/10/2017 247,000.00 247,000.00 2.150 245,832.68 2.150 3/10/2022 0.20

Capital One Bank 1.5 
10/26/2020 140420L99 None 10/26/2016 248,000.00 248,000.00 1.500 243,935.88 1.500 10/26/2020 0.20

Comenity Capital 1.25 
4/11/2019 20033ASR8 None 10/25/2016 248,000.00 248,000.00 1.250 247,888.92 1.250 4/11/2019 0.20

Discover Bank 2.25 
12/29/2021 254672Y36 None 12/29/2016 247,000.00 247,000.00 2.250 246,480.02 2.250 12/29/2021 0.20

JP Morgan Chase Bank 
1.1 7/15/2019 48125Y5L4 None 7/15/2016 249,000.00 249,000.00 1.100 247,901.14 1.100 7/15/2019 0.20

Lakeside Bank 1.75 
5/29/2020 51210SMU8 None 5/30/2017 249,000.00 249,000.00 1.750 246,365.93 1.750 5/29/2020 0.20

Landmark Bank 2.1 
3/29/2021-17 51506VCA9 None 3/29/2017 248,000.00 248,000.00 2.100 246,593.34 2.100 6/27/2019 3/29/2021 0.20

Ponce De Leon Federal 
Bank 1.85 5/28/2021 732333AJ8 None 5/31/2017 249,000.00 249,000.00 1.850 246,177.58 1.850 5/28/2021 0.20

State Bank of India 2.25 
1/26/2022 8562846A7 None 1/26/2017 247,000.00 247,000.00 2.250 246,467.17 2.250 1/26/2022 0.20

Page 2 of 4

24 of 112



Description CUSIP/Ticker
Credit 

Rating 1
Settlement 

Date
Face 

Amount/Shares Cost Value
Coupon 

Rate Market Value
YTM @ 

Cost
Next Call 

Date
Maturity 

Date
% of 

Portfolio

Summit Community Bank 
1.65 5/29/2020 86604XLT1 None 5/31/2017 249,000.00 249,000.00 1.650 246,075.52 1.650 5/29/2020 0.20

Synchrony Bank 2.3 
2/24/2022 87165ELT2 None 2/28/2017 247,000.00 247,000.00 2.300 246,854.86 2.300 2/24/2022 0.20

Wells Fargo Bank 1.15 
7/22/2019 9497486R3 None 7/20/2016 249,000.00 249,000.00 1.150 247,868.30 1.150 7/22/2019 0.20

Sub Total / Average 3,720,000.00 3,720,000.00 1.816 3,699,441.22 1.816 2.99

Corporate Issues

American Express Credit 
2.7 3/3/2022 0258M0EG0 Moodys-A2 5/15/2017 1,000,000.00 1,013,279.67 2.700 1,001,000.00 2.406 3/3/2022 0.81

Bank of America Corp 4.1 
7/24/2023 06053FAA7 Fitch-A 3/22/2019 500,000.00 520,405.00 4.100 522,785.00 3.087 7/24/2023 0.42

BB&T CORPORATION 
3.05 6/20/2022 05531FBG7 Fitch-A+ 3/22/2019 525,000.00 525,714.00 3.050 528,060.75 3.006 6/20/2022 0.42

Chevron Corp 2.1 
5/16/2021 166764BG4 Moodys-

Aa2 5/10/2017 1,000,000.00 999,500.00 2.100 992,830.00 2.113 5/16/2021 0.80

Chevron Corp 2.193 
11/15/2019 166764AN0 Moodys-

Aa2 2/26/2016 1,160,000.00 1,167,806.57 2.193 1,156,786.80 2.004 11/15/2019 0.94

GE Capital International 
2.04 11/15/2020 36164QMS4 S&P-AA 3/10/2017 1,000,000.00 1,010,642.28 2.040 987,610.00 1.738 11/15/2020 0.81

HSBC 4.875 8/24/2020 4042Q1AE7 Moodys-A1 5/17/2016 2,000,000.00 2,191,145.28 4.875 2,054,580.00 2.500 8/24/2020 1.76

JPMorgan Chase & Co 2.7 
5/18/2023 46625HRL6 Fitch-A+ 3/22/2019 525,000.00 517,970.25 2.700 519,870.75 3.045 5/18/2023 0.42

MUFG BANK LTD/NY 
2.59 9/19/2019 62479MWK5 Moodys-P1 3/25/2019 1,500,000.00 1,480,790.83 2.590 1,481,222.55 5.276 9/19/2019 1.19

State Street Corp 1.95 
5/19/2021 857477AV5 Fitch-AA- 3/22/2019 530,000.00 520,566.00 1.950 522,982.80 2.805 5/19/2021 0.42

Sub Total / Average 9,740,000.00 9,947,819.88 3.028 9,767,728.65 2.831 7.99

LAIF

LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 None 4/30/2011 53,142,628.89 53,142,628.89 2.436 53,142,628.89 2.436 N/A N/A 42.68

Sub Total / Average 53,142,628.89 53,142,628.89 2.436 53,142,628.89 2.436 42.68

Municipal

City of Riverside CA 2.125 
6/1/2021 769036BA1 S&P-AA- 6/1/2017 500,000.00 500,000.00 2.125 494,410.00 2.125 6/1/2021 0.40

La Quinta Redev Agency 
2.034 9/1/2019 50420BCH3 S&P-AA- 12/22/2016 1,330,000.00 1,336,650.00 2.034 1,326,621.80 1.843 9/1/2019 1.07

State of California 2.152 
4/1/2022 13063DAD0 Moodys-

Aa3 4/27/2017 1,000,000.00 1,010,000.00 2.152 1,000,250.00 1.938 4/1/2022 0.81

Page 3 of 4

25 of 112



Description CUSIP/Ticker
Credit 

Rating 1
Settlement 

Date
Face 

Amount/Shares Cost Value
Coupon 

Rate Market Value
YTM @ 

Cost
Next Call 

Date
Maturity 

Date
% of 

Portfolio

Victor Valley College 
General Obligation Bond 
2.35

92603PER9 Moodys-
Aa2

12/28/2016 500,000.00 490,150.00 2.350 492,355.00 2.811 8/1/2021 0.39

Sub Total / Average 3,330,000.00 3,336,800.00 2.130 3,313,636.80 2.056 2.68

Treasury

T-Note 0.875 5/15/2019 912828R44 None 4/26/2017 1,000,000.00 993,080.00 0.875 998,080.00 1.217 5/15/2019 0.80

T-Note 1.375 6/30/2023 912828S35 Fitch-AAA 3/20/2019 2,000,000.00 1,914,609.38 1.375 1,930,080.00 2.431 6/30/2023 1.54

T-Note 1.375 9/30/2023 912828T26 Fitch-AAA 3/20/2019 2,000,000.00 1,909,531.25 1.375 1,925,860.00 2.436 9/30/2023 1.53

T-Note 1.5 3/31/2023 912828Q29 Fitch-AAA 3/20/2019 2,000,000.00 1,929,140.63 1.500 1,943,600.00 2.428 3/31/2023 1.55

T-Note 1.75 9/30/2022 912828L57 Fitch-AAA 3/20/2019 2,000,000.00 1,954,531.25 1.750 1,967,340.00 2.426 9/30/2022 1.57

T-Note 2.125 12/31/2022 912828N30 Fitch-AAA 3/20/2019 2,000,000.00 1,978,359.38 2.125 1,991,800.00 2.426 12/31/2022 1.59

T-Note 2.125 2/29/2024 912828W48 Fitch-AAA 3/20/2019 2,000,000.00 1,970,625.00 2.125 1,988,200.00 2.442 2/29/2024 1.58

T-Note 2.125 6/30/2022 912828XG0 Fitch-AAA 3/20/2019 2,000,000.00 1,981,562.50 2.125 1,993,200.00 2.418 6/30/2022 1.59

T-Note 2.25 12/31/2023 912828V23 Fitch-AAA 3/20/2019 2,000,000.00 1,982,968.75 2.250 1,999,920.00 2.439 12/31/2023 1.59

Sub Total / Average 17,000,000.00 16,614,408.14 1.776 16,738,080.00 2.358 13.34

Total / Average 124,692,598.26 124,517,556.28 2.200 124,269,064.93 2.286 100

Page 4 of 4

All investment actions executed since the last report have been made in full compliance with the District’s Investment Policy. The District will meet its expenditure obligations for the next 
six months. Market value sources are the LAIF, CAMP, and BNY Mellon monthly statements. Broker/Dealers: BOSC, Inc.; Cantella & Co.; First Empire Securities; Ladenburg, Thalman 
& Co, Inc.; UBS Financial Services; Wells Fargo Securities.

Reviewer:

Approver:

26 of 112



Union Sanitary District
Transactions Summary
Board Report - Activity
Group By: Action
Portfolio / Report Group: All Portfolios
Begin Date: 02/28/2019, End Date: 03/31/2019

Description CUSIP/Ticker Face Amount/Shares Principal Interest/Dividends Coupon Rate YTM @ Cost Settlement Date Total

Buy

Bank of America Corp 4.1 7/24/2023 06053FAA7 500,000.00 520,405.00 3,302.78 4.100 3.087 3/22/2019 523,707.78

BB&T CORPORATION 3.05 
6/20/2022 05531FBG7 525,000.00 525,714.00 177.92 3.050 3.006 3/22/2019 525,891.92

JPMorgan Chase & Co 2.7 5/18/2023 46625HRL6 525,000.00 517,970.25 4,882.50 2.700 3.045 3/22/2019 522,852.75

MUFG BANK LTD/NY 2.59 9/19/2019 62479MWK5 1,500,000.00 1,480,790.83 0.00 2.590 5.276 3/25/2019 1,480,790.83

State Street Corp 1.95 5/19/2021 857477AV5 530,000.00 520,566.00 3,531.13 1.950 2.805 3/22/2019 524,097.13

T-Note 1.375 6/30/2023 912828S35 2,000,000.00 1,914,609.38 6,001.38 1.375 2.431 3/20/2019 1,920,610.76

T-Note 1.375 9/30/2023 912828T26 2,000,000.00 1,909,531.25 12,918.96 1.375 2.436 3/20/2019 1,922,450.21

T-Note 1.5 3/31/2023 912828Q29 2,000,000.00 1,929,140.63 14,093.41 1.500 2.428 3/20/2019 1,943,234.04

T-Note 1.75 9/30/2022 912828L57 2,000,000.00 1,954,531.25 16,442.31 1.750 2.426 3/20/2019 1,970,973.56

T-Note 2.125 12/31/2022 912828N30 2,000,000.00 1,978,359.38 9,274.86 2.125 2.426 3/20/2019 1,987,634.24

T-Note 2.125 2/29/2024 912828W48 2,000,000.00 1,970,625.00 2,309.78 2.125 2.442 3/20/2019 1,972,934.78

T-Note 2.125 6/30/2022 912828XG0 2,000,000.00 1,981,562.50 9,274.86 2.125 2.418 3/20/2019 1,990,837.36

T-Note 2.25 12/31/2023 912828V23 2,000,000.00 1,982,968.75 9,820.44 2.250 2.439 3/20/2019 1,992,789.19

Sub Total / Average 19,580,000.00 19,186,774.22 92,030.33 19,278,804.55

Deposit

BNY Cash LGIPBNY 1,727,195.45 1,727,195.45 0.00 N/A 0.000 3/31/2019 1,727,195.45

CAMP LGIP LGIP4000 40,531.60 40,531.60 0.00 N/A 0.000 3/31/2019 40,531.60

Union Bank Cash LGIPUNIONBANK 5,251,936.75 5,251,936.75 0.00 N/A 0.000 3/31/2019 5,251,936.75

Sub Total / Average 7,019,663.80 7,019,663.80 0.00 7,019,663.80

Interest

American Express Credit 2.7 3/3/2022 0258M0EG0 0.00 0.00 13,500.00 2.700 0.000 3/4/2019 13,500.00

Belmont Savings Bank 2.15 3/22/2022 080515BV0 0.00 0.00 2,644.09 2.150 0.000 3/20/2019 2,644.09

BMW Bank 2.15 3/10/2022 05580AGR9 0.00 0.00 2,633.43 2.150 0.000 3/11/2019 2,633.43

CAMP LGIP LGIP4000 0.00 0.00 40,531.60 N/A 0.000 3/31/2019 40,531.60

Comenity Capital 1.25 4/11/2019 20033ASR8 0.00 0.00 237.81 1.250 0.000 3/11/2019 237.81

Page 1 of 2

27 of 112



Description CUSIP/Ticker Face Amount/Shares Principal Interest/Dividends Coupon Rate YTM @ Cost Settlement Date Total

FFCB 1.59 3/23/2020-17 3133EFR25 0.00 0.00 7,950.00 1.590 0.000 3/25/2019 7,950.00

FHLMC 1.5 9/9/2019-18 3134GA7A6 0.00 0.00 7,500.00 1.500 0.000 3/11/2019 7,500.00

La Quinta Redev Agency 2.034 
9/1/2019 50420BCH3 0.00 0.00 13,526.10 2.034 0.000 3/1/2019 13,526.10

Landmark Bank 2.1 3/29/2021-17 51506VCA9 0.00 0.00 1,284.16 2.100 0.000 3/29/2019 1,284.16

T-Note 1.283 3/31/2019 912828SN1 0.00 0.00 7,500.00 1.283 0.000 3/31/2019 7,500.00

Wells Fargo Bank 1.15 7/22/2019 9497486R3 0.00 0.00 219.67 1.150 0.000 3/20/2019 219.67

Sub Total / Average 0.00 0.00 97,526.86 97,526.86

Matured

T-Note 1.283 3/31/2019 912828SN1 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 0.00 1.283 0.000 3/31/2019 1,000,000.00

Sub Total / Average 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 0.00 1,000,000.00

Sell

Barclays Bank PLC Step 4/26/2022-17 06741VR95 1,000,000.00 995,000.00 11,000.00 2.000 0.000 3/20/2019 1,006,000.00

Sub Total / Average 1,000,000.00 995,000.00 11,000.00 1,006,000.00

Withdraw

CAMP LGIP LGIP4000 20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00 0.00 N/A 0.000 3/15/2019 20,000,000.00

Union Bank Cash LGIPUNIONBANK 4,346,759.54 4,346,759.54 0.00 N/A 0.000 3/30/2019 4,346,759.54

Sub Total / Average 24,346,759.54 24,346,759.54 0.00 24,346,759.54

Page 2 of 2

28 of 112



 MONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT FOR THE MONTH OF MARCH 2019 
TECHNICAL SUPPORT WORK GROUP SUMMARY 

 
 
Capital Improvement Program 

 
Sludge Degritter System Project – Fabrication of the Slurry cup replacement is in progress.  

 
Primary Digester No. 3 Rehabilitation Project – Contractor has completed the mixing piping installation inside 
the digester and coatings work inside is in progress. 

 
 
 
 
  

29 of 112



Customer Service 
 

Trouble Calls dispatched from the Front Desk during business hours: 
Month Fremont Newark Union City Total

March-19 11 1 2 14
February-19 8 1 3 12
January-19 11 0 1 12

December-18 6 1 1 8
November-18 6 1 0 7

October-18 6 5 1 12

March-18 8 2 0 10
6-Month Total 65

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

Fremont

Newark

Union City

Total

 
Sewer Permits Issued 
 

Month Repairs Mains New Laterals Restaurants Other
March-19 27 0 33 3 0

February-19 36 1 43 3 3
January-19 21 0 51 0 3

New Laterals - New residential lateral connections
Other - Non-residential construction (except restaurants)

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

January-19 February-19 March-19

Repairs

Mains

New Laterals

Restaurants

Other

 
 

30 of 112



Communication 
 

• Social Media posts:  
o Combo Unit photo and description 
o Pi Day 
o Wipes Clog Pipes 
o Surge Tower photo and description  

• Website updates: 
o Purchasing Vendor Fair information 
o Edits to GM biography 

• Continued activities regarding District Branding initiative 
• Continued development activities for Homeowner Lateral video 
• Participated in Chamber of Commerce Board activities and community events as Director and Past-

President 
• Participated in New Haven Unified School District program “Principal for a Day” at Itliong-Vera Cruz 

Middle School 
 
Environmental Compliance 
 

Pollution Prevention/Stormwater Programs 
 

USD’s Environmental Compliance (EC) team conducts pollution prevention inspections at restaurants, car wash 
businesses, and other commercial facilities.  EC also conducts inspections and enforcement for the City of 
Fremont’s Environmental Services group.  Over 600 Stormwater compliance inspections are conducted every year 
to ensure that commercial facilities, including restaurants and auto shops, comply with City Ordinance 
requirements, and do not discharge pollutants to the creeks and bay.  
 
During the past month, the EC team conducted 82 Stormwater (Urban Runoff), and 43 FOG (restaurant) 
inspections.  During this reporting period, Inspectors identified 11 Stormwater and 11 FOG enforcement actions.  
Nine (9) of the Stormwater enforcements resulted in administrative fines ranging from $100 to $500.  Two (2) of 
the administrative fines were for repeated violations. 
 
Urban Runoff Inspections and Enforcements 

March 
2019 

No. of UR 
Inspections VW WL NOV AF LA 

Total 
Enforcements  

No. of Illicit 
Discharge/s 2 

82 0 0 2 9 0 11  % enforcement 13% 
 

FOG Inspections and Enforcements 

March 
 2019 

No. of FOG 
Inspections VW WL NOV AF LA 

Total 
Enforcements  % Enforcement 26% 

43 2 7 2 0 0 11    
 

Enforcements: 
VW –Verbal Warning   WL – Warning Letter   NOV – Notices of Violation 
AF – Administrative Fine  LA – Legal Action   NOD – Notice of Deficiency 
AO – Administrative Order  C&D – Cease & Desist Order  SNC – Significant Non-Compliance 

   

31 of 112



Dental Inspections, School Outreach, and Plant Tours 
# of Dental Inspections # of School Outreach Events # of Plant Tours 

2 18 6 

Industrial Pretreatment 

The Industrial Pretreatment program has pending permits as shown in the table below.  USD inspectors are working 
with each of these companies to establish permitted industrial discharges. 

    Pending Permits 
New Industrial/Groundwater Permits Groundwater/Temporary 

N7K (Neuralink)-Industrial/Pending 
Silicon Valley RODI Services-Industrial/Pending 

PG&E/Jacobs (Groundwater) 

Permits Issued 
Company Name Date Permit Issued 

 Cascade Drilling (Groundwater Permit) 
Location: 37887 Shinn Street, Fremont 

March 25, 2019 

Lennar Homes of California, Inc. (Groundwater 
Permit) 

Location: 44851 S. Grimmer Blvd., Fremont 

March 29, 2019 

    Industrial Permit Closures 
Company Name Date of Closure 

None 

Reports (Annual & Semi-Annual Pretreatment Report, Union City Report, etc.) 
Report Name Date Report Completed and Submitted 

None 

Enforcement Action 
IU Name & Nature of 

Business 
Comments City  Parameter 

Violated 
Discharge 

concentration 
(mg/L) 

USD/Fed Limit 
Violated(mg/L) 

Enforce- 
ment 

(1) 

None 

(1) WL   – Warning Letter NOV – Notices of Violation AO – Administrative Order 
C&D – Cease and Desist Order SNC – Significant Non-Compliance EM – Enforcement Meeting 

32 of 112



 
 
 

Other - Training, Special Meetings, Conferences, IAC (topics) 
Activity Date of Event Attendees 

BACWA Pretreatment Masters Class March 11, 2019 Michael, Alex, Edda, Victor, Marian, Audrey 
Alameda County Clean Water 

Program (ACCWP): Stormwater 
Business Inspectors Workshop 

March 14, 2019 USD Environmental Compliance Coach and 
Inspectors 

1st Quarter Industrial Advisory 
Council Meeting 

March 28, 2019 Industrial User Representatives and USD 
Environmental Compliance Team Staff 

 
 
Engineering/Construction 

 
No. of projects under construction: 2 

 Construction Projects Capital 
($1000) 

Scheduled 
Completion 

Completed 
Scope 

Completed 
Time 

Comments for  
March 2019 Activities 

1.  Sludge Degritter System 
Project – Kevin 

$1,436 06/19 95% 100% Fabrication of the slurry cup 
replacement is in progress. 

2.  Primary Digester No. 3 
Rehabilitation – Derek 

$2,410 03/19 86% 100% Mixing pipe installation 
complete.  Coatings work inside 
the digester is in progress. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

33 of 112



Design/Study 
 

No. of projects in design/study phase: 18 
 Design/Study Projects Capital 

($1000) 
Scheduled 

Completion 
Completed 

Scope 
Completed 

Time 
Comments for 

March 2019 Activities 
1.  Cathodic Protection System 

Project – Thomas 
$79 08/18 100% 100% Bid opening was held on 

March 12, 2019.  Bid 
review in progress. 

2.  Newark Basin Masterplan – 
Andrew 

$318 08/19 82% 75% Basin network model is 
completed.  Consultant is 
awaiting flow monitoring 
data to begin calibration 
of the model. 

3.  Standby Power Generation 
System Upgrade Project – 
Raymond/Kevin 

$2,019 01/20 42% 42% 50% design submittal 
review and preparation of 
generator pre-selection 
specifications are in 
progress.   

4.  Force Main Condition 
Assessment – Andrew 

$121 10/20 60% 59% Next round of inspection 
will be scheduled with 
the next phase of Force 
Main Corrosion Repairs.  

5.  Emergency Outfall 
Improvements Project – 
Andrew  

$365 04/19 89% 90% 100% design submittal is 
in progress.  

6.  Primary Digester No. 7 Project 
– Curtis 

$1,904 06/19 90% 88% 100% design submittal is 
in progress. 

7.  Plant Master Plan – 
Raymond/Curtis 

$510 04/19 80% 97% Building layout/site plan 
generation is in progress.  
Planning level cost 
estimates are currently 
being reviewed. 

8.  Effluent Management Study – 
Curtis 

$155 03/18 95% 100% Study will incorporate 
results from Secondary 
Treatment Process 
Improvements. 

9.  Secondary Treatment Process 
Improvements – Curtis 

$565 04/19 90% 90% Development of draft 
project report is in 
progress.  Results will be 
incorporated into the 
Plant Master Plan. 

10.  Odor Control Alternatives 
Study – Kevin 

$465 04/19 85% 85% Final odor study report is 
in progress.  Plant and 
Pump Station assessment 
review is in progress. 

11.  Headworks Screens 
Replacement Project – 
Thomas 

$215 03/19 98% 100% 100% design submittal is 
in progress. 

34 of 112



 Design/Study Projects Capital 
($1000) 

Scheduled 
Completion 

Completed 
Scope 

Completed 
Time 

Comments for 
March 2019 Activities 

12.  Alvarado Influent Pump 
Station Improvements Project 
– Thomas 

$479 05/19 85% 83% 90% design workshop 
was held on March 7th.  
Design submittal review is 
in progress.   

13.  Force Main Corrosion Repairs 
Project Phase 3 – Andrew 

$60 02/19 75% 85% 100% design submittal is 
in progress. 

14.  Control Box No. 1 
Improvements Project – Kevin 

$229 05/19 80% 80% Draft predesign report is 
in progress. 

15.  WAS Thickener Replacement 
Project – Curtis 

$284 05/19 36% 69% Preliminary design is in 
progress.     

16.  Newark Equalization Storage 
Facilities Project – Somporn 

$347 06/19 26% 44% Surge analysis and 
desktop geotechnical 
review is in progress. 

17.  Centrifuge Building 
Improvements Project – 
Somporn 

$184 06/19 44% 48% Completed site visits for 
evaluation of existing 
equipment.  Evaluation 
report is in progress. 

18.  Primary Digester No. 2 
Rehabilitation Project – Derek 

$213 07/19 15% 25% Kickoff meeting occurred 
on March 13th. 

 

35 of 112



 
COLLECTION SERVICES  

ACTIVITIES REPORT 
March 2019 

 

    

Progress/Accomplishments   
 

• 1 Spill in March. Category 2, 1680 gallons, 100% recovered, 
• Completed 8.5 miles of sewer main cleaning in March. 
• Completed 8.0miles of sewer main inspection in March. 
• Responded to 19 service request calls in March. 
• Completed a total of 22 sewer main repairs in March. 
• New Collections Worker, Damien Hogue, started 

 
Reported Bay Area Spills March 31, 2018 Thru March. 31, 2019 

 
 

 
 

36 of 112



 

 
Mar. 31, 2018 to Mar. 31, 2019 Spills Per 100 Miles of Pipe 

Union Sanitary District, State & Regional Average 
 
 

 

37 of 112



 

Performance Measures 
 
 

 

38 of 112



 
Other Collection Services Status Data: 

 

 

Support Team Work Order Status: 
 

  
 
     

C/S Maintenance Status: 
 

 

    

39 of 112



l

l

l GBT No. 1 poly skid motor replacement
l Effluent Screen north sprocket and chain replacement
l Aeration Basin No. 1 rotork actuator installation
l Replace roller on GBT 2
l

Future Planning
l Begin overhaul of Cogen 1
l Diane upgrade to XT4 for Cogen 2
l Effluent Screen south sprocket and chain replacement
l Odor scrubber 2 overhaul
l Upgrade to the communication for the front gate controller and cameras

Performance Measurements

Fabrication, Maintenance and Construction
Activities Report

March 2019

Progress/Accomplishments
Completed 96.25% of preventive maintenance activities for the month of March
Completed 160 corrective maintenance work orders for the month of March

Annual fire extinghuisher service

0

5

10

15

20

Mar-18 Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19

N
o.

 o
f W

O
s

Priority A Repairs Required

Total Target

0

25

50

75

100

125

150

175

N
o.

  o
f  

W
O

s

Number of Work Orders Initiated & Completed Within Month

Initiated Completed

140 of 112



0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

N
o.

 o
f W

O
s

Number of Work Orders over 90 Days

# WO's Target

241 of 112







































Treatment & Disposal
Activities Report

March 2019

Progress/Accomplishments

Completed 100% preventive maintenance activities for the month of March.

Future Planning

Review HRA study results by Jacobs engineering and provide comments to finalize their report.

Begin start-up and testing of Primary Digester No. 3.
Attend Centrifuge Building Improvements Project Preliminary Design Report Workshop.

Maintained 100% compliance with NPDES permits.

Conducted competency testing of Plant Operator III Trainees.

Attended a Cal Recycle webinar to determine new biosolids reporting requirements under 
AB901 organics diversion rule. 
Continued working on the locations and analyte lists for configuration of the new laboratory 
information management system (LIMS) system. 

Conducted a shutdown of the treatment plant for electrical testing to check feasibility for 
interim improvements to the stand-by power system.
Submitted the NACWA Peak Performance Award application for the District.

Attended the Carollo Primary Digester No. 2 Rehabilitation Project kick off meeting.

Cogen system produced 58% of power consumed for the month of February.

Other

Several staff members will attend the annual CWEA Conference.

Attend site visits for the WAS Thickener Project Predesign efforts.
Review and agree on a requirements document of the LIMS implementation project.

Negotiate a scope for study work needed to potentially expand discharge and for the renewal of 
the Old Alameda Creek Permit.

Negotiate with Xylem for in-situ cleaning of aeration system membrane diffusers.

Review TO and make final comments on the Nutrient Watershed Permit.

42 of 112



Performance Measurements

18

20

22

24

26

28

30

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

M
G

D

m
g/

l

Lab Results and Effluent Flow

EFF SS CBOD EFF SS Limit CBOD Limit Flow MGD

69%

39%

77% 76% 77% 78%
68%

7%

38%
57%

69% 74%
58%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

kW
h 

/1
00

00

Pe
rc

en
t P

ro
du

ce
d

Cogen Power Produced

Percent Produced kWh /10000

Parameter EBDA Limit Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19
Copper, µg/l 78 4.8 4.1 4.6
Mercury, µg/l 0.066 0.0024 0.0022 0.0024
Cyanide, µg/l 42 E 1.1 E 1.2 E 0.96
Ammonia- N, mg/L (Range) 130 41.9 - 46.1 31.3 - 44.4 31.7 - 37.5
Fecal Coliform, MPN/100ml (Range)

• 5-Day Geometric Mean 500 14 - 34 15 - 34 16 - 47
• 11-Sample 90th Percentile 1100 29 - 46 43 - 75 50 - 83

Enterococci
• Monthly Geometric Mean 240 11.5 44.0 24.0

USD's Final Effluent Monthly Monitoring Results

E = Estimated value, concentration outside calibration range.  For SIP, E = DNQ, estimated 
concentration.

43 of 112



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
APRIL 22, 2019 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA ITEM # 8 

 
TITLE: Authorize Staff to Approve CSMRA Invoice for Settlement and Expenses 

Associated with Fernando Trujillo and Maria Del Carmen Bibiano v. USD, Case 
No. 1781769683 (This is a Motion Item)  

 
SUBMITTED: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 J. Leah Castella, Assistant General Counsel  
  
 
Recommendation 
 
Grant the General Manger the authority to approve invoices for settlement and expenses 
associated with Trujillo in an amount not to exceed $175,000.   
 
Previous Board Action 
 
None 
 
Background 
 
On March 23, 2016, a 1984 catering truck and a 1997 Toyota Corolla were involved in a traffic 
accident on Mission Blvd.  The Police Report stated that “an associated factor in this collision 
was the improper positioning of the manhole cover” owned by Union Sanitary District.   
 
On August 5, 2016, the District received a claim from Fernando Trujillo and Maria Del Carmen 
Bibiano (“Plaintiffs”), which was denied.  Plaintiffs filed a lawsuit alleging causes of action for 
negligence and dangerous condition in July of 2017.  Carl Warren, the claims manager assigned 
by California Sanitation Risk Management Authority (CSRMA), retained Keith Schirmer to 
represent the District in the lawsuit.    
 

44 of 112



 
The District is insured for these types of claims through CSRMA, though its deductible is 
$500,000.  Thus, as a practical matter, the District is directly responsible for all costs below the 
deductible amount.  However, CSRMA’s Pooled Liability Program Manual gives it the authority 
to settle all claims on behalf of members up to $125,000, regardless of the size of the 
deductible.  
 
CSRMA will invoice the District for the $100,000 settlement costs.  They will also invoice the 
District for all other costs associated with the dispute, which they estimate to be $60,803.96.  
Since this amount is over the General Manager’s signing authority, staff is seeking Board 
authorization to pay the invoice once it is received.  While staff believes the total invoice 
amount will be $160,803.9, staff is requesting up to $175,000 of authority in case the estimate 
provided by CSRMA is inaccurate.   
 

45 of 112



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
APRIL 22, 2019 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA ITEM # 9 

 
TITLE: Reject All Bids Received for the Newark Pump Station Cathodic Protection 

System Upgrade Project and Authorize Staff to Re-bid the Project 
(This is a Motion Item) 

 
SUBMITTED: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Sami E. Ghossain, Technical Services Work Group Manager 
 Raymond Chau, CIP Team Coach 

Thomas Lam, Associate Engineer 
 
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends the Board reject all bids received for the Newark Pump Station Cathodic 
Protection System Upgrade Project and authorize staff to re-bid the Project. 
 
Previous Board Action 
 
None. 
 
Background 
 
The District operates cathodic protection systems to protect its underground steel and iron 
pipelines and appurtenances from corrosion.  These systems are located at the Alvarado 
Wastewater Treatment Plant, Newark Pump Station, Irvington Pump station, and sites where the 
twin force main pipelines and steel casings cross under major roadways and railroads.  The 
cathodic protection systems are a combination of sacrificial anodes installed in shallow 
excavations and anodes installed in a deep well and energized using a rectifier.  The type of 
system is dependent on the quantity and proximity of steel and iron pipelines within an area.  
The cathodic protection systems are designed to slowly and sacrificially degrade the anodes while 

46 of 112



Agenda Item No. 9 
Meeting of April 22, 2019 
Page 2 
 
providing an electrical charge to the connected steel or iron pipelines thus slowing the corrosion 
of the pipelines. 
 
Staff annually tests and measures the cathodic protection systems to monitor the effectiveness 
of the anodes and rectifiers.  In 2018, the District hired JDH Corrosion Consultants (JDH) to review 
the data and evaluate the condition of the cathodic protection systems.  JDH presented its 
findings in the 2018 Annual Survey and Cathodic Protection Condition Assessment Report 
(Report).  In the Report, JDH provided an improvement plan prioritizing the cathodic protection 
systems that are most in need of repair, replacement, or upgrade in the next 10 years.  
 
The cathodic protection system at the Newark PS was listed in the improvement plan with highest 
priority for upgrade.  The Newark PS system, which consists entirely of sacrificial anodes in 
shallow excavations, was installed in 2004 as part of the Pump Station Force Main Corrosion 
Repairs Project.  JDH found that most of the sacrificial anodes are nearly depleted.  New anodes 
were recommended to be installed for corrosion protection of the underground steel pipelines 
which range in diameters between 24-inches and 48-inches.  The cathodic protection pipeline 
test station terminal boards were also recommended to be replaced. 
 
Scope of Work 
In addition to evaluating the District’s cathodic protection system, JDH also provided design 
services for the Project.  JDH completed the design in February 2019.  The Project will include the 
following improvements to the Newark PS cathodic protection system: 

• Installation of new sacrificial anodes in shallow excavations, 

• Installation of one new cathodic protection pipeline test station, and 

• Replacement of all existing cathodic protection test station terminal boards. 

Figures 1 shows the approximate locations of the test stations and new anodes at the Newark 
PS. 
 
Bid Results 
The Project was advertised for bids on February 12, 2019.  Two bids were received and opened 
on March 12, 2019 with the results shown as follows: 
 

Contractor Total Contract Price 
Corrpro Companies Inc. 
(Hayward, CA) $155,500 

Farwest Corrosion Control Company 
(Downey, CA) $349,915 

Engineer’s Estimate $200,000 
 

47 of 112



Agenda Item No. 9 
Meeting of April 22, 2019 
Page 3 
 
Corrpro Companies Inc. (Corrpro) was the apparent low bidder with a total bid amount of 
$155,500.  Staff reviewed the bid and found it to be non-responsive.  The Project’s bid documents 
required the bidders to submit all bid forms.  Corrpro did not include in its bid the forms in Section 
00490-Part D, Jobsite Safety Practices and Section 00490-Part E, Evaluation Worksheet.  After 
consulting with legal counsel, staff has found Corrpro’s bid to be non-responsive and notified 
Corrpro of its intent to reject Corrpro’s bid.  Corrpro did not protest the District’s position. 
 
Farwest Corrosion Control Company (Farwest) was the second-low bidder with a total bid 
amount of $349,915.  Farwest’s bid was $149,915 or 75% above the Engineer’s Estimate.  Staff 
contacted Farwest to inquire the reasons for their higher bid.  Farwest cited two major factors. 
 
The first factor was the requirement to utilize vacuum extraction to excavate the soil and to haul 
off the soil.  This method requires frequent trips to the soil disposal site compared to stockpiling 
the materials on site and hauling the materials off-site after all excavation is complete.  The 
second factor was Farwest’s assumption that a potentially large volume of groundwater might 
be encountered during excavation.  A large volume of groundwater would result in additional 
trips to dispose of the excavated soil and groundwater and, therefore, increased Farwest’s bid. 
 
Since Farwest’s bid exceeded the Engineer’s Estimate by a large percentage, staff believes it 
would be best to reject all bids and re-bid the Project.  Staff notified Farwest of its intent to reject 
Farwest’s bid.  Farwest did not protest the District’s position. 
 
Staff will re-evaluate the excavation and disposal of the soil and groundwater scope, update the 
requirements in the bid documents, and re-bid the Project.  Public Contract Code Section 20805 
allows the District to reject bids at its discretion. 
 
Staff recommends the Board reject all bids received for the Newark Pump Station Cathodic 
Protection System Upgrade Project and authorize staff to re-bid the Project. 
 
 
PRE/SEG/RC/TL;dl 
 
Attachment: Figure 1 – Project Location 
  Table 1 – Bid Tabulation Sheet  

48 of 112



49 of 112

thomasl
Text Box
Figure 1 - Project Location    Newark Pump Station

thomasl
Polygon

thomasl
Polygon

thomasl
Polygon

thomasl
Polygon

thomasl
Polygon

thomasl
Polygon

thomasl
Polygon

thomasl
Polygon

thomasl
Polygon

thomasl
Polygon

thomasl
Polygon

thomasl
Polygon

thomasl
Polygon

thomasl
Oval

thomasl
Oval

thomasl
Oval

thomasl
Oval

thomasl
Oval

thomasl
Oval

thomasl
Oval

thomasl
Oval

thomasl
Oval

thomasl
Oval

thomasl
Oval

thomasl
Oval

thomasl
Oval

thomasl
Rectangle

thomasl
Oval

thomasl
Text Box
Existing CP Test Station

thomasl
Text Box
New Anodes

thomasl
Text Box
New CP Test Station

thomasl
Rectangle



Corrpro 
Companies Inc. 
(Hayward, CA)

Farwest Corrosion 
Control Company 

(Downey, CA)

1
Cost for completing all Work included as part of 

Contract Documents for Project No. 800-503, except 
as specified under bid items 2 and 3.

LS 1 $10,000 $11,950

2 Cost for completing all work required to install the 
Cathodic Protection System. LS 1 $75,000 $303,000

3
Cost for providing all shoring and bracing on Bid 

Item No.2 including but not limited to that as 
required by Sections 6700-6708 of the Labor Code.

LS 1 $0 $10,000

$85,000 $324,950

Bid 
Alternate A

Cost for completing all work required to install the 
Cathodic Protection System No. 11 LS 1 $70,500 $24,965

$155,500 $349,915

Newark Pump Station Cathodic Protection System Upgrade Project No. 800-503
Table 1 - Bid Tabulation Sheet

Engineer's Estimate is $200,000.

Contract Price (Total Base Bid + Bid Alternate A) - This is the basis of 
award

Total Bid Price

Total Base Bid

Bid Item 
No. Bid Item Unit Estimated 

Quantity

50 of 112



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
APRIL 22, 2019 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA ITEM # 10 

 
TITLE: Review and Consider Approval of Policy No. 3210, Boardmember Use of       

E-mail for District Business (This is a Motion Item)  
 
SUBMITTED: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Karen W. Murphy, District Counsel 
 Regina McEvoy, Executive Assistant to the General Manager/Board Clerk 
  
 
Recommendation 
 
Review and consider approval of updated Policy No. 3210, Boardmember Use of E-mail for 
District Business. 
 
Previous Board Action 
 
4/11/2016 Board Meeting – Approval of Policy No. 3210 
 
Background 
 
Policy No. 3210 states Boardmembers shall use District assigned e-mail accounts for all 
electronic communication pertaining to District business.  The proposed revisions include but 
are not limited to: 
 

• Deletion of repetitive language 
• Updating outdated language 
• Updating format for consistency  

 
Attachments: Redline of Policy No. 3210, Boardmember Use of E-mail for District Business 

Clean Version of Policy No. 3210, Boardmember Use of Email for District Business 

51 of 112



Union Sanitary District Policy  
 

Effective date: 
April 11, 2016 
 
 

 
Boardmember Use of E-mail for 

 District Business 
 

Policy Number 3210 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri)

Policy 
 
Boardmembers shall use District assigned e-mail accounts for all electronic internet communication 
(e-mail) pertaining to District business.  District staff will monitor e-mails sent to the entire Board and 
respond to such emails in a timely manner. 
 
Purpose 
 
Since electronic communications of elected officials regarding District business are public records 
under the California Public Records Act (the “ActCPRA”), having all electronic internet communication 
between District Boardmembers and any party with respect to District business go through the District 
e-mail account would permit compliance with the Public Records Act without compromising the 
Boardmembers’ private e-mail accounts.  In addition, use of a general District e-mail account for 
Boardmembers will allow emails that may be time-sensitive or pertain to an agenda item to be 
forwarded to District staff.  District staff will be able to ensure acknowledgement of such e-mails and 
to provide timely responses as appropriate. 
 
Definitions 
  
E-mail Electronic internet communication 

 
District business Anything related to the conduct of Union Sanitary District’s 

activities. 
  

Background 
 
In order to differentiate between public documents under the Act CPRA and a public official’s private 
emails, best practices are for elected officials to use a public agency email account for 
communications related to agency business.  A general e-mail address for Boardmembers also allows 
the public to communicate with all Boardmembers and for staff to respond in a timely manner. 
 
Procedure 
 
Each Boardmember will be assigned a District e-mail account formatted with @unionsanitary.ca.gov.  
Any e-mail communication by a Boardmember relating to the conduct of District business should be 
through the use of a District e-mail account. 
 

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri)

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri)

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri)

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri)

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri)

52 of 112



Boardmember Use of E-mail for District Business  
   

Policy Number 3210 
Page 2 of 2 

  
  

                                                                                            
Emails sent to the entire Board at BOD@unionsanitary.ca.gov will be automatically forwarded to 
certain District staff members, which is standard practice for public agencies. This will ensure that any 
time-sensitive issues are brought to the District's attention in a timely manner, and to incorporate 
correspondence pertaining to the agenda items into the public record.  District management will 
monitor the general Board e-mail account and respond in a timely manner, as set forth below.  In 
order to prevent inadvertent issues regarding the Ralph M. Brown Act, Boardmembers shall not use 
the “Reply All” function if responding to an e-mail sent to the entire Board. 
 
Emails to individual Boardmembers will not be automatically forwarded to staff. 
 
Pursuant to the ActCPRA, emails to individual Boardmembers or the entire Board of Directors 
regarding District business that are sent to the official addresses above are treated as public records, 
subject to exemptions set forth in the ActCPRA.  
 
District management will monitor the general Board e-mail account and respond in a timely manner, 
as set forth below. 
 
Management Responsibility 
  
Management is responsible for assigning e-mail accounts to Boardmembers and maintaining those 
accounts on a District server, as well as maintaining a general e-mail address for all Boardmembers at 
BOD@unionsanitary.ca.gov.  Management is further responsible for posting a disclaimer on the 
District’s website that explains (1) the District’s policy to automatically forward emails sent to the 
entire Board to certain staff members, and (2) the fact that emails are treated as public records. 
 
Management is also responsible for providing training to Board members as needed in the use of such 
e-mail accounts. 
 
Lastly, Management is responsible for acknowledging receipt of e-mails sent to the entire Board and 
responding with information if requested.  In the event an e-mail requests specific answers to 
questions or raises policy issues, staff will acknowledge receipt of the e-mail and agendize an item for 
the Board to discuss an appropriate response if staff deems appropriate or if a Board Member so 
requests as a future agenda item.  
 
This revision supersedes the versions listed below, which are no longer effective. 
 

Title Policy # Effective Date 
Boardmember Use of E-mail for District 
Business 

3210 April 14, 2014 

   
   

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 12 pt

53 of 112



Boardmember Use of E-mail for District Business  
   

Policy Number 3210 
Page 2 of 2 

  
  

                                                                                            
 
Approved by:   Board of Directors 
Author/owner:  General Manager 
Reviewers:   District Legal Counsel 
Notify Person:  General Manager 
Revision frequency:  Every 2 years 
Next Review:  April 20192021 
 

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri)

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 12 pt

54 of 112



Union Sanitary District Policy  
 

Effective date: 
 
 

 
Boardmember Use of E-mail for 

 District Business 
 

Policy Number 3210 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

Policy 
 
Boardmembers shall use District assigned e-mail accounts for all electronic communication (e-mail) 
pertaining to District business.  District staff will monitor e-mails sent to the entire Board and respond 
to such emails in a timely manner. 
 
Purpose 
 
Since electronic communications of elected officials regarding District business are public records 
under the California Public Records Act (the “CPRA”), having all electronic communication between 
District Boardmembers and any party with respect to District business go through the District e-mail 
account would permit compliance with the Public Records Act without compromising the 
Boardmembers’ private accounts.  In addition, use of a general District e-mail account for 
Boardmembers will allow emails that may be time-sensitive or pertain to an agenda item to be 
forwarded to District staff.  District staff will be able to ensure acknowledgement of such e-mails and 
to provide timely responses as appropriate. 
 
Definitions 
  
E-mail Electronic communication 

 
District business Anything related to the conduct of Union Sanitary District’s activities 
  

Background 
 
In order to differentiate between public documents under the CPRA and a public official’s private 
emails, best practices are for elected officials to use a public agency email account for 
communications related to agency business.  A general e-mail address for Boardmembers also allows 
the public to communicate with all Boardmembers and for staff to respond in a timely manner. 
 
Procedure 
 
Each Boardmember will be assigned a District e-mail account formatted with @unionsanitary.ca.gov.  
Any e-mail communication by a Boardmember relating to the conduct of District business should be 
through the use of a District e-mail account. 
 
Emails sent to the entire Board at BOD@unionsanitary.ca.gov will be automatically forwarded to 
certain District staff members, which is standard practice for public agencies. This will ensure any 

55 of 112



Boardmember Use of E-mail for District Business  
   

Policy Number 3210 
Page 2 of 2 

  
  

                                                                                            
time-sensitive issues are brought to the District's attention in a timely manner, and to incorporate 
correspondence pertaining to the agenda items into the public record.  District management will 
monitor the general Board e-mail account and respond in a timely manner, as set forth below.  In 
order to prevent inadvertent issues regarding the Ralph M. Brown Act, Boardmembers shall not use 
the “Reply All” function if responding to an e-mail sent to the entire Board. 
 
Emails to individual Boardmembers will not be automatically forwarded to staff. 
 
Pursuant to the CPRA, emails to individual Boardmembers or the entire Board of Directors regarding 
District business that are sent to the official addresses above are treated as public records, subject to 
exemptions set forth in the CPRA.  
 
 
Management Responsibility 
  
Management is responsible for assigning e-mail accounts to Boardmembers and maintaining those 
accounts on a District server, as well as maintaining a general e-mail address for all Boardmembers at 
BOD@unionsanitary.ca.gov.  Management is further responsible for posting a disclaimer on the 
District’s website that explains (1) the District’s policy to automatically forward emails sent to the 
entire Board to certain staff members, and (2) the fact that emails are treated as public records. 
 
Management is also responsible for providing training to Boardmembers as needed in the use of such 
e-mail accounts. 
 
Lastly, Management is responsible for acknowledging receipt of e-mails sent to the entire Board and 
responding with information if requested.  In the event an e-mail requests specific answers to 
questions or raises policy issues, staff will acknowledge receipt of the e-mail and agendize an item for 
the Board to discuss an appropriate response if staff deems appropriate or if a Board Member so 
requests as a future agenda item.  
 
 
Approved by:   Board of Directors 
Author/owner:  General Manager 
Reviewers:   District Legal Counsel 
Notify Person:  General Manager 
Revision frequency:  Every 2 years 
Next Review:  April 2021 
 

56 of 112



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

APRIL 22, 2019 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

AGENDA ITEM # 11 
 
TITLE: Receive Information and Provide Direction Regarding the Union Sanitary 

District Ad-Hoc Recommendations for the East Bay Discharge Authority JPA 
Negotiations (This is a Direction Item)  

 
SUBMITTED: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Karen W. Murphy, District General Counsel 
  
 
Recommendation 
 
Receive information and provide direction regarding the Union Sanitary District (USD) JPA Ad-
Hoc recommendations on the East Bay Dischargers Authority (EBDA) JPA discussions and draft 
term sheet and modifications proposed by Castro Valley Sanitary District. 
 
Previous Board Action 
 
March 26, 2018 Board Meeting, the USD Board reviewed and approved staff  
recommendations for the 2018 Hydraulic Analysis conducted by EBDA. 
 
June 25, 2018 Board Meeting, the USD Board approved a 5-year extension, pending approval 
by the other EBDA agencies. 
 
August 13, 2018 Board Meeting, the USD Board approved the creation of the Ad Hoc 
Committee on EBDA JPA Negotiations and appointed USD’s EBDA representative, Director Tom 
Handley, and alternate, Secretary Jennifer Toy. 
 
September 10, 2018 Board Meeting, the USD Board provided direction to the General Manager 
regarding the EBDA JPA Negotiations. 
 

57 of 112



Background 
 
EBDA is a Joint Powers Authority (the “JPA”) of which Union Sanitary District is currently a 
member. The JPA was formed in 1974 by a “Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement” (the “JPA 
Agreement”) entered into by the City of Hayward, City of San Leandro, Oro Loma Sanitary 
District, Union Sanitary District, and Castro Valley Sanitary District.  The JPA currently provides 
a transport system and outfall to collect effluent from six (6) wastewater treatment plants in 
the East Bay, including two non-member agencies (DSRSD and Livermore, collectively LAVMA). 
EBDA transports treated wastewater and removes chlorine prior to its discharge through a 
deep-water outfall I the San Francisco Bay. 
 
The JPA Agreement has been amended three times since its creation in 1974. Amendments 
were approved in 1978, 1986, and 2007. The current JPA is set to expire in January of 
2020.Discussions and negotiations have been taking place over the last few years to develop 
deal points and a framework for a renewed agreement. 
 
More recently a series of EBDA Commission workshops have taken place where concepts and 
terms have been proposed and evaluated. The outcome of this series of workshops is a draft 
term sheet that is attached to this staff report. Each agency representative was asked to share 
this term sheet with its respective governing body and provide input to the EBDA commission. 
The main topics contained in the draft term sheet, dated March 8, 2019, are as follows: 
 

• Term – 20 Years 
• Agency capacity 
• Governance 
• O&M Cost Allocation 
• Renewal and Replacement Fund Cost Allocation 
• Pipeline Failure Liability 
• Capacity Exceedance 

 
The USD AD-hoc committee is requesting the USD board review and consider theses terms and 
provide direction as necessary. Additionally, Castro Valley Sanitary District has already 
considered the term sheet and has requested the following changes be considered: 
 

1. Payout USD/Hayward for the pump stations in the first 10 years of the new agreement 
and these agencies take ownership at the 10-year point (similar to what San Leandro is 
doing at year one of the new agreement). 
 

2. Allow agencies to change flows on a five-year cycle.  An agency could increase flows and 
then could determine they do not need the flow five years later and go back down. This 
is instead of the current go up and stay up term. 

 

58 of 112



The USD AD-hoc committee is also recommending the USD board review and consider these 
changes and provide direction as necessary. 
 
 
 
Attachments 
EBDA JPA 3-8-19 Draft Term Sheet 

59 of 112



 

1 | P a g e  
 

DRAFT East Bay Dischargers Authority Joint Powers Agreement Term Sheet 
March 87, 2019 

The following are key terms that are intended to form the core of a renewed EBDA JPA. If approved by the 
Commission, the renewed JPA will be drafted to reflect these concepts.  

The diagram below is provided for reference to illustrate the EBDA facilities and associated pipeline segments 
referred to in this document.

 

Term 
• 20 years 
• No unilateral opt out within the term of the agreement.  
• Agencies may adjust capacities upward at any time. To the extent that capital investment is required to 

accommodate that additional capacity, those costs will be borne by the adjusting agency. This includes 
any work required to reinstate capacity that was available under the previous JPA if a facility has been 
downsized to reflect the capacities in this JPA. 

• Agencies may not adjust capacities downward during the term of the agreement. 
 

 
 
Capacity 
Member Agencies’ firm capacities are as followsshown in Table 1: 
 

60 of 112



 

2 | P a g e  
 

TABLE 1 
Agency Capacity (MGD) 
USD 42.9* 
OLSD/CVSan 30.0 
Hayward 15.0* 
San Leandro 14.0 
*USD and Hayward capacities still under consideration. 
 
Governance 

• The affirmative vote of Commissioners representing both a majority of the agencies and a majority of 
capacity shall be necessary to carry any motion. 
• The approval of any action shall require two affirmative votes: 

o Membership Vote: Each Commissioner has one vote. The affirmative vote of a majority of 
the total membership of the Commission is necessary to carry any motion, AND 

o Weighted Vote: Weighted voting is based upon capacity share as outlined in the tTable 2 
below (to be adjusted as needed when capacities are finalized). Greater than 501% is 
necessary to carry any motion. 

TABLE 2 
   Agency     Votes 
   USD     42.10  
   OLSD     19.63  
   CV San     9.81  
   Hayward    14.72  
   San Leandro    13.74  
      Total =   100 

 
• Changes to the JPA, including designation of sole use vs. joint use facilities, require a unanimous vote of 

all Commissioners. 
 

O&M Cost Allocation 
• FY 18-19 cost allocations remain in place for FY 19-20, including capacities as contained in the expiring 

JPA. New cost allocations described below will begin in FY 20-21 
• O&M cost allocation is the Ssame as current, with the exception of San Leandro as outlined below.  

• Fixed costs are allocated based on defined capacity as specified above.  
• Variable costs are based on total annual flow. 
• Other cost centers are to be left flexible but with guidelines to allocate among member agencies on 

the same basis they are charged to EBDA. Current examples are nutrient fees, which are allocated 
based on nitrogen loads, and Regional Monitoring Program fees, which are allocated based on 
metals loads. 

• Cost allocation for San Leandro is modified as follows: 
• San Leandro will be fully responsible for all O&M costs associated with the San Leandro Effluent 

Pump Station (SLEPS) and the pipeline from SLEPS to the Marina Dechlor Facility (MDF).  
• San Leandro will not share in the fixed or variableO&M costs associated with the Oro Loma Effluent 

Pump Station (OLEPS), Hayward Effluent Pump Station (HEPS), or Alvarado Effluent Pump Station 
(AEPS), nor will it share in costs associated with the pipeline from AEPS to MDF. 

61 of 112



 

3 | P a g e  
 

• San Leandro will share in the remaining O&M costs as outlined above for other agencies (i.e. fixed 
costs based on capacity, variable costs based on annual flow). 

 
Renewal and Replacement Fund (RRF) Cost Allocation 

• Pipeline costs are allocated based on use of the pipeline segment as shown in Table 3. For shared 
segments, the allocation is calculated based on capacity. 
 
TABLE 3 
Segment Agency Allocation 
SLEPS to MDF San Leandro 100%  
Bay Outfall All Agencies Per allocations in Table 2 
OLEPS to MDF USD* 49% 

Hayward* 17% 
OLSD 23% 
CVSan 11% 

HEPS to OLEPS USD* 74% 
Hayward* 26% 

AEPS to HEPS USD 100% 
*Pending finalizing capacities. 
 

• Pump Station costs are allocated based on capacity, same as current, with the exception of San Leandro 
as outlined below.  

• RRF costs associated with AEPS would be paid to USD rather than expended by EBDA directly, and USD 
would assume control and responsibility of the management of the major pump station improvements 
in consultation with EBDA. EBDA and USD would agree on a total dollar amount equal to the value of the 
Asset Management Plan register for AEPS, and that amount (which would be explicitly enumerated in 
the agreement) would be paid to USD in ten equal annual installments over the first ten years of the 
agreement. USD would commit to ensuring that improvements meet EBDA’s level of service 
expectations.  

• San Leandro assumes costs associated with SLEPS. San Leandro shares in costs for the Ops Center, SF 
Bay Ooutfall pipe, and MDF based on capacity, same as current. San Leandro does not participate in cost 
sharing for AEPS, HEPS, or OLEPS. 

 
Liability (i.e. cost associated with failure) 
Pipelines 

• EBDA will continue to own assets with the exception of the pipeline from SLEPS to MDF, which will be 
owned by San Leandro.  

• Liability for pipelines will be allocated based on use of the pipeline segment per Table 3 above.  
• Existing EBDA staff will continue to provide technical support related to the pipelines in the event of a 

failure, but the cost to remedy the failure would be on the usingallocated based on Table 3 agency(ies).  
• Within the first ten several years of the term, EBDA will spend or set aside a pre-defined amount to 

reduce seismic risk on the pipelines based on the outcome of the Seismic Reliability Plan work. This term 
will be further refined in April based on the outcome of the seismic consultant’s recommendations. 

 
Pump Stations  

62 of 112



 

4 | P a g e  
 

• San Leandro takes ownership and liability of SLEPS at the start of the JPA. 
• EBDA retains ownership and liability for OLEPS, HEPS, and AEPS throughout the term of this JPA, same as 

current. The JPA would stipulate that that liability and ownership shifts to agencies based on use at the 
end of the 20-year term according to Table 4. 
TABLE 4 
Facility Agency Allocation 
OLEPS USD, Hayward, Oro Loma, CVSan Per capacity at the end of this 

agreement 
HEPS Hayward 100% 
AEPS USD 100% 
 

• San Leandro takes ownership and liability of SLEPS at the start of the JPA. 
 
Capacity Exceedance 

• Overage fee for exceeding capacity based on a 3-hour average (per fiscal year): 
o First offense    free  
o Second and subsequent offenses $0.005/gallon 

• If EBDA experiences a violation due to high flows, responsibility is allocated to the agency(ies) over 
capacity based on instantaneous (defined as 5-minute) exceedance. The determination of responsibility 
is made by the EBDA GM. 

• OLSD will continue providing emergency EBDA relief via OLSD’s emergency structure. 
• Any fees paid shall be applied to the fixed operating costs of the other agencies, thereby reducing their 

annual costs for that year. 

63 of 112



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
APRIL 22, 2019 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA ITEM # 12 

 
TITLE: Receive Information and Provide Direction Regarding Policy No. 2040, 

Exceptions to Ordinance Fees (This is a Direction Item)  
 
SUBMITTED: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Karen W. Murphy, General Counsel 
  
Recommendation 
 
Receive information and provide direction to bring back an item to consider rescinding Policy 
No. 2040, Exceptions to Ordinance Fees 
 
Previous Board Action 
 
03/09/2009 Board Meeting – Approval of revised Policy No. 2040 (originally approved in 1990 
and again in 2001) 
 
04/14/2014 Board Meeting – Approval of revised Policy No. 2040 
 
 
Background 
 
Policy No. 2040, Exceptions to Ordinance Fees, has been in place since 1990 and provides 
direction on how District staff should address protests and appeals related to the following 
four ordinances: 
 

1. Ordinance No. 31 – Sewer Service Charge 
2. Ordinance No. 34 – Plan Check, Processing, Inspection and Study Fees 
3. Ordinance No. 35 – Capacity Fees 
4. Ordinance No. 36 – Industrial Permit, Reporting and Monitoring Fees 

64 of 112



 
Policy No. 2040 provides that protests or appeals are to be directed to the General Manager, 
who will review them with legal counsel and the Board of Directors and make a 
recommendation to the Board.  The policy further provides that the final decision shall be 
made by the Board. 
 
Upon review of Policy No. 2040 and the applicable ordinances, it was noted that three of the 
four ordinances already provide their own appeal process, which is different from, and would 
supersede, the language in Policy No. 2040.  Ordinances No. 31, 35, and 36 all set forth an 
appeal process where appeals are first considered by the General Manager/District Engineer or 
District staff, and then may be further appealed to the Board of Directors.  This appeal process 
is fairly standard as it provides a two-step process by which appeals are first addressed at the 
staff level, with the ability to appeal further to the Board if necessary.  With respect to 
Ordinance No. 34, revisions to the ordinance will be brought to the Board later this year and 
revisions to add an appeal process will be recommended.  
 
In order to simplify and ensure consistent procedures, staff recommends that Policy No. 2040 
be rescinded as unnecessary and duplicative.  Staff recommends that an item rescinding Policy 
No. 2040 be brought back when revisions to Ordinance No. 34 are considered.  In the 
meantime, staff would implement Policy No. 2040 only for Ordinance No. 34.  With respect to 
Ordinances No. 31, 35 and 36, the ordinances supersede Policy No. 2040 and will govern in the 
event of an appeal prior to the rescission of Policy No. 2040. 
 
Attachments:  Policy 2040, Exceptions to Ordinance Fees 
 

65 of 112



Union Sanitary District 
Policy and Procedure Manual 

 

 
Effective: 
4/14/2014 

 

Exceptions to Ordinance Fees 

 
Policy Number 2040 

Page 1 of 2 
 
 

Policy 
 

Union Sanitary District grants no exceptions to fees established in  its ordinances. The Board of 
Directors will have the final decision on any variance. 

 
Purpose 

 
To set forth a uniform “no exceptions to fees” statement that provides direction to staff and is 
uniform for all rate payers. 

 
Procedure 

 
Fee ordinances are: 

 
Ordinance Title Use of Revenues 

31 Sewer Service Charge Annual operating costs; renewal and 
replacement of District equipment; 
Construction of capital improvement 
projects 

34 Plan Check and Processing Fee; 
Inspection Fee; Study Fee 

Fully or partially fund cost of service 

36 Industrial Permit, Reporting and 
Monitoring Fees 

Fund portions of the Environmental 
Compliance Program cost of service 

35 Capacity Fees Construction of capacity related capital 
improvement projects and associated study 
and design services 

 
 

Management Responsibility 
 

District staff is to apply the fees as set forth in the ordinances. Any protests or appeals relating to 
fees identified in any ordinance are to be directed to the General Manager. The General Manager 
will review with legal counsel and the Board of Directors and make recommendations to the 
Board on any proposed variance. The Board will have the final decision on any variance. 

66 of 112



Exceptions to Ordinance Fees Policy Number 2040 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 

This revision supersedes the versions listed below, which are no longer effective. 
 

Title Policy # Effective Date 
Exceptions to Ordinance Fees 4540 11/90 
Exceptions to Ordinance Fees 4540 12/00 
Exceptions to Ordinance Fees 4540 3/10/09 

 
 
 
 

Approved by: Board of Directors 
Author/owner: General Manager 
Reviewers: General Manager, Legal Counsel 
Notify Person: General Manager 
Revision frequency: Every 5 years 
Next Review: April 2019 

67 of 112



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
APRIL 22, 2019 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA ITEM # 13 

 
TITLE: USD to Purchase Natural Gas from the California Department of General 

Services (This is an Information Item)  
 
SUBMITTED: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Armando Lopez, Manager Treatment and Disposal Services  
 Tim Grillo, Research and Support Team Coach 
  
Recommendation 
 
Information only. 
 
Previous Board Action 
 
None 
 
Background 
 
Union Sanitary District has been purchasing natural gas from a third party (Tiger Inc.) since 
2009 which has provided a modest cost savings over the alternative of purchasing bundled 
natural gas from Pacific Gas and Electric (PG&E).  Staff identified an opportunity for additional 
cost savings by transitioning to gas for electrical generation (G-EG) which is an alternative 
PG&E tariff that specifically provides for reduced cost transportation of natural gas for power 
generation.  Staff became aware that they could purchase natural gas from the State of 
California Department of General Services (DGS), by “piggybacking” onto existing agreements 
with other public agencies. USD executed a short-term agreement with DGS in October 2018 
and switched to the PG&E GEG tariff to demonstrate the economics of this alternative. The 
results have been positive thus far. 
 

68 of 112



However, as we have only a few months of data under the new agreement and as natural gas 
savings is dependent on the cogeneration system usage and ever-changing PG&E rate 
components. It is easier to demonstrate economics of the alternatives by calculating the cost 
based on the actual natural gas usage from FY 18, published rates from PG&E and the DGS rate 
model.  The table below is a comparison of alternatives for purchasing the amount of natural 
gas that was used in FY18 as bundled gas from PG&E, from Tiger Inc. (actual FY18 cost) and 
from DGS under the GEG tariff.  
 

FY18 Natural gas Cost Comparison 
 

PG&E Bundled Gas  $      253,991.00  
Tiger Inc. (actual cost)  $      232,775.62  
DGS  $      149,468.17  

 
Based on this analysis, the District saved $21,215.38 in FY18 by purchasing natural gas from 
Tiger Inc. instead of purchasing bundled gas from PG&E.  However, the District would have 
saved an additional $83,307.45, or 35.8% of the actual FY18 natural gas cost had we purchased 
natural gas from DGS under the GEG tariff.  Staff expects this trend to continue as DGS has a 
very low overhead rate.  The FY20 budgetary projection for natural gas is based on a three-year 
average historical natural gas usage and a rate projected by DGS. Natural gas is listed in the 
FY20 budget under “annual contract purchases over $100,000.00” extension of the agreement 
is pending approval through the budget approval process. 

69 of 112



Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 

Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 

Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

APRIL 22, 2019 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

AGENDA ITEM # 14 

TITLE: Legislative Update on Regional Issues of Interest to the Board (This is an 
Information Item) 

SUBMITTED: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
Michelle Powell, Communications and Intergovernmental Relations 
Coordinator 

Recommendation 

Information only. 

Previous Board Action 

December 10, 2018 Board Meeting, the USD Board received a legislative update on regional 
issues. 

Background 

The Board was last updated on regional issues at its December 10, 2018 meeting. This report 
will be followed by a report on state and national issues at a future meeting. If there are is any 
additional information or a different format desired by the Board, staff will incorporate 
feedback into future reports.  

Following are summaries of information staff believes would be most significant to the Board. 
This document contains the most updated information available as of the publishing date of 
this staff report.  

70 of 112



Regional News: 

CASA Housing Compact 

• In 2017, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) and Association of Bay
Area Governments (ABAG) convened a panel of mayors, tech executives, tenant
advocates and developers to address the Bay Area region’s housing crisis. This panel is
called the Committee to House the Bay Area and is nicknamed CASA.

The panel developed a blueprint called the “CASA Compact” which calls for production
of 35,000 homes a year, including 14,000 affordable to low-income families, and 7,000
affordable to moderate-income families. The compact also puts forth the concept of a
regional agency with taxing authority to fund and shepherd new policies. This agency
has since been proposed in AB 1487 (Chiu). Several bills introduced in Sacramento this
year are based upon elements of the CASA compact.

Many Bay Area City governments that were not included on the panel nor in its
discussions have strongly stated that the compact goes too far in limiting local authority
and that some of the solutions offered in the CASA Compact are unworkable. Some
leaders felt the pact unduly favors the region’s three big cities: San Francisco, Oakland,
and San Jose. There are also objections to the creation of a new layer of bureaucracy
making decisions on how tax money is spent.

In a March 28, 2019 press release, the MTC announced approval of the appointment of
the first slate of local government officials to the newly-formed Housing Legislative
Working Group, which will advise both MTC’s and ABAG’s Legislation Committees on
housing-related bills pending in the state Legislature. The working group will include
representatives from two cities in each of the nine Bay Area counties as well as a
Supervisor from each county. It will meet weekly during the legislative session to
receive progress reports and provide feedback to MTC and ABAG staff on housing-
related bills in the State Assembly and Senate. Local Working Group appointments
approved as of the press release date are Lily Mei, City of Fremont, and Keith Carson,
Alameda County Board of Supervisors. Local governments are expected to nominate
appointees for the eight remaining positions on the 27-member Housing Legislative
Working Group in the coming weeks.

Horizon Initiative 

• The Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) and Association of Bay Area
Governments (ABAG) planners invited members of the public to share their visions for
the future and their policy priorities for the Bay Area at a series of public workshops in
March as part of the agencies’ Horizon Initiative to develop a long-term transportation
and land-use strategy to guide the nine-county region through 2050. MTC and ABAG

71 of 112



staff have identified three distinct scenarios that present both opportunities and 
challenges in the coming years: 

o Rising Tides, Falling Fortunes: Tax cuts and spending caps reduce federal
infrastructure funding, requiring states, cities and regions to shoulder more of
the burden; autonomous vehicles fail to live up to the hype; and lack of action
on climate change results in a three-foot rise in sea levels by 2050, creating a
new set of infrastructure needs in an era of slow growth;

o Clean and Green: The U.S. government strengthens environmental regulations
and implements a nationwide carbon tax; new technologies like virtual reality
foster telecommuting and smaller-scale workplaces; and high-tech
manufacturing thrives while growth slows in more energy-intensive sectors; and

o Back to the Future: Smart policies and increased infrastructure investment drive
continued prosperity; rapid job growth makes the U.S. more attractive to
immigrants; Silicon Valley technologies are dominant worldwide; and wealthy
American seek larger suburban homes, with access to job centers provided by
autonomous vehicles and hyperloop lines.

The March workshops were held in San Bruno, Vallejo, and Walnut Creek. Bay Area 
residents who want to participate in the Horizon Futures process but missed the 
workshops are invited to recommend strategies to help the region prepare for a better 
future at vitalsigns.mtc.ca.gov/horizon 

Dumbarton Rail Proposed Public-Private Partnership 

• San Mateo County Transit District and Cross Bay Transit Partners LLC are engaged in a
public-private partnership to improve transportation along the Dumbarton corridor in
the San Francisco Bay Area, stating that they are “exploring new, environmentally
appropriate alternatives for a high-quality, high-capacity public transit system.” Cross
Bay Transit Partners is jointly owned by Facebook and Plenary Group, an independent
long-term investor, developer, and manager of public infrastructure.

Community meetings were held in Newark, Redwood City, Fremont, and Menlo Park to
introduce the partnership and proposed improvements to the Dumbarton corridor and
to obtain feedback. Elements under consideration include high-capacity public transit
between Redwood City and the East Bay, reconstruction of the Dumbarton Rail Bridge
to connect the East Bay and the Peninsula, and bicycle and pedestrian facilities.

Project partners were present to share information about the project’s background,
goals, funding, timeline, and process. The next step for the partnership is to begin a
feasibility study.

72 of 112

http://www.vitalsigns.mtc.ca.gov/horizon
https://crossbaytransit.com/
https://plenarygroup.com/about


Alameda County 

• East Bay Community Energy (EBCE), the electricity provider for most of Alameda County
including Fremont and Union City, presented a check after eight months in operation
for repayment in full to the County for its $4.7 million advance of start-up funding. The
County provided funding and staff support for ECBE to begin operations. ECBE operates
through revenue it receives from electricity sales and does not rely on taxpayer funding.

• Supervisor Richard Valle’s spring newsletter noted that his office will host a retirement
luncheon honoring Tony Acosta, City Manager of Union City, and Arlando Smith,
Superintendent of New Haven Unified School District, on Wednesday, June 5, 2019.

• Alameda County Supervisor Scott Haggerty took over leadership of the Metropolitan
Transportation Commission (MTC) in February after Commissioners unanimously
elected him chair for a two-year term running through February 2021. Haggerty has
served for the past two years as MTC’s vice chair and has represented Alameda County
on the Commission since 2000.

• In late January 2019, the Board of Supervisors approved up to $6.7 million in Measure
A1 Housing Bond funds to Abode Services for Fremont’s City Center Apartments
project, which includes 59 affordable housing units, and up to $18.5 million in Measure
A1 Housing Bond funds to Resources for Community Development for the Fremont
Islander project, which will create 126 affordable housing units.

• The third Niles Canyon Stroll and Roll will take place on Sunday, September 22, 2019
from 7 a.m. to 2 p.m. The event is a joint effort by Alameda County Supervisors Scott
Haggerty and Richard Valle. Highway 84 (Niles Canyon Road) will be closed to vehicular
traffic to provide an opportunity for people to safely bike, walk, or run through the
canyon.

The purpose of the event is to bring about public awareness and support for an
initiative to create a class 1, multi-use trail through Niles Canyon, from Niles to Sunol.
The trail would provide access for pedestrians and bicyclists to experience Niles Canyon
as well as serve as an alternative to Highway 84 for commuters on bicycle.

• The Alameda County Science and Engineering Fair was cancelled this year in order to
reorganize its Board of Directors, which is currently planning the 2020 Fair. USD has
received notice that ten county water and wastewater agencies’ past collaboration to
create, sponsor, and provide judging expertise for the Excellence in Water Research
Special Awards is greatly appreciated, and the Fair organizers hope our participation
will continue. USD provided sponsorship, judges, and award ceremony presentations in
prior years.

73 of 112

http://links.govdelivery.com/track?type=click&enid=ZWFzPTEmbXNpZD0mYXVpZD0mbWFpbGluZ2lkPTIwMTkwMzA4LjI4MjYxMDEmbWVzc2FnZWlkPU1EQi1QUkQtQlVMLTIwMTkwMzA4LjI4MjYxMDEmZGF0YWJhc2VpZD0xMDAxJnNlcmlhbD0xNzE0NDc2NiZlbWFpbGlkPW1pY2hlbGxlcEB1bmlvbnNhbml0YXJ5LmNhLmdvdiZ1c2VyaWQ9bWljaGVsbGVwQHVuaW9uc2FuaXRhcnkuY2EuZ292JnRhcmdldGlkPSZmbD0mbXZpZD0mZXh0cmE9JiYm&&&101&&&https://ebce.org/
http://links.govdelivery.com/track?type=click&enid=ZWFzPTEmbXNpZD0mYXVpZD0mbWFpbGluZ2lkPTIwMTkwMzA4LjI4MjYxMDEmbWVzc2FnZWlkPU1EQi1QUkQtQlVMLTIwMTkwMzA4LjI4MjYxMDEmZGF0YWJhc2VpZD0xMDAxJnNlcmlhbD0xNzE0NDc2NiZlbWFpbGlkPW1pY2hlbGxlcEB1bmlvbnNhbml0YXJ5LmNhLmdvdiZ1c2VyaWQ9bWljaGVsbGVwQHVuaW9uc2FuaXRhcnkuY2EuZ292JnRhcmdldGlkPSZmbD0mbXZpZD0mZXh0cmE9JiYm&&&101&&&https://ebce.org/


• Fremont City Council member Vinnie Bacon has pledged to run a vigorous campaign to 
unseat Alameda County Supervisor Scott Haggerty in 2020. Haggerty was first elected to 
the Board in 1996 and is serving his sixth four-year term. Bacon will be termed out as a 
City Council member in 2020. 

 
Alameda County Water District (ACWD) 
 

• The District’s Board of Directors approved a two-year rate increase on February 7, 2019. 
Beginning March 1, 2019, rates for the bimonthly service charge and water 
consumption charge will each increase by 4 percent, with another 4 percent increase to 
both charges beginning March 1, 2020. The Board also approved “stage rates.” These 
rates will only be implemented if a water emergency is declared by the Board after a 
public hearing process takes place. If implemented, stage rates would result in an added 
cost for each unit of water consumption to ensure the District receives sufficient 
revenues to cover its cost of providing water service when consumption decreases 
during an emergency. 
 
The approved rate increases followed financial analyses and six public workshops. Two 
community meetings were held in January prior to the public hearing. 

 
Mobile Hygiene Unit 
 

• The cities are collaborating with several community partners to launch a Mobile 
Hygiene unit to provide shower and laundry services to the homeless. The unit was 
purchased through a $125,000 Alameda County Homeless Immediate Impact grant and 
is expected to begin service in April. The unit is a 50-foot truck and trailer fitted with 
two bathrooms (one ADA-compliant) including showers, three washers, and three 
dryers. Each service site will be open for 3 to 4 hours and will provide 10-15 minutes of 
shower time per client, as well as laundry services. 

 
Area churches have offered to accept gray water from the unit, which would involve an 
RV-disposal type of setup at sanitary sewer cleanouts. USD’s Environmental Compliance 
Team is working with City homeless services staff and has recommended development 
of standard operating procedures and proper controls to ensure service delivery in 
compliance with stormwater ordinances and USD’s Ordinance 36 regulations. 

 
City of Fremont 
 

• The Fremont Chamber of Commerce hosted the State of the City event on March 22, 
2019. Mayor Lily Mei’s speech welcomed City Manager Mark Danaj and newly elected 
councilmembers. The Mayor highlighted that she, the City Manager, and Council agreed 
upon a shared vision of three key focus areas for Fremont this year: housing, reducing 
traffic congestion, and neighborhood commercial districts. 
 

74 of 112



Mayor Mei noted the City’s conversion from at-large voting to a district-based system. 
Also mentioned were the City’s building of more affordable housing units than ever 
before, progress in providing homelessness services and resources, the adoption of a 
Mobility Action Plan aiming to improve the City’s local and regional transportation 
systems, and the Fremont Police department’s focus on reduction of residential 
burglaries. 

• USD’s Environmental Compliance Team is working with the City of Fremont to develop
required best management practices (BMPs) regarding refueling, washing, and
disposing of wastewater from tech company commuter shuttle buses at a central
location in order to protect the storm drain system. The BMP’s note that all providers of
are required to obtain a business license to operate in the City and comply with the
stated requirements.

• On February 5, 2019, City Council approved a minimum wage ordinance that increases
Fremont’s minimum wage to $15 per hour two years earlier than mandated under State
law. Large employers with 26 or more employees will be subject to a $13.50 per hour
minimum waste beginning July 1, 2019, which will increase to $15.00 per hour on July 1,
2020. This ordinance exempt employees of non-profit corporations.

• The City of Fremont has approached Niles Discovery Church about locating a Housing
Navigation Center on a piece of church property for five years. A Housing Navigation
Center is described on the church website as a program that would help 40-45 adults
navigate their way through “the bureaucracy, roadblocks, and challenges that stand in
the way of moving from being unhoused people to housed people.”

The church is currently negotiating with the City about the details of a land lease, the
program criteria, and safety concerns. A community meeting about the proposed
facility and program will be held Wednesday, April 24, 7:00 p.m., in the fellowship hall
of Niles Discovery Church, 36600 Niles Blvd., Fremont. Pre-meeting information is on
the church’s website:
https://www.nilesdiscoverychurch.org/ndc.php?page=Navigation_Center

The City has a goal of setting up the center by November 2019.

• The City recently launched an online Express Building Permits program for residents
planning simple upgrades to their home. This program has replaced obtaining permits
via fax. The following residential projects are included in the program:

• Re-roofing • Minor electrical panel upgrades
• Minor electrical work (rewiring or

adding circuits)
• Furnace replacement

• Addition or replacement of an Air
Conditioning Unit

• Water Heater Replacement

75 of 112

https://www.nilesdiscoverychurch.org/ndc.php?page=Navigation_Center


• Repair of gas, water, or drainage
lines

• Window or Patio Door
Replacement

• Non-structural bathroom
remodels

• Non-structural kitchen remodels

• The City of Fremont and Washington Hospital are hosting a free Earth Day event on
Saturday, April 20 from 11 a.m. to 3 p.m. at the Washington West Building located at
2500 Mowry Ave. USD will participate, offering a mercury for mercury-free
thermometer exchange and pollution prevention outreach materials.

City of Newark 

• Assistant City Manager Terrence Grindall’s last day with the City was April 12, 2019. He
has taken a similar position with another City in Contra Costa County. Newark’s City
Manager is evaluating his options and had not announced any immediate plans to fill
the position as of the publication of this report.

• The City held a public meeting on March 13, 2019 to preview a draft land use concept
and streetscape improvements to Thornton Avenue in Old Town Newark and receive
feedback from constituents.

• The Newark Chamber of Commerce will host Newark’s State of the City event on 11:30
a.m. – 1:30 p.m. on Thursday, April 25, 2019 at the DoubleTree by Hilton Newark-
Fremont.

City of Union City 

• The City invited community members to attend a Council Study Session Tuesday, April
23, 2019 at 5:00 p.m. and provide input on which services to cut in order to address a
$3.5 million per year ongoing budget deficit. The City seeks to balance its budget over
the next two years. Constituents are also invited to provide input prior to the meeting
via a survey at https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/unioncitybudget. Results of the
survey will be presented to Council during the study session.

• The City is undertaking its first five-year strategic plan. The City Council will hold its first
workshop on May 21, 2019. The first workshop will explore the challenges of the next
five years and consider what should be placed on the City Council’s radar. These could
be issues that may impact City residents or could end up as policy decisions. USD is
invited to share a few of its perceived challenges and opportunities possibly coming up
in the next five years that could be useful to Union City’s planning process.

• At its April 9, 2019 meeting, City Council adopted a resolution expanding the number of
commercial cannabis permits for medical dispensary from three to four permits. In

76 of 112

https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/unioncitybudget


2018, the City Council awarded Jiva Life and Eden Campus Holdings permits for 
medicinal dispensaries. Since the award of the permits, neither business has opened. 
City staff continues to work with both permit holders to proceed towards opening.  

The City conducted its second commercial cannabis application process resulting in two 
highly qualified, vertically-integrated commercial cannabis businesses: (1) Redwood 
Medical Supply with permits for cultivation, manufacturing, distribution and medical 
dispensary; and (2) Harvest of Union City with permits for manufacturing, distribution 
and medical dispensary. After adoption of the resolution expanding the number of 
permits, council adopted two resolutions declaring its intent to award permits to 
Redwood Medical Supply and Harvest of Union City later in the same meeting. 

• The City continues its General Plan Update activities. The draft Health and Quality of
Life Element was released for review by the Human Relations Committee, General Plan
Advisory Committee, and Planning Commission. The public was invited to attend the
review meetings held in January and February, and to provide comments via mail,
email, and the City’s website. This was the ninth and final element to be publicly
released.

• A report to City Council on March 8, 2019 noted that 2040 General Plan projections find
that the City will need over 4,000 housing units to accommodate population growth,
and that additional housing will require rezoning of industrial/commercial land.

Development Summary 

• Below is a summary of information regarding development in USD’s service area. This
information is the most up to date available as of the publishing date of this staff
report.

Planning Entitled Under Construction 
Fremont Union 

City 
Newark Fremont Union 

City 
Newark Fremont Union 

City 
Newark 

Single 
Family 
Dwelling 
Units 

83 743 39 73 0 121 205 45 1034 

Multi-
Family 
Dwelling 
Units 
(MFD) 

2,819 274 548 1,798 0 365 3,661 99 676 

Comm/Ind 
(SQ FT) 459,105 191,336 28,178 881,197 0 1,356 2,436,838 35,189 642,081 

77 of 112



• MFD Includes Duplex, Triplex, Townhomes, Condos, Apartments, Hotel rooms
• Planning (Future) = Has not been received by USD yet but has reached out to the Cities for planning
• Entitled (In review) = Has been received by USD, is either in plan review or has been approved, but has

NOT paid any capacity fees
• Under Construction (Permitted) = Has been received by USD, has been approved and has paid capacity

fees

78 of 112



Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 

Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 

Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

APRIL 22, 2019 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

AGENDA ITEM # 15 

TITLE: CAL-Card Quarterly Merchant Activity Report 

SUBMITTED BY: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
Laurie Brenner, Business Services Coach 
Skip Calvo, Purchasing Agent 
Nina Narvaez, Administrative Specialist  

Recommendation 

Information only. 

Previous Board Action 

None. 

Background 

The attached CAL-Card Merchant Spend Analysis details the CAL-Card activity for the third 
quarter of FY 2019. This covers transactions from the CAL-Card billing period January 23, 2019 
through March 22, 2019. During this quarter, we had 251 transactions totaling $60,390.67. 

Attachments:  Merchant Spend Analysis Report 

79 of 112



State of California

Report Date: 03/25/2019

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail  

Merchant

Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of

Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

360474 VTAOtherTravel 5811 EZCATERTOGOS 800-488-1803 MA $ 136.40 1 $ 136.40 $ 0.00 0 $ 136.40 0.23% 1 $ 0.00

SANDWICH

358273 Group 1 5732 APPLE STORE  PALO ALTO CA 216.91 1 216.91 0.00 0 216.91 0.36% 1 0.00

#R002

5732 FRY'S.COM 877-688-7678 CA 42.39 1 42.39 0.00 0 42.39 0.07% 1 0.00

5732 LAMPLINE LI 319-385-4622 IA 148.95 1 148.95 0.00 0 148.95 0.25% 1 0.00

5732 THOUGHTOUTCOM 203-987-5452 SC 106.68 1 106.68 0.00 0 106.68 0.18% 1 0.00

PANY

342849 Postage Stamps 9402 USPS.COM 800-238-3150 TN 1.05 1 1.05 0.00 0 1.05 0.00% 1 0.00

MOVER'S GUIDE

9402 USPS.COM 800-238-3150 TN 0.00 0 0.00 1.05 1 (1.05) 0.00% 1 0.00

MOVER'S GUIDE

9402 USPS.COM 800-238-3150 TN 1.05 1 1.05 0.00 0 1.05 0.00% 1 0.00

MOVER'S GUIDE

284298 VTA Catering 5812 TOMATINA UNION UNION CITY CA 216.11 2 108.06 0.00 0 216.11 0.36% 2 0.00

CITY

5814 MR PICKLES 325 - UNION CITY CA 372.23 7 53.18 0.00 0 372.23 0.62% 7 0.00

UNION

5812 THAI BBQ UNION CITY CA 101.42 1 101.42 0.00 0 101.42 0.17% 1 0.00

5814 CHIPOTLE 1529 UNION CITY CA 59.27 1 59.27 0.00 0 59.27 0.10% 1 0.00

5812 BRONCO BILLY'S UNION CITY CA 109.63 1 109.63 0.00 0 109.63 0.18% 1 0.00

PIZZA

5814 CHIPOTLE ONLINE 303-595-4000 CO 312.25 4 78.06 0.00 0 312.25 0.52% 4 0.00

5814 TOGOS - UNION UNION CITY CA 439.18 3 146.39 0.00 0 439.18 0.73% 3 0.00

CITY

5814 TOGOS - UNION 510-396-0848 CA 15.24 1 15.24 0.00 0 15.24 0.03% 1 0.00

CITY - ECOM

5812 DOORDASH*KABIL STRIPE.COM CA 19.65 1 19.65 0.00 0 19.65 0.03% 1 0.00

A CUISIN

5812 DOORDASH*MR. STRIPE.COM CA 31.15 1 31.15 0.00 0 31.15 0.05% 1 0.00

PICKLES S

5814 TOGOS - UNION UNION CITY CA 818.09 4 204.52 0.00 0 818.09 1.35% 4 0.00

CITY

235401 REGISTRATION 8111 LIEBERTCASS 310-981-2000 CA 55.00 1 55.00 0.00 0 55.00 0.09% 1 0.00

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 03/25/2019 10:33:02  Page     1

80 of 112

https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=279263310&MCC=5811&MST=MA&MCITY=800-488-1803&MNM=EZCATERTOGOS%20SANDWICH
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=279263310&MCC=5811&MST=MA&MCITY=800-488-1803&MNM=EZCATERTOGOS%20SANDWICH
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=152112667&MCC=5732&MST=CA&MCITY=PALO%20ALTO&MNM=APPLE%20STORE%20%20%23R002
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=152112667&MCC=5732&MST=CA&MCITY=PALO%20ALTO&MNM=APPLE%20STORE%20%20%23R002
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=190857292&MCC=5732&MST=CA&MCITY=877-688-7678&MNM=FRY%27%27S.COM
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=231771861&MCC=5732&MST=IA&MCITY=319-385-4622&MNM=LAMPLINE%20LI
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=263431729&MCC=5732&MST=SC&MCITY=203-987-5452&MNM=THOUGHTOUTCOMPANY
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=263431729&MCC=5732&MST=SC&MCITY=203-987-5452&MNM=THOUGHTOUTCOMPANY
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=9402&MST=TN&MCITY=800-238-3150&MNM=USPS.COM%20MOVER%27%27S%20GUIDE
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=9402&MST=TN&MCITY=800-238-3150&MNM=USPS.COM%20MOVER%27%27S%20GUIDE
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=213129779&MCC=9402&MST=TN&MCITY=800-238-3150&MNM=USPS.COM%20MOVER%27%27S%20GUIDE
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=213129779&MCC=9402&MST=TN&MCITY=800-238-3150&MNM=USPS.COM%20MOVER%27%27S%20GUIDE
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=213129779&MCC=9402&MST=TN&MCITY=800-238-3150&MNM=USPS.COM%20MOVER%27%27S%20GUIDE
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=213129779&MCC=9402&MST=TN&MCITY=800-238-3150&MNM=USPS.COM%20MOVER%27%27S%20GUIDE
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=82512776&MCC=5812&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=TOMATINA%20UNION%20CITY
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=82512776&MCC=5812&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=TOMATINA%20UNION%20CITY
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=123472685&MCC=5814&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=MR%20PICKLES%20325%20-%20UNION
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=123472685&MCC=5814&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=MR%20PICKLES%20325%20-%20UNION
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=128630771&MCC=5812&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=THAI%20BBQ
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=140434126&MCC=5814&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=CHIPOTLE%201529
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=162830978&MCC=5812&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=BRONCO%20BILLY%27%27S%20PIZZA
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=162830978&MCC=5812&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=BRONCO%20BILLY%27%27S%20PIZZA
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=217837005&MCC=5814&MST=CO&MCITY=303-595-4000&MNM=CHIPOTLE%20ONLINE
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=244258347&MCC=5814&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=TOGOS%20-%20UNION%20CITY
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=244258347&MCC=5814&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=TOGOS%20-%20UNION%20CITY
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=244258347&MCC=5814&MST=CA&MCITY=510-396-0848&MNM=TOGOS%20-%20UNION%20CITY%20-%20ECOM
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=244258347&MCC=5814&MST=CA&MCITY=510-396-0848&MNM=TOGOS%20-%20UNION%20CITY%20-%20ECOM
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=253028615&MCC=5812&MST=CA&MCITY=STRIPE.COM&MNM=DOORDASH*KABILA%20CUISIN
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=253028615&MCC=5812&MST=CA&MCITY=STRIPE.COM&MNM=DOORDASH*KABILA%20CUISIN
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=253028615&MCC=5812&MST=CA&MCITY=STRIPE.COM&MNM=DOORDASH*MR.%20PICKLES%20S
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=253028615&MCC=5812&MST=CA&MCITY=STRIPE.COM&MNM=DOORDASH*MR.%20PICKLES%20S
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=279268881&MCC=5814&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=TOGOS%20-%20UNION%20CITY
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=279268881&MCC=5814&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=TOGOS%20-%20UNION%20CITY
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=231426840&MCC=8111&MST=CA&MCITY=310-981-2000&MNM=LIEBERTCASS


State of California

Report Date: 03/25/2019

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail  

Merchant

Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of

Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

119156 MCC001 8220 FL ATLANTIC 561-297-2896 FL $ 10.00 1 $ 10.00 $ 0.00 0 $ 10.00 0.02% 1 $ 0.00

UNIVERSITY

47979 WHOLESALE 5045 CDW GOVT 800-808-4239 IL 954.72 1 954.72 0.00 0 954.72 1.58% 1 84.82

TRADE #RCK2712

5045 CDW GOVT 800-808-4239 IL 477.36 1 477.36 0.00 0 477.36 0.79% 1 42.41

#RGL6413

5045 CDW GOVT 800-808-4239 IL 547.54 1 547.54 0.00 0 547.54 0.91% 1 48.64

#RGP8008

5045 CDW GOVT 800-808-4239 IL 582.07 1 582.07 0.00 0 582.07 0.96% 1 51.71

#RGT7231

5085 EPASALES 423-876-4366 TN 371.95 1 371.95 0.00 0 371.95 0.62% 1 0.00

5399 COMFORT FIRST 714-5504971 CA 274.84 1 274.84 0.00 0 274.84 0.46% 1 18.60

PRODUCTS

5251 1000BULBS.COM 800-624-4488 TX 225.00 1 225.00 0.00 0 225.00 0.37% 1 0.00

5251 L.S. STARRETT 978-249-3551 MA 17.06 1 17.06 0.00 0 17.06 0.03% 1 0.71

COMPANY

5039 KLEENBLAST HAYWARD CA 334.76 1 334.76 0.00 0 334.76 0.55% 1 0.00

5085 SANTA CLARA 510-995-3390 CA 196.88 1 196.88 0.00 0 196.88 0.33% 1 0.00

SYSTEMS INC

5039 DEL CITY 800-6544757 WI 63.84 1 63.84 0.00 0 63.84 0.11% 1 0.00

5065 CABLEORGANIZER 866-7156006 FL 123.95 1 123.95 0.00 0 123.95 0.21% 1 0.00

5099 ACCUFORM.COM 800-237-1001 FL 356.05 1 356.05 0.00 0 356.05 0.59% 1 0.00

LLC

5085 SP SCIENTIFIC - 856-6973000 NJ 402.05 1 402.05 0.00 0 402.05 0.67% 1 0.00

WILMAD

5085 GRAINGER 877-2022594 IL 277.27 3 92.42 0.00 0 277.27 0.46% 3 22.52

5200 THE HOME DEPOT UNION CITY CA 49.00 2 24.50 0.00 0 49.00 0.08% 2 4.35

#0635

5200 THE HOME DEPOT UNION CITY CA 728.19 1 728.19 0.00 0 728.19 1.21% 1 64.69

635

5200 THE HOME DEPOT FREMONT CA 140.70 2 70.35 0.00 0 140.70 0.23% 2 11.91

#6636

5411 LUCKY #713 FREMONT CA 28.28 1 28.28 0.00 0 28.28 0.05% 1 0.00

FREMONT

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 03/25/2019 10:33:02  Page     2

81 of 112

https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=219284900&MCC=8220&MST=FL&MCITY=561-297-2896&MNM=FL%20ATLANTIC%20UNIVERSITY
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=219284900&MCC=8220&MST=FL&MCITY=561-297-2896&MNM=FL%20ATLANTIC%20UNIVERSITY
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=5045&MST=IL&MCITY=800-808-4239&MNM=CDW%20GOVT%20%23RCK2712
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=5045&MST=IL&MCITY=800-808-4239&MNM=CDW%20GOVT%20%23RCK2712
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=5045&MST=IL&MCITY=800-808-4239&MNM=CDW%20GOVT%20%23RGL6413
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=5045&MST=IL&MCITY=800-808-4239&MNM=CDW%20GOVT%20%23RGL6413
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=5045&MST=IL&MCITY=800-808-4239&MNM=CDW%20GOVT%20%23RGP8008
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=5045&MST=IL&MCITY=800-808-4239&MNM=CDW%20GOVT%20%23RGP8008
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=5045&MST=IL&MCITY=800-808-4239&MNM=CDW%20GOVT%20%23RGT7231
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=5045&MST=IL&MCITY=800-808-4239&MNM=CDW%20GOVT%20%23RGT7231
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=121014885&MCC=5085&MST=TN&MCITY=423-876-4366&MNM=EPASALES
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=128626735&MCC=5399&MST=CA&MCITY=714-5504971&MNM=COMFORT%20FIRST%20PRODUCTS
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=128626735&MCC=5399&MST=CA&MCITY=714-5504971&MNM=COMFORT%20FIRST%20PRODUCTS
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=131641130&MCC=5251&MST=TX&MCITY=800-624-4488&MNM=1000BULBS.COM
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=131807832&MCC=5251&MST=MA&MCITY=978-249-3551&MNM=L.S.%20STARRETT%20COMPANY
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=131807832&MCC=5251&MST=MA&MCITY=978-249-3551&MNM=L.S.%20STARRETT%20COMPANY
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=132419132&MCC=5039&MST=CA&MCITY=HAYWARD&MNM=KLEENBLAST
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=140118043&MCC=5085&MST=CA&MCITY=510-995-3390&MNM=SANTA%20CLARA%20SYSTEMS%20INC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=140118043&MCC=5085&MST=CA&MCITY=510-995-3390&MNM=SANTA%20CLARA%20SYSTEMS%20INC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=144479033&MCC=5039&MST=WI&MCITY=800-6544757&MNM=DEL%20CITY
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=154619155&MCC=5065&MST=FL&MCITY=866-7156006&MNM=CABLEORGANIZER
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=154876377&MCC=5099&MST=FL&MCITY=800-237-1001&MNM=ACCUFORM.COM%20LLC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=154876377&MCC=5099&MST=FL&MCITY=800-237-1001&MNM=ACCUFORM.COM%20LLC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=156864938&MCC=5085&MST=NJ&MCITY=856-6973000&MNM=SP%20SCIENTIFIC%20-%20WILMAD
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=156864938&MCC=5085&MST=NJ&MCITY=856-6973000&MNM=SP%20SCIENTIFIC%20-%20WILMAD
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=165820315&MCC=5085&MST=IL&MCITY=877-2022594&MNM=GRAINGER
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=165965521&MCC=5200&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=THE%20HOME%20DEPOT%20%230635
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=165965521&MCC=5200&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=THE%20HOME%20DEPOT%20%230635
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=165965521&MCC=5200&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=THE%20HOME%20DEPOT%20635
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=165965521&MCC=5200&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=THE%20HOME%20DEPOT%20635
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=166097079&MCC=5200&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=THE%20HOME%20DEPOT%20%236636
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=166097079&MCC=5200&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=THE%20HOME%20DEPOT%20%236636
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=166228957&MCC=5411&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=LUCKY%20%23713%20FREMONT
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=166228957&MCC=5411&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=LUCKY%20%23713%20FREMONT


State of California

Report Date: 03/25/2019

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail  

Merchant

Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of

Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

47979 WHOLESALE 5085 GIH*GLOBALINDUS 800-645-2986 FL $ 1,175.31 1 $ 1,175.31 $ 0.00 0 $ 1,175.31 1.95% 1 $ 104.41

TRADE TRIALEQ

5046 BUCHANAN 800-426-8316 CA 346.51 1 346.51 0.00 0 346.51 0.57% 1 17.33

AUTOMATION INC

5099 ALLIED FLUID 510-6543274 CA 278.59 1 278.59 0.00 0 278.59 0.46% 1 2.79

PRODUCTS COR

5200 LOWES #01895* FREMONT CA 170.39 2 85.20 0.00 0 170.39 0.28% 2 14.42

5310 WAL-MART #2031 UNION CITY CA 18.68 1 18.68 0.00 0 18.68 0.03% 1 1.04

5085 BUBBASBARRELS. 865-230-7778 TN 832.20 2 416.10 0.00 0 832.20 1.38% 2 0.00

COM

5200 HOMEDEPOT.COM 800-430-3376 GA 1,205.06 1 1,205.06 0.00 0 1,205.06 2.00% 1 107.06

5200 LOWES #01132* UNION CITY CA 1,166.12 7 166.59 42.99 1 1,123.13 1.86% 8 106.97

5039 HD SUPPLY WHITE 407-893-6631 CA 1,240.57 1 1,240.57 0.00 0 1,240.57 2.05% 1 110.21

CAP #022

5411 LUCKY #782 UNION UNION CITY CA 211.90 6 35.32 0.00 0 211.90 0.35% 6 0.00

CI

5085 INSTRUMART 800-8844967 VT 396.20 1 396.20 0.00 0 396.20 0.66% 1 0.00

5261 DOMYOWN.COM 770-840-8831 GA 438.00 1 438.00 0.00 0 438.00 0.73% 1 0.00

5085 ZORO TOOLS INC 855-2899676 IL 1,399.60 2 699.80 0.00 0 1,399.60 2.32% 2 0.00

5046 MUNICIPAL 916-9221101 CA 88.36 1 88.36 0.00 0 88.36 0.15% 1 0.00

MAINTENANCE EQU

5047 IN *I.R.I. 209-5451691 CA 1,012.88 1 1,012.88 0.00 0 1,012.88 1.68% 1 82.88

PRODUCTS, PRO-

5085 BUYMETALCOM 844-537-1999 PA 231.84 1 231.84 0.00 0 231.84 0.38% 1 0.00

BUYMETALCOM

5310 TARGET        HAYWARD CA 6.99 1 6.99 0.00 0 6.99 0.01% 1 0.00

00014720

5099 PAYPAL *RCM 402-935-7733 OK 435.00 1 435.00 0.00 0 435.00 0.72% 1 0.00

47978 VEHICLE 7538 PANKEYS HAYWARD CA 125.00 1 125.00 0.00 0 125.00 0.21% 1 0.00

EXPENSE RADIATOR SERVICE

5542 EXXONMOBIL    N. HIGHLANDS CA 31.28 1 31.28 0.00 0 31.28 0.05% 1 1.78

99486706

5533 SAFELITE 614-210-9192 OH 412.27 1 412.27 0.00 0 412.27 0.68% 1 0.00

AUTOGLASS

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 03/25/2019 10:33:02  Page     3

82 of 112

https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=169899405&MCC=5085&MST=FL&MCITY=800-645-2986&MNM=GIH*GLOBALINDUSTRIALEQ
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=169899405&MCC=5085&MST=FL&MCITY=800-645-2986&MNM=GIH*GLOBALINDUSTRIALEQ
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=179874059&MCC=5046&MST=CA&MCITY=800-426-8316&MNM=BUCHANAN%20AUTOMATION%20INC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=179874059&MCC=5046&MST=CA&MCITY=800-426-8316&MNM=BUCHANAN%20AUTOMATION%20INC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=179989788&MCC=5099&MST=CA&MCITY=510-6543274&MNM=ALLIED%20FLUID%20PRODUCTS%20COR
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=179989788&MCC=5099&MST=CA&MCITY=510-6543274&MNM=ALLIED%20FLUID%20PRODUCTS%20COR
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=180145415&MCC=5200&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=LOWES%20%2301895*
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=189015403&MCC=5310&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=WAL-MART%20%232031
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=193173355&MCC=5085&MST=TN&MCITY=865-230-7778&MNM=BUBBASBARRELS.COM
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=193173355&MCC=5085&MST=TN&MCITY=865-230-7778&MNM=BUBBASBARRELS.COM
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=206979289&MCC=5200&MST=GA&MCITY=800-430-3376&MNM=HOMEDEPOT.COM
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=207476732&MCC=5200&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=LOWES%20%2301132*
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=229851955&MCC=5039&MST=CA&MCITY=407-893-6631&MNM=HD%20SUPPLY%20WHITE%20CAP%20%23022
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=229851955&MCC=5039&MST=CA&MCITY=407-893-6631&MNM=HD%20SUPPLY%20WHITE%20CAP%20%23022
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=230048625&MCC=5411&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=LUCKY%20%23782%20UNION%20CI
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=230048625&MCC=5411&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=LUCKY%20%23782%20UNION%20CI
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=230934805&MCC=5085&MST=VT&MCITY=800-8844967&MNM=INSTRUMART
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=231163226&MCC=5261&MST=GA&MCITY=770-840-8831&MNM=DOMYOWN.COM
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=234629077&MCC=5085&MST=IL&MCITY=855-2899676&MNM=ZORO%20TOOLS%20INC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=246957589&MCC=5046&MST=CA&MCITY=916-9221101&MNM=MUNICIPAL%20MAINTENANCE%20EQU
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=246957589&MCC=5046&MST=CA&MCITY=916-9221101&MNM=MUNICIPAL%20MAINTENANCE%20EQU
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=269092564&MCC=5047&MST=CA&MCITY=209-5451691&MNM=IN%20*I.R.I.%20PRODUCTS,%20PRO-
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=269092564&MCC=5047&MST=CA&MCITY=209-5451691&MNM=IN%20*I.R.I.%20PRODUCTS,%20PRO-
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=273497128&MCC=5085&MST=PA&MCITY=844-537-1999&MNM=BUYMETALCOM%20BUYMETALCOM
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=273497128&MCC=5085&MST=PA&MCITY=844-537-1999&MNM=BUYMETALCOM%20BUYMETALCOM
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276580124&MCC=5310&MST=CA&MCITY=HAYWARD&MNM=TARGET%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%2000014720
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276580124&MCC=5310&MST=CA&MCITY=HAYWARD&MNM=TARGET%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%2000014720
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=802091750&MCC=5099&MST=OK&MCITY=402-935-7733&MNM=PAYPAL%20*RCM
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=154282815&MCC=7538&MST=CA&MCITY=HAYWARD&MNM=PANKEYS%20RADIATOR%20SERVICE
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=154282815&MCC=7538&MST=CA&MCITY=HAYWARD&MNM=PANKEYS%20RADIATOR%20SERVICE
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=253078006&MCC=5542&MST=CA&MCITY=N.%20HIGHLANDS&MNM=EXXONMOBIL%20%20%20%2099486706
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=253078006&MCC=5542&MST=CA&MCITY=N.%20HIGHLANDS&MNM=EXXONMOBIL%20%20%20%2099486706
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=267331405&MCC=5533&MST=OH&MCITY=614-210-9192&MNM=SAFELITE%20AUTOGLASS
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=267331405&MCC=5533&MST=OH&MCITY=614-210-9192&MNM=SAFELITE%20AUTOGLASS


State of California

Report Date: 03/25/2019

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail  

Merchant

Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of

Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

47972 OTHER 5999 THOMAS AND 415-884-4501 CA $ 304.00 1 $ 304.00 $ 0.00 0 $ 304.00 0.50% 1 $ 26.12

ASSOCIATES IN

5970 MICHAELS STORES UNION CITY CA 24.67 1 24.67 0.00 0 24.67 0.04% 1 0.00

2076

5999 APEX 630-820-8888 IL 99.52 1 99.52 0.00 0 99.52 0.16% 1 0.00

ENGINEERING 

PRODU

5940 STAGES CYCLING 503-5059538 OR 723.40 1 723.40 0.00 0 723.40 1.20% 1 0.00

7832 0456 AMC NEWARK CA 15.11 1 15.11 0.00 0 15.11 0.03% 1 0.00

NEWPARK 12

5992 1-800-FLOWERS.CO 800-468-1141 NY 162.04 1 162.04 0.00 0 162.04 0.27% 1 14.06

M,INC.

5941 ID WWW.IDENHANCE SC 815.95 1 815.95 0.00 0 815.95 1.35% 1 0.00

ENHANCEMENTS, 

INC.

5735 AMZNFREETIME*M 888-802-3080 WA 6.99 1 6.99 0.00 0 6.99 0.01% 1 0.00

B9837FB2

5818 AMZNFREETIME 888-802-3080 WA 0.00 0 0.00 6.99 1 (6.99) 0.00% 1 0.00

47971 OFFICE 5734 FREMONTFLOWERS STRIPE.COM CA 88.42 1 88.42 0.00 0 88.42 0.15% 1 0.00

SUPPLIES

5734 SWIFTPOINT SYDENHAM 138.95 1 138.95 0.00 0 138.95 0.23% 1 0.00

5942 AMAZON.COM*MB0 AMZN.COM/BILL WA 227.14 1 227.14 0.00 0 227.14 0.38% 1 20.18

VE38E0

5942 AMAZON.COM*MI82 AMZN.COM/BILL WA 127.36 1 127.36 0.00 0 127.36 0.21% 1 11.32

81FP0

5734 SYSTEMTOOLS 830-779-2349 TX 378.00 1 378.00 0.00 0 378.00 0.63% 1 0.00

SOFTWARE INCO

5943 STAPLES       FREMONT CA 93.93 1 93.93 0.00 0 93.93 0.16% 1 7.95

00112995

5942 AMZN MKTP AMZN.COM/BILL WA 184.35 1 184.35 0.00 0 184.35 0.31% 1 16.38

US*MB1XW2PJ2

5942 AMZN MKTP AMZN.COM/BILL WA 26.99 1 26.99 0.00 0 26.99 0.04% 1 0.00

US*MB2LN8PC1

5942 AMZN MKTP AMZN.COM/BILL WA 178.82 1 178.82 0.00 0 178.82 0.30% 1 15.88

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 03/25/2019 10:33:02  Page     4

83 of 112

https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=126183720&MCC=5999&MST=CA&MCITY=415-884-4501&MNM=THOMAS%20AND%20ASSOCIATES%20IN
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=126183720&MCC=5999&MST=CA&MCITY=415-884-4501&MNM=THOMAS%20AND%20ASSOCIATES%20IN
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=131656481&MCC=5970&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=MICHAELS%20STORES%202076
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=131656481&MCC=5970&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=MICHAELS%20STORES%202076
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=145795225&MCC=5999&MST=IL&MCITY=630-820-8888&MNM=APEX%20ENGINEERING%20PRODU
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=145795225&MCC=5999&MST=IL&MCITY=630-820-8888&MNM=APEX%20ENGINEERING%20PRODU
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=145795225&MCC=5999&MST=IL&MCITY=630-820-8888&MNM=APEX%20ENGINEERING%20PRODU
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=179310584&MCC=5940&MST=OR&MCITY=503-5059538&MNM=STAGES%20CYCLING
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=179425561&MCC=7832&MST=CA&MCITY=NEWARK&MNM=0456%20AMC%20NEWPARK%2012
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=179425561&MCC=7832&MST=CA&MCITY=NEWARK&MNM=0456%20AMC%20NEWPARK%2012
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=208998243&MCC=5992&MST=NY&MCITY=800-468-1141&MNM=1-800-FLOWERS.COM,INC.
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=208998243&MCC=5992&MST=NY&MCITY=800-468-1141&MNM=1-800-FLOWERS.COM,INC.
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=265673700&MCC=5941&MST=SC&MCITY=WWW.IDENHANCE&MNM=ID%20ENHANCEMENTS,%20INC.
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=265673700&MCC=5941&MST=SC&MCITY=WWW.IDENHANCE&MNM=ID%20ENHANCEMENTS,%20INC.
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=265673700&MCC=5941&MST=SC&MCITY=WWW.IDENHANCE&MNM=ID%20ENHANCEMENTS,%20INC.
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=273077031&MCC=5735&MST=WA&MCITY=888-802-3080&MNM=AMZNFREETIME*MB9837FB2
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=273077031&MCC=5735&MST=WA&MCITY=888-802-3080&MNM=AMZNFREETIME*MB9837FB2
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=273077031&MCC=5818&MST=WA&MCITY=888-802-3080&MNM=AMZNFREETIME
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=5734&MST=CA&MCITY=STRIPE.COM&MNM=FREMONTFLOWERS
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=5734&MST=%20&MCITY=SYDENHAM&MNM=SWIFTPOINT
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMAZON.COM*MB0VE38E0
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMAZON.COM*MB0VE38E0
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMAZON.COM*MI8281FP0
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMAZON.COM*MI8281FP0
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=120069323&MCC=5734&MST=TX&MCITY=830-779-2349&MNM=SYSTEMTOOLS%20SOFTWARE%20INCO
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=120069323&MCC=5734&MST=TX&MCITY=830-779-2349&MNM=SYSTEMTOOLS%20SOFTWARE%20INCO
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=165614603&MCC=5943&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=STAPLES%20%20%20%20%20%20%2000112995
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=165614603&MCC=5943&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=STAPLES%20%20%20%20%20%20%2000112995
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=208609722&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MB1XW2PJ2
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=208609722&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MB1XW2PJ2
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=208709828&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MB2LN8PC1
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=208709828&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MB2LN8PC1
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=208709828&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MI0UR27D0


State of California

Report Date: 03/25/2019

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail  

Merchant

Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of

Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

47971 OFFICE US*MI0UR27D0

SUPPLIES

5942 AMZN MKTP AMZN.COM/BILL WA 18.99 1 18.99 0.00 0 18.99 0.03% 1 0.00

US*MI1C132G0

5942 AMZN MKTP AMZN.COM/BILL WA 533.39 1 533.39 0.00 0 533.39 0.88% 1 0.00

US*MI1SD0IF1

5942 AMZN MKTP AMZN.COM/BILL WA 26.99 1 26.99 0.00 0 26.99 0.04% 1 0.00

US*MI3MK1TN0 AM

5942 AMZN MKTP AMZN.COM/BILL WA 22.88 1 22.88 0.00 0 22.88 0.04% 1 0.00

US*MI8RA6HN2

5943 INTERNATION 317-871-6999 TN 70.25 1 70.25 0.00 0 70.25 0.12% 1 0.00

5942 AMAZON.COM*MB3 AMZN.COM/BILL WA 43.41 1 43.41 0.00 0 43.41 0.07% 1 3.86

H82BA2

5942 AMAZON.COM*MB4 AMZN.COM/BILL WA 26.91 1 26.91 0.00 0 26.91 0.04% 1 2.39

PJ7Y81

5942 AMAZON.COM*MB8 AMZN.COM/BILL WA 37.34 1 37.34 0.00 0 37.34 0.06% 1 3.32

6O87L0

5942 AMAZON.COM*MI0T AMZN.COM/BILL WA 54.98 1 54.98 0.00 0 54.98 0.09% 1 4.88

P8CI0

5942 AMAZON.COM*MI2B AMZN.COM/BILL WA 85.92 1 85.92 0.00 0 85.92 0.14% 1 7.63

U38B2

5942 AMAZON.COM*MI5 AMZN.COM/BILL WA 43.24 1 43.24 0.00 0 43.24 0.07% 1 3.84

U84V71

5942 AMAZON.COM*MI5X AMZN.COM/BILL WA 104.13 1 104.13 0.00 0 104.13 0.17% 1 9.25

K2RR2

5942 AMAZON.COM*MI7Z AMZN.COM/BILL WA 13.04 1 13.04 0.00 0 13.04 0.02% 1 1.16

Y65Y0

5942 AMZN MKTP AMZN.COM/BILL WA 17.88 1 17.88 0.00 0 17.88 0.03% 1 0.00

US*MB0GD6IT1

5942 AMZN MKTP AMZN.COM/BILL WA 201.90 1 201.90 0.00 0 201.90 0.33% 1 14.92

US*MB1T54XI0

5942 AMZN MKTP AMZN.COM/BILL WA 105.34 1 105.34 0.00 0 105.34 0.17% 1 9.36

US*MB2249502

5942 AMZN MKTP AMZN.COM/BILL WA 323.89 1 323.89 0.00 0 323.89 0.54% 1 21.89

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 03/25/2019 10:33:02  Page     5

84 of 112

https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=208709828&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MI0UR27D0
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=208709828&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MI1C132G0
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=208709828&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MI1C132G0
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=208709828&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MI1SD0IF1
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=208709828&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MI1SD0IF1
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=208709828&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MI3MK1TN0%20AM
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=208709828&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MI3MK1TN0%20AM
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=208709828&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MI8RA6HN2
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=208709828&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MI8RA6HN2
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=220185887&MCC=5943&MST=TN&MCITY=317-871-6999&MNM=INTERNATION
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMAZON.COM*MB3H82BA2
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMAZON.COM*MB3H82BA2
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMAZON.COM*MB4PJ7Y81
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMAZON.COM*MB4PJ7Y81
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMAZON.COM*MB86O87L0
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMAZON.COM*MB86O87L0
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMAZON.COM*MI0TP8CI0
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMAZON.COM*MI0TP8CI0
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMAZON.COM*MI2BU38B2
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMAZON.COM*MI2BU38B2
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMAZON.COM*MI5U84V71
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMAZON.COM*MI5U84V71
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMAZON.COM*MI5XK2RR2
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMAZON.COM*MI5XK2RR2
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMAZON.COM*MI7ZY65Y0
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMAZON.COM*MI7ZY65Y0
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MB0GD6IT1
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MB0GD6IT1
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MB1T54XI0
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MB1T54XI0
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MB2249502
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MB2249502
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MB3TH2TL1


State of California

Report Date: 03/25/2019

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail  

Merchant

Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of

Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

47971 OFFICE US*MB3TH2TL1

SUPPLIES

5942 AMZN MKTP AMZN.COM/BILL WA 79.99 1 79.99 0.00 0 79.99 0.13% 1 0.00

US*MB4MY2UA2

5942 AMZN MKTP AMZN.COM/BILL WA 11.98 1 11.98 0.00 0 11.98 0.02% 1 0.00

US*MB6BS1A71

5942 AMZN MKTP AMZN.COM/BILL WA 34.64 1 34.64 0.00 0 34.64 0.06% 1 1.17

US*MB72531V1

5942 AMZN MKTP AMZN.COM/BILL WA 45.39 1 45.39 0.00 0 45.39 0.08% 1 3.50

US*MB7PO7FL2

5942 AMZN MKTP AMZN.COM/BILL WA 310.32 1 310.32 0.00 0 310.32 0.51% 1 22.32

US*MB9XA3IS0

5942 AMZN MKTP AMZN.COM/BILL WA 69.18 1 69.18 0.00 0 69.18 0.11% 1 0.00

US*MI1TY0XI0

5942 AMZN MKTP AMZN.COM/BILL WA 744.92 1 744.92 0.00 0 744.92 1.23% 1 51.97

US*MI4M65VT0

5942 AMZN MKTP AMZN.COM/BILL WA 8.20 1 8.20 0.00 0 8.20 0.01% 1 0.73

US*MI5KB1X81

5942 AMZN MKTP AMZN.COM/BILL WA 23.37 1 23.37 0.00 0 23.37 0.04% 1 1.88

US*MI63G2RP0

5942 AMZN MKTP AMZN.COM/BILL WA 18.99 1 18.99 0.00 0 18.99 0.03% 1 0.00

US*MI6IF2OV1

5942 AMZN MKTP AMZN.COM/BILL WA 84.51 1 84.51 0.00 0 84.51 0.14% 1 0.00

US*MI8IG1OA2

5942 AMZN MKTP AMZN.COM/BILL WA 25.44 1 25.44 0.00 0 25.44 0.04% 1 0.00

US*MW1LJ9L50

5942 AMZN MKTP AMZN.COM/BILL WA 39.98 1 39.98 0.00 0 39.98 0.07% 1 0.00

US*MW5TC1TJ0

5942 AMZN MKTP AMZN.COM/BILL WA 19.99 1 19.99 0.00 0 19.99 0.03% 1 0.00

US*MW7CQ6J21

47970 OFFICE 7311 YAHOO SMALL 866-800-8092 CA 27.88 2 13.94 0.00 0 27.88 0.05% 2 0.00

SERVICES BUSINESS

5968 WEB*NETWORKSO 888-6429675 FL 15.99 1 15.99 0.00 0 15.99 0.03% 1 0.00

LUTIONS

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 03/25/2019 10:33:02  Page     6

85 of 112

https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MB3TH2TL1
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MB4MY2UA2
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MB4MY2UA2
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MB6BS1A71
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MB6BS1A71
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MB72531V1
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MB72531V1
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MB7PO7FL2
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MB7PO7FL2
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MB9XA3IS0
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MB9XA3IS0
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MI1TY0XI0
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MI1TY0XI0
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MI4M65VT0
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MI4M65VT0
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MI5KB1X81
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MI5KB1X81
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MI63G2RP0
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MI63G2RP0
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MI6IF2OV1
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MI6IF2OV1
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MI8IG1OA2
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MI8IG1OA2
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MW1LJ9L50
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MW1LJ9L50
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MW5TC1TJ0
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MW5TC1TJ0
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MW7CQ6J21
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276996299&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US*MW7CQ6J21
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=130174254&MCC=7311&MST=CA&MCITY=866-800-8092&MNM=YAHOO%20SMALL%20BUSINESS
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=130174254&MCC=7311&MST=CA&MCITY=866-800-8092&MNM=YAHOO%20SMALL%20BUSINESS
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=134617336&MCC=5968&MST=FL&MCITY=888-6429675&MNM=WEB*NETWORKSOLUTIONS
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=134617336&MCC=5968&MST=FL&MCITY=888-6429675&MNM=WEB*NETWORKSOLUTIONS


State of California

Report Date: 03/25/2019

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail  

Merchant

Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of

Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

47970 OFFICE 7399 PUBLIC RISK 703-5287701 VA $ 595.00 1 $ 595.00 $ 0.00 0 $ 595.00 0.99% 1 $ 0.00

SERVICES MANAGEMENT

7399 HTTP://WEBEX.COM 916-861-3174 CA 38.00 2 19.00 0.00 0 38.00 0.06% 2 0.00

5968 WWW.MINDTOOLS. MINDTOOLS.COM 190.00 1 190.00 0.00 0 190.00 0.31% 1 0.00

COM

7399 IN *D.B.I. 512-3031941 TX 240.24 1 240.24 0.00 0 240.24 0.40% 1 0.00

7399 IN *PENINSULA 559-7346328 CA 425.00 1 425.00 0.00 0 425.00 0.70% 1 0.00

MESSENGER S

7399 IN *WILEY 310-6409093 CA 40.63 1 40.63 0.00 0 40.63 0.07% 1 2.76

EQUIPMENT COMPA

7392 WPY*DKF 855-4693729 CA 725.00 3 241.67 245.00 1 480.00 0.79% 4 0.00

SOLUTIONS GROUP

8911 ENGINEERSEALSC 866-256-9990 TX 37.45 1 37.45 0.00 0 37.45 0.06% 1 0.00

OM LLC

7311 EAST BAY TIMES 925-935-2525 CA 26.30 1 26.30 0.00 0 26.30 0.04% 1 0.00

7361 ZIPRECRUITER, 855-747-5493 CA 249.00 1 249.00 0.00 0 249.00 0.41% 1 0.00

INC.

7375 HADRONEX 760-291-1980 CA 350.15 1 350.15 0.00 0 350.15 0.58% 1 0.00

7361 ZIPRECRUITER, 855-747-5493 CA 498.00 2 249.00 0.00 0 498.00 0.82% 2 0.00

INC.

7333 SAFETYSIGN.COM 800-2746271 NJ 139.66 1 139.66 0.00 0 139.66 0.23% 1 0.00

2741 LOGOWEAR 209-367-0596 CA 821.23 1 821.23 0.00 0 821.23 1.36% 1 57.74

47969 MRO SUPPLIES 5969 FLUID 760-7446950 CA 1,206.87 1 1,206.87 0.00 0 1,206.87 2.00% 1 0.00

COMPONENTS INTL

47966 MAIL/TELEPHON 5965 OFFICE DEPOT  800-463-3768 CA 268.88 1 268.88 0.00 0 268.88 0.45% 1 23.89

E 1135

5965 NASCO  FORT 920-5685511 WI 18.39 1 18.39 0.00 0 18.39 0.03% 1 0.55

ATKINSON

5964 ULINE  *SHIP 800-295-5510 WI 56.08 1 56.08 0.00 0 56.08 0.09% 1 3.70

SUPPLIES

47965 HOTELS 3750 CROWNE PLAZA SACRAMENTO CA 1,498.96 2 749.48 0.00 0 1,498.96 2.48% 2 0.00

3640 HYATT REGENCY 5058326210 NM 135.51 1 135.51 0.00 0 135.51 0.22% 1 0.00

ALBUQUERQU

3609 GAYLORD PALMS 866-435-7627 FL 227.86 1 227.86 0.00 0 227.86 0.38% 1 0.00

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 03/25/2019 10:33:02  Page     7

86 of 112

https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=142992638&MCC=7399&MST=VA&MCITY=703-5287701&MNM=PUBLIC%20RISK%20MANAGEMENT
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=142992638&MCC=7399&MST=VA&MCITY=703-5287701&MNM=PUBLIC%20RISK%20MANAGEMENT
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=165471378&MCC=7399&MST=CA&MCITY=916-861-3174&MNM=HTTP%3A//WEBEX.COM
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=185876644&MCC=5968&MST=%20&MCITY=MINDTOOLS.COM&MNM=WWW.MINDTOOLS.COM
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=185876644&MCC=5968&MST=%20&MCITY=MINDTOOLS.COM&MNM=WWW.MINDTOOLS.COM
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=198058927&MCC=7399&MST=TX&MCITY=512-3031941&MNM=IN%20*D.B.I.
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=198058927&MCC=7399&MST=CA&MCITY=559-7346328&MNM=IN%20*PENINSULA%20MESSENGER%20S
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=198058927&MCC=7399&MST=CA&MCITY=559-7346328&MNM=IN%20*PENINSULA%20MESSENGER%20S
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=198058927&MCC=7399&MST=CA&MCITY=310-6409093&MNM=IN%20*WILEY%20EQUIPMENT%20COMPA
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=198058927&MCC=7399&MST=CA&MCITY=310-6409093&MNM=IN%20*WILEY%20EQUIPMENT%20COMPA
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=205706996&MCC=7392&MST=CA&MCITY=855-4693729&MNM=WPY*DKF%20SOLUTIONS%20GROUP
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=205706996&MCC=7392&MST=CA&MCITY=855-4693729&MNM=WPY*DKF%20SOLUTIONS%20GROUP
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=215319238&MCC=8911&MST=TX&MCITY=866-256-9990&MNM=ENGINEERSEALSCOM%20LLC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=215319238&MCC=8911&MST=TX&MCITY=866-256-9990&MNM=ENGINEERSEALSCOM%20LLC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=228864525&MCC=7311&MST=CA&MCITY=925-935-2525&MNM=EAST%20BAY%20TIMES
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=255320538&MCC=7361&MST=CA&MCITY=855-747-5493&MNM=ZIPRECRUITER,%20INC.
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=255320538&MCC=7361&MST=CA&MCITY=855-747-5493&MNM=ZIPRECRUITER,%20INC.
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=265852686&MCC=7375&MST=CA&MCITY=760-291-1980&MNM=HADRONEX
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=266456774&MCC=7361&MST=CA&MCITY=855-747-5493&MNM=ZIPRECRUITER,%20INC.
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=266456774&MCC=7361&MST=CA&MCITY=855-747-5493&MNM=ZIPRECRUITER,%20INC.
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=266549059&MCC=7333&MST=NJ&MCITY=800-2746271&MNM=SAFETYSIGN.COM
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=267926295&MCC=2741&MST=CA&MCITY=209-367-0596&MNM=LOGOWEAR
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=151605214&MCC=5969&MST=CA&MCITY=760-7446950&MNM=FLUID%20COMPONENTS%20INTL
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=151605214&MCC=5969&MST=CA&MCITY=760-7446950&MNM=FLUID%20COMPONENTS%20INTL
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=120168084&MCC=5965&MST=CA&MCITY=800-463-3768&MNM=OFFICE%20DEPOT%20%201135
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=120168084&MCC=5965&MST=CA&MCITY=800-463-3768&MNM=OFFICE%20DEPOT%20%201135
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=166024694&MCC=5965&MST=WI&MCITY=920-5685511&MNM=NASCO%20%20FORT%20ATKINSON
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=166024694&MCC=5965&MST=WI&MCITY=920-5685511&MNM=NASCO%20%20FORT%20ATKINSON
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=206502333&MCC=5964&MST=WI&MCITY=800-295-5510&MNM=ULINE%20%20*SHIP%20SUPPLIES
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=206502333&MCC=5964&MST=WI&MCITY=800-295-5510&MNM=ULINE%20%20*SHIP%20SUPPLIES
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=170134709&MCC=3750&MST=CA&MCITY=SACRAMENTO&MNM=CROWNE%20PLAZA
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=215149381&MCC=3640&MST=NM&MCITY=5058326210&MNM=HYATT%20REGENCY%20ALBUQUERQU
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=215149381&MCC=3640&MST=NM&MCITY=5058326210&MNM=HYATT%20REGENCY%20ALBUQUERQU
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=271584705&MCC=3609&MST=FL&MCITY=866-435-7627&MNM=GAYLORD%20PALMS%20HOTEL%20FL


State of California

Report Date: 03/25/2019

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail  

Merchant

Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of

Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

47965 HOTELS HOTEL FL

47964 EATING/DRINKIN 5499 WISE COMPANY INC 801-427-2499 UT 1,525.45 1 1,525.45 0.00 0 1,525.45 2.53% 1 0.00

G

5499 CHICAGOS PIZZA 510-324-3700 CA 84.69 1 84.69 0.00 0 84.69 0.14% 1 7.52

W A TWIS

47963 BUSINESS 8699 CALIFORNIA 510-3827800 CA 5,061.00 16 316.31 0.00 0 5,061.00 8.38% 16 0.00

EXPENS WATER ENVIRONM

8699 CMTA 916-2312144 CA 195.00 1 195.00 0.00 0 195.00 0.32% 1 0.00

8699 AMERICAN 210-226-4600 TX 4,089.00 3 1,363.00 0.00 0 4,089.00 6.77% 3 0.00

PAYROLL ASSOC

9399 CITY OF FREMONT FREMONT CA 4,320.00 2 2,160.00 0.00 0 4,320.00 7.15% 2 0.00

DEV SVCS

8699 CAPIO - CA 530-9245444 CA 530.00 1 530.00 0.00 0 530.00 0.88% 1 0.00

ASSOCIATION OF

8398 NACE 800-797-6223 TX 280.00 1 280.00 0.00 0 280.00 0.46% 1 0.00

INTERNATIONAL

8699 ASQ ECOMMERCE 414-2728575 WI 921.00 4 230.25 0.00 0 921.00 1.53% 4 0.00

8699 WEF MAIN 703-684-2400 VA 1,676.00 5 335.20 0.00 0 1,676.00 2.78% 5 0.00

8299 FREDPRYOR 800-5563012 KS 224.00 1 224.00 0.00 0 224.00 0.37% 1 0.00

CAREERTRACK

8699 NATIONAL 703-7368900 VA 732.00 2 366.00 0.00 0 732.00 1.21% 2 0.00

INSITUTE OF GOVE

8398 CALIFORNIA 916-2312137 CA 110.00 1 110.00 0.00 0 110.00 0.18% 1 0.00

SOCIETY OF MUN

8641 CALIFORNIA 916-442-7887 CA 110.00 2 55.00 0.00 0 110.00 0.18% 2 0.00

SPECIAL DISTRI

9399 CA DEPT PEST 916-4453891 CA 60.00 1 60.00 0.00 0 60.00 0.10% 1 0.00

REGS LICENSI

8641 FREMONT 510-7952244 CA 250.00 1 250.00 0.00 0 250.00 0.41% 1 0.00

CHAMBER OF 

COMMER

8999 TELOG 585-7423000 CA 279.71 1 279.71 0.00 0 279.71 0.46% 1 0.00

INSTRUMENTS, INC

8699 INT'L CODE 888-422-7233 IL 85.00 1 85.00 0.00 0 85.00 0.14% 1 0.00

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 03/25/2019 10:33:02  Page     8

87 of 112

https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=271584705&MCC=3609&MST=FL&MCITY=866-435-7627&MNM=GAYLORD%20PALMS%20HOTEL%20FL
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=128745492&MCC=5499&MST=UT&MCITY=801-427-2499&MNM=WISE%20COMPANY%20INC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=229155764&MCC=5499&MST=CA&MCITY=510-324-3700&MNM=CHICAGOS%20PIZZA%20W%20A%20TWIS
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=229155764&MCC=5499&MST=CA&MCITY=510-324-3700&MNM=CHICAGOS%20PIZZA%20W%20A%20TWIS
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=126086712&MCC=8699&MST=CA&MCITY=510-3827800&MNM=CALIFORNIA%20WATER%20ENVIRONM
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=126086712&MCC=8699&MST=CA&MCITY=510-3827800&MNM=CALIFORNIA%20WATER%20ENVIRONM
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=128830777&MCC=8699&MST=CA&MCITY=916-2312144&MNM=CMTA
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=137162010&MCC=8699&MST=TX&MCITY=210-226-4600&MNM=AMERICAN%20PAYROLL%20ASSOC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=137162010&MCC=8699&MST=TX&MCITY=210-226-4600&MNM=AMERICAN%20PAYROLL%20ASSOC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=137553455&MCC=9399&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=CITY%20OF%20FREMONT%20DEV%20SVCS
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=137553455&MCC=9399&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=CITY%20OF%20FREMONT%20DEV%20SVCS
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=146372040&MCC=8699&MST=CA&MCITY=530-9245444&MNM=CAPIO%20-%20CA%20ASSOCIATION%20OF
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=146372040&MCC=8699&MST=CA&MCITY=530-9245444&MNM=CAPIO%20-%20CA%20ASSOCIATION%20OF
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=148746185&MCC=8398&MST=TX&MCITY=800-797-6223&MNM=NACE%20INTERNATIONAL
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=148746185&MCC=8398&MST=TX&MCITY=800-797-6223&MNM=NACE%20INTERNATIONAL
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=151400018&MCC=8699&MST=WI&MCITY=414-2728575&MNM=ASQ%20ECOMMERCE
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=163193326&MCC=8699&MST=VA&MCITY=703-684-2400&MNM=WEF%20MAIN
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=166012999&MCC=8299&MST=KS&MCITY=800-5563012&MNM=FREDPRYOR%20CAREERTRACK
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=166012999&MCC=8299&MST=KS&MCITY=800-5563012&MNM=FREDPRYOR%20CAREERTRACK
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=217107317&MCC=8699&MST=VA&MCITY=703-7368900&MNM=NATIONAL%20INSITUTE%20OF%20GOVE
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=217107317&MCC=8699&MST=VA&MCITY=703-7368900&MNM=NATIONAL%20INSITUTE%20OF%20GOVE
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=227717986&MCC=8398&MST=CA&MCITY=916-2312137&MNM=CALIFORNIA%20SOCIETY%20OF%20MUN
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=227717986&MCC=8398&MST=CA&MCITY=916-2312137&MNM=CALIFORNIA%20SOCIETY%20OF%20MUN
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=229200027&MCC=8641&MST=CA&MCITY=916-442-7887&MNM=CALIFORNIA%20SPECIAL%20DISTRI
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=229200027&MCC=8641&MST=CA&MCITY=916-442-7887&MNM=CALIFORNIA%20SPECIAL%20DISTRI
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=230702021&MCC=9399&MST=CA&MCITY=916-4453891&MNM=CA%20DEPT%20PEST%20REGS%20LICENSI
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=230702021&MCC=9399&MST=CA&MCITY=916-4453891&MNM=CA%20DEPT%20PEST%20REGS%20LICENSI
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=230926146&MCC=8641&MST=CA&MCITY=510-7952244&MNM=FREMONT%20CHAMBER%20OF%20COMMER
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=230926146&MCC=8641&MST=CA&MCITY=510-7952244&MNM=FREMONT%20CHAMBER%20OF%20COMMER
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=230926146&MCC=8641&MST=CA&MCITY=510-7952244&MNM=FREMONT%20CHAMBER%20OF%20COMMER
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=231492791&MCC=8999&MST=CA&MCITY=585-7423000&MNM=TELOG%20INSTRUMENTS,%20INC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=231492791&MCC=8999&MST=CA&MCITY=585-7423000&MNM=TELOG%20INSTRUMENTS,%20INC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=233226085&MCC=8699&MST=IL&MCITY=888-422-7233&MNM=INT%27%27L%20CODE%20COUNCIL%20INC


State of California

Report Date: 03/25/2019

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail  

Merchant

Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of

Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

47963 BUSINESS COUNCIL INC

EXPENS

8699 NATIONAL 703-5602391 VA 50.00 1 50.00 0.00 0 50.00 0.08% 1 0.00

COMMISSION FOR T

8699 CALIFORNIA 800-592-1970 CA 410.00 3 136.67 0.00 0 410.00 0.68% 3 0.00

ASSOCIATION OF

8398 UPPCC 859-5149150 KY 525.00 2 262.50 0.00 0 525.00 0.87% 2 0.00

8398 INT PERSONNEL 510-4325959 CA 297.00 3 99.00 0.00 0 297.00 0.49% 3 0.00

MGMT ASSOC

8299 CALIFORNIA CPA 800-9225272 CA 66.00 1 66.00 66.00 1 0.00 0.00% 2 0.00

EDUCATION

8699 GOVERNMENT CHICAGO IL 280.00 1 280.00 0.00 0 280.00 0.46% 1 0.00

FINANCE OFFIC

8299 PESTICIDE 916-4412272 CA 205.00 3 68.33 0.00 0 205.00 0.34% 3 0.00

APPLICATORS PRO

8244 PAYPAL 402-935-7733 CA 155.00 1 155.00 0.00 0 155.00 0.26% 1 0.00

*PUBLICSECTO

8398 PAYPAL *CWEA 402-935-7733 CA 800.00 1 800.00 0.00 0 800.00 1.32% 1 0.00

8299 PAYPAL *CAPIO 402-935-7733 CA 115.00 1 115.00 0.00 0 115.00 0.19% 1 0.00

47962 BUILDING 1711 APPLIED AIR 510-7421101 CA 36.32 1 36.32 0.00 0 36.32 0.06% 1 0.00

SERVIC FILTERS

1799 SAN LEANDRO SAN LEANDRO CA 57.75 1 57.75 0.00 0 57.75 0.10% 1 5.13

DOOR COMPANY

47961 AUTO/RV 5561 AMERICAN TRUCK 800-4998985 CA 107.70 1 107.70 0.00 0 107.70 0.18% 1 8.34

DEALERS AND TRAILE

47960 AIRLINE 3256 ALASKA AIR  SEATTLE WA 171.60 1 171.60 0.00 0 171.60 0.28% 1 0.00

0277252740668

3256 ALASKA AIR  SEATTLE WA 369.60 1 369.60 0.00 0 369.60 0.61% 1 0.00

0272115788738

3001 AMERICAN FORT WORTH TX 410.99 1 410.99 0.00 0 410.99 0.68% 1 0.00

AIR0012335128912

3066 SOUTHWES    800-435-9792 TX 183.96 1 183.96 0.00 0 183.96 0.30% 1 0.00

5262426075353

3066 SOUTHWES    800-435-9792 TX 107.96 1 107.96 0.00 0 107.96 0.18% 1 0.00

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 03/25/2019 10:33:02  Page     9

88 of 112

https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=233226085&MCC=8699&MST=IL&MCITY=888-422-7233&MNM=INT%27%27L%20CODE%20COUNCIL%20INC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=237258873&MCC=8699&MST=VA&MCITY=703-5602391&MNM=NATIONAL%20COMMISSION%20FOR%20T
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=237258873&MCC=8699&MST=VA&MCITY=703-5602391&MNM=NATIONAL%20COMMISSION%20FOR%20T
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=251164140&MCC=8699&MST=CA&MCITY=800-592-1970&MNM=CALIFORNIA%20ASSOCIATION%20OF
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=251164140&MCC=8699&MST=CA&MCITY=800-592-1970&MNM=CALIFORNIA%20ASSOCIATION%20OF
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=255622151&MCC=8398&MST=KY&MCITY=859-5149150&MNM=UPPCC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=262913796&MCC=8398&MST=CA&MCITY=510-4325959&MNM=INT%20PERSONNEL%20MGMT%20ASSOC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=262913796&MCC=8398&MST=CA&MCITY=510-4325959&MNM=INT%20PERSONNEL%20MGMT%20ASSOC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=266812285&MCC=8299&MST=CA&MCITY=800-9225272&MNM=CALIFORNIA%20CPA%20EDUCATION
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=266812285&MCC=8299&MST=CA&MCITY=800-9225272&MNM=CALIFORNIA%20CPA%20EDUCATION
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=270062175&MCC=8699&MST=IL&MCITY=CHICAGO&MNM=GOVERNMENT%20FINANCE%20OFFIC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=270062175&MCC=8699&MST=IL&MCITY=CHICAGO&MNM=GOVERNMENT%20FINANCE%20OFFIC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276115275&MCC=8299&MST=CA&MCITY=916-4412272&MNM=PESTICIDE%20APPLICATORS%20PRO
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=276115275&MCC=8299&MST=CA&MCITY=916-4412272&MNM=PESTICIDE%20APPLICATORS%20PRO
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=800074502&MCC=8244&MST=CA&MCITY=402-935-7733&MNM=PAYPAL%20*PUBLICSECTO
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=800074502&MCC=8244&MST=CA&MCITY=402-935-7733&MNM=PAYPAL%20*PUBLICSECTO
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=804927217&MCC=8398&MST=CA&MCITY=402-935-7733&MNM=PAYPAL%20*CWEA
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=832793625&MCC=8299&MST=CA&MCITY=402-935-7733&MNM=PAYPAL%20*CAPIO
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=137267090&MCC=1711&MST=CA&MCITY=510-7421101&MNM=APPLIED%20AIR%20FILTERS
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=137267090&MCC=1711&MST=CA&MCITY=510-7421101&MNM=APPLIED%20AIR%20FILTERS
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=163008753&MCC=1799&MST=CA&MCITY=SAN%20LEANDRO&MNM=SAN%20LEANDRO%20DOOR%20COMPANY
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=163008753&MCC=1799&MST=CA&MCITY=SAN%20LEANDRO&MNM=SAN%20LEANDRO%20DOOR%20COMPANY
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=163137985&MCC=5561&MST=CA&MCITY=800-4998985&MNM=AMERICAN%20TRUCK%20AND%20TRAILE
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=163137985&MCC=5561&MST=CA&MCITY=800-4998985&MNM=AMERICAN%20TRUCK%20AND%20TRAILE
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=170027743&MCC=3256&MST=WA&MCITY=SEATTLE&MNM=ALASKA%20AIR%20%200277252740668
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=170027743&MCC=3256&MST=WA&MCITY=SEATTLE&MNM=ALASKA%20AIR%20%200277252740668
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=170210871&MCC=3256&MST=WA&MCITY=SEATTLE&MNM=ALASKA%20AIR%20%200272115788738
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=170210871&MCC=3256&MST=WA&MCITY=SEATTLE&MNM=ALASKA%20AIR%20%200272115788738
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=179811976&MCC=3001&MST=TX&MCITY=FORT%20WORTH&MNM=AMERICAN%20AIR0012335128912
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=179811976&MCC=3001&MST=TX&MCITY=FORT%20WORTH&MNM=AMERICAN%20AIR0012335128912
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=257752520&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205262426075353
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=257752520&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205262426075353
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=257752520&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205262437454932


State of California

Report Date: 03/25/2019

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail  

Merchant

Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of

Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

47960 AIRLINE 5262437454932

3066 SOUTHWES    800-435-9792 TX 97.96 1 97.96 0.00 0 97.96 0.16% 1 0.00

5262440239372

3000 UNITED      800-932-2732 TX 463.00 1 463.00 0.00 0 463.00 0.77% 1 0.00

0162439726139

3000 UNITED      800-932-2732 TX 12.00 1 12.00 0.00 0 12.00 0.02% 1 0.00

0162929319186

3000 UNITED      800-932-2732 TX 12.00 1 12.00 0.00 0 12.00 0.02% 1 0.00

0162929319187

3000 UNITED      800-932-2732 TX 12.00 1 12.00 0.00 0 12.00 0.02% 1 0.00

0162929319188

3000 UNITED      800-932-2732 TX 12.00 1 12.00 0.00 0 12.00 0.02% 1 0.00

0162929319189

Total $60,752.70 $ 362.03 $60,390.67 251 $ 1,284.84

Total Number of Records:         175

End of Report

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 03/25/2019 10:33:02  Page    10

89 of 112

https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=257752520&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205262437454932
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=257752520&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205262440239372
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=257752520&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205262440239372
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=272922045&MCC=3000&MST=TX&MCITY=800-932-2732&MNM=UNITED%20%20%20%20%20%200162439726139
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=272922045&MCC=3000&MST=TX&MCITY=800-932-2732&MNM=UNITED%20%20%20%20%20%200162439726139
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=272922045&MCC=3000&MST=TX&MCITY=800-932-2732&MNM=UNITED%20%20%20%20%20%200162929319186
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=272922045&MCC=3000&MST=TX&MCITY=800-932-2732&MNM=UNITED%20%20%20%20%20%200162929319186
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=272922045&MCC=3000&MST=TX&MCITY=800-932-2732&MNM=UNITED%20%20%20%20%20%200162929319187
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=272922045&MCC=3000&MST=TX&MCITY=800-932-2732&MNM=UNITED%20%20%20%20%20%200162929319187
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=272922045&MCC=3000&MST=TX&MCITY=800-932-2732&MNM=UNITED%20%20%20%20%20%200162929319188
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=272922045&MCC=3000&MST=TX&MCITY=800-932-2732&MNM=UNITED%20%20%20%20%20%200162929319188
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=272922045&MCC=3000&MST=TX&MCITY=800-932-2732&MNM=UNITED%20%20%20%20%20%200162929319189
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=272922045&MCC=3000&MST=TX&MCITY=800-932-2732&MNM=UNITED%20%20%20%20%20%200162929319189


State of California
Report Date: 03/25/2019            

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail Output Parameter Page

Cycle Close Date Range: 01/2019 to 03/2019
Report Type: Detail

Merchant Profile Source: Association
Merchant Names: All

Merchant Category Code Group: All
Merchant States: All

Sort Report By: (1) MCCG, (2) No Sort, (3) No Sort, (4) No Sort
Break/Subtotal Level: No Break/Subtotal

 Processing Hierarchy Position: Bank Agent Company Division Department

1425 3135 51756 All All

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 03/25/2019 10:33:02 / MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1553527979540_2980_06099477132474895  Page    11

90 of 112



SAN TARY

DISTRICT

APRIL 22, 2019

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

AGENDA ITEM #16

Directors

Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley
Pat Kite

Anjall Ijthi
Jennifer Toy

Officers

Paul R. Eldredge

Cenerol Manager/
District Engineer

Karen W. Murphy
Attorney

TITLE: Board Expenses for 3rd Quarter of Fiscal Year 2019 (This is an Information

Item)

SUBMITTED: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer
Laurie Brenner, FASTTeam Coach

Recommendation

Information only.

Previous Board Action

None

Background

Please see attached the Board of Directors Quarterly Travel and Training Expenditure Report
for the 3rd quarter of Fiscal Year 2019.

91 of 112



BOARD OF DIRECTORS
QUARTERLY TRAVEL AND TRAINING EXPENDITURE REPORT

3RD QTR, FISCAL YEAR 2019

Board Members Destrlptlon IstQtr 2nd Qtr 3rdQtr 4th Qtr

Beginning

Balance

Y-T-D

Expense

Balance

Available

FERNANDEZ, MANNY

Lodging - Annual CASA Conference

Mileage - Annual CASA Conference

Meals - Annual CASA Conference

Reglstralon - Annual CASA Conference

Union City State of the City Luncheon

646 80

100.93

139.00

S7S.OO

30.00

::S00»po::::::::::::l'i5.4l;:73::x:x^S8a7:

HANOLEY.TOM

25% of Ipad and accessories purchase costs
Lodging - Annual CASA Conference
Mileage - Annual CASA Conference

Meals • Annual CASA Conference

Reglstralon • Annual CASA Conference

;:atO;67::

x97;28-:

::iS9iQQ::

total! !'! !i;aia.75 :50Ctt0o: : iijaiKTS: vxaiBiJS

HARRISON, JENNIFER

Union City State of the City Luncheon

Online Sexual Harassment Prevention Training
30.00

::SS;00.:

total! O.o6;^xx;xj:3iaijo;|;:;x-x;:;:s5id<j:ts^ ::Spoiloo::X x::: iasiooxxrASisJO

KITE, pat

Lorman All Access Education Pass

Newark Chamber of Commerce Holiday Luncheon

Online Sexual Harassment Prevention Training

537.01

TOTAL OiOO

::48:qp:;
::9S:ii6i

t^xXx-aTjaiiixXxXioa^^^^ x::5000.on; X ;640iOi:::x43S9;99

LATHI, ANJALI

Lorman Education Services Membership

Lorman All Access Education Pass

CWEA Membership

383 58

x:;:329;25::

TOTALAL|
GRAND TOTi

The Board of Directors' Quarterly Expenditure
Report Is attached as part of the check register

In accordance with Board Member Business

Expense policy adopted September 5,1991

 383.581
^! 3,714!C6|

383.58 tXxXxXp^llxXxXSffiZSl^XxXrlLOq X:5BBO:oo.X:X:X:X9qo:83:X:X:4P99;i7

597.01 675.25 0.00 25000.00 4,98632 20013.68

92 of 112



Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 

Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 

Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

TITLE: 

APRIL 22, 2019 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

AGENDA ITEM # 17 

National Association of Clean Water Agencies (NACWA) 2019 Winter 
Conference (This is an Information Item) 

SUBMITTED: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
Armando Lopez, Treatment & Disposal Work Group Manager 

Recommendation 

Information only. 

Previous Board Action 

None 

Background 

NACWA held its annual Winter conference on February 5-8, 2019 and was attended by the 
Treatment and Disposal Manager (T&D Manager).  The following is a summary of the 
presentations from the conference attended by the T&D Manager. Handouts are available for 
some of the presentations.  The general event agenda and presentations are available at the 
following URL, https://engagefully.org/Sessions/Index/12269, in the event there is a 
preference to explore the entire event at your convenience. 

• Biosolids Management Committee
• Joint Climate & Resiliency and Stormwater Management Committee
• Utility & Resource Management Committee
• Legislative & Regulatory Policy Committee
• The Clean Water Act/Safe Drinking Water Act Nexus- The Federal Regulatory

Perspective.

93 of 112

https://engagefully.org/Sessions/Index/12269


• From Emerging Contaminants to Emerged- What these “Here Now” Contaminants 
Mean for the water sector. 

• Managing for Main Street or Wall Street? 
• How Smart Capital Spending Opens the Door to Community Benefits 

 

94 of 112



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

03/30/2019-04/12/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

DIGESTER NO. 3 INSP & REHAB19171909170768 $232,074.98 $232,074.98MONTEREY MECHANICAL CO4/4/2019 143

NEWARK EQUALIZATION STORAGE FACILITIES175556170741 $11,723.87 $105,348.75CAROLLO ENGINEERS4/4/2019 143

ALVARADO INFLUENT PS PUMPS AND VFDS175549 $93,624.884/4/2019 143

ODOR CONTROL ALTERNATIVES STUDY689940CH003170742 $95,866.19 $95,866.19CH2M HILL INC4/4/2019 143

FREMONT & PASEO PADRE LS IMPROVEMENTS800444.12170770 $72,878.27 $72,878.27MOUNTAIN CASCADE INC4/4/2019 143

FEBRUARY 2019 BIOSOLIDS DISPOSAL30105150170843 $67,139.88 $67,139.88SYNAGRO WEST LLC4/11/2019 110

45,540 LBS CLARIFLOC C-62671335872170836 $50,694.86 $50,694.86POLYDYNE INC4/11/2019 110

RST CAMERA EQUIPMENT92137518170784 $39,238.26 $41,203.44SUBSITE ELECTRONICS4/4/2019 121

RST CAMERA EQUIP92137519 $1,965.184/4/2019 121

1 CORE CUT CAT# 75018, CC7574DD-3-42 WALK BEHIND SAW70336170800 $39,901.85 $39,901.85AIR & TOOL ENGINEERING COMPANY4/11/2019 121

NEWARK BASIN MASTER PLAN/PACP UPDATE160819170797 $36,929.86 $36,929.86WOODARD & CURRAN INC4/4/2019 143

4528 GALS HYDROGEN PEROXIDE903929550170819 $22,312.96 $22,312.96EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOGIES4/11/2019 110

SERV TO 03/26/19 NEWARK PS761520190327170774 $18,214.58 $18,214.58PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC4/4/2019 170

SERV: FEB 2019 PLANT1415927170816 $15,409.44 $15,409.44DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES4/11/2019 113

4948.6 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE930145170786 $3,551.39 $14,100.20UNIVAR USA INC4/4/2019 110

4950.4 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE930423 $3,552.684/4/2019 110

4950.4 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE930957 $3,552.684/4/2019 110

4798.2 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE929954 $3,443.454/4/2019 110

Page 1 of 1495 of 112



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

03/30/2019-04/12/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

STANDBY POWER SYSTEM UPGRADE20190401170731 $13,949.00 $13,949.00BAY AREA AIR QUALITY MGMT DIST4/4/2019 143

OLD NEWARK PLANT FENCE INSTALLATION&REPAIR PROJECT78188170729 $11,849.21 $11,849.21BAILEY FENCE CO INC4/4/2019 143

42,820 LBS FERROUS CHLORIDE34922170738 $5,455.40 $10,804.23CALIFORNIA WATER TECHNOLOGIES4/4/2019 110

44,200 LBS FERROUS CHLORIDE34950 $5,348.834/4/2019 110

MARCH 2019 DENTAL3340037A170747 $1,310.77 $10,761.17DELTA DENTAL SERVICE4/4/2019

MARCH 2019 DENTAL3340037C $9,450.404/4/2019

4998.4 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE931492170846 $3,446.33 $10,441.88UNIVAR USA INC4/11/2019 110

4799.3 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE931973 $3,444.244/11/2019 110

4948.5 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE931739 $3,551.314/11/2019 110

USA ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP1799702019170787 $9,846.76 $9,846.76USA NORTH 8114/4/2019 121

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS117685170778 $9,002.94 $9,002.94R-2 ENGINEERING INC4/4/2019 134

LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCE - APRIL 201937432220190401170766 $8,505.48 $8,505.48LINCOLN NATIONAL LIFE INS COMP4/4/2019

ALVARADO INFLUENT PS PUMPS AND VFDS21966170810 $8,000.00 $8,000.00BEECHER ENGINEERING4/11/2019 143

WATERCHAMP REPAIRS23662170744 $7,863.49 $7,863.49CONTROLWORX LLC4/4/2019 170

PLANT FIRE EXTINGUSHER ANNUAL MAINT.55761170798 $7,533.09 $7,533.09ABC FIRE PROTECTION INC4/11/2019 170

HAZMAT CONSULTING SERVICES2000188345170799 $7,490.15 $7,490.15AECOM TECHNICAL SERVICES INC4/11/2019 171

REFUND # 218669957170776 $6,027.51 $6,027.51QUALITY FIRST REMODELING INC4/4/2019

41,620 LBS CLARIFLOC WE-5391331464170775 $5,673.20 $5,673.20POLYDYNE INC4/4/2019 110

SALES & USE TAX 03/01/2019 - 03/31/201920190331170814 $5,611.45 $5,611.45STATE OF CALIFORNIA4/11/2019

Page 2 of 1496 of 112



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

03/30/2019-04/12/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

SERV TO: 03/29/19-MTR HYD 151411934107393020190401170723 $619.50 $5,441.89ALAMEDA COUNTY WATER DISTRICT4/4/2019

SERV TO: 03/29/19-MTR HYD 16435274107393220190401 $538.054/4/2019

SERV TO: 03/29/19-MTR HYD 150011014107361120190401 $564.074/4/2019

SERV TO: 03/29/19-MTR HYD 159523314107393420190401 $766.914/4/2019

SERV TO: 03/29/19-MTR HYD 328960614108253920190401 $1,139.764/4/2019

SERV TO: 03/29/19-MTR HYD 164352694107393520190401 $542.394/4/2019

SERV TO: 03/29/19-MTR HYD 163200374107361320190401 $516.384/4/2019

SERV TO: 03/29/19-MTR HYD 164352704107393120190401 $754.834/4/2019

REFUND # 218679260.1170765 $5,375.65 $5,375.65SHAOZHEN LIANG4/4/2019

REFUND # 218599248170743 $4,934.40 $4,934.40CHOU PROPERTY MANAGEMENT4/4/2019

WIRELESS SERV 01/21/2019 - 03/20/20199826596247170789 $4,862.11 $4,862.11VERIZON WIRELESS4/4/2019

38,980 LBS FERROUS CHLORIDE34976170813 $4,819.67 $4,819.67CALIFORNIA WATER TECHNOLOGIES4/11/2019 110

COATINGS INSPECTION - DIG 3 REHAB PROJECT6670170808 $4,517.75 $4,517.75BAY AREA COATING CONSULTANT4/11/2019 143

1 STATOR C320HQ117686170839 $4,297.77 $4,297.77R-2 ENGINEERING INC4/11/2019 134

INVENTORY AUTO REORDER - 2/27/2019505980170762 $4,064.91 $4,064.91KAMAN INDUSTRIAL TECHNOLOGIES4/4/2019

IPACS DENTAL INSPECTION CHANGE REQUEST20190111170751 $3,960.00 $3,960.00ENFO TECH & CONSULTING INC4/4/2019 173

BOARDROOM PROJECTORRNR3953170815 $3,715.63 $3,950.63CDW GOVERNMENT LLC4/11/2019

BOARDROOM PROJECTORRPL3899 $235.004/11/2019

Page 3 of 1497 of 112



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

03/30/2019-04/12/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

SERV 02/20/19 - 03/19/1912793527170807 $20.72 $3,817.81AT&T4/11/2019

SERV 02/20/19 - 03/19/1912793551 $214.144/11/2019

SERV 02/20/19 - 03/19/1912793529 $3,582.954/11/2019

REFUND # 2186810036170724 $3,300.00 $3,300.00AMERICAN EAGLE PLUMBING & CON4/4/2019

APRIL 2019 VISION STMT20190401170790 $3,174.05 $3,174.05VISION SERVICE PLAN - CA4/4/2019

LEASE 6 CANON COLOR COPIERS19883031170739 $3,154.15 $3,154.15CANON SOLUTIONS AMERICA INC4/4/2019

SEWER SERVICE CHARGE DATA SERV APR - JUN 2019219000359170831 $3,149.55 $3,149.55NBS4/11/2019 141

SERV: 02/13/2019 - 3/12/201912762265170727 $65.87 $2,953.04AT&T4/4/2019

SERV:  2/10/19 - 03/19/1912732197 $1,998.974/4/2019

SERV: 02/13/2019 - 3/12/201912762264 $42.824/4/2019

SERV: 02/13/2019 - 3/12/201912762262 $758.034/4/2019

SERV: 02/13/2019 - 3/12/201912762266 $87.354/4/2019

2 DOT PHYSICALS116529931170756 $126.00 $2,634.00FREMONT URGENT CARE CENTER4/4/2019 132

12 DOT PHYSICALS116529768 $756.004/4/2019 132

1 NEW HIRE PHYSICALS116530065 $298.004/4/2019 132

2 NEW HIRE PHYSICALS/ 1 DOT PHYSICALS116530509 $609.004/4/2019 132

3 DOT PHYSICALS1165830202 $189.004/4/2019 132

1 NEW HIRE PHYSICALS/ 6 DOT PHYSICALS116529629 $656.004/4/2019 132

Page 4 of 1498 of 112



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

03/30/2019-04/12/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

LAB SUPPLIES8085615268170849 $288.09 $2,577.27VWR INTERNATIONAL LLC4/11/2019 134

LAB SUPPLIES8085620922 $670.354/11/2019 134

LAB SUPPLIES8085661262 $115.534/11/2019 134

LAB SUPPLIES8085627743 $936.224/11/2019 134

LAB SUPPLIES8085511454 $567.084/11/2019 113

JANITORIAL & BREAK ROOM SUPPLIES - CREDIT721407259811170783 $-31.94 $2,415.86STAPLES CONTRACT & COMMERCIAL4/4/2019

JANITORIAL & BREAK ROOM SUPPLIES - CREDIT721449494611 $-60.354/4/2019

JANITORIAL & BREAK ROOM SUPPLIES721522958001 $310.544/4/2019 134

JANITORIAL & BREAK ROOM SUPPLIES721407259802 $184.344/4/2019 134

JANITORIAL & BREAK ROOM SUPPLIES721449494601 $393.824/4/2019 134

JANITORIAL & BREAK ROOM SUPPLIES721558604001 $82.464/4/2019 134

JANITORIAL & BREAK ROOM SUPPLIES721490802401 $311.364/4/2019 134

JANITORIAL & BREAK ROOM SUPPLIES721464421701 $138.254/4/2019 134

JANITORIAL & BREAK ROOM SUPPLIES721407259801 $1,087.384/4/2019 134

CENTRIFUGE DISCHARGE CHUTES BY PROCO29236170804 $2,367.71 $2,367.71ALLIED FLUID PRODUCTS CORP4/11/2019 170

Page 5 of 1499 of 112



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

03/30/2019-04/12/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

2 BATTERIES9104556569170822 $159.02 $2,360.72GRAINGER INC4/11/2019 170

30 BOXES DISPOSABLE GLOVES9106969554 $392.794/11/2019

8 PACKS HAND CLEANING TOWELS9104849337 $57.954/11/2019

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9104967386 $1,300.134/11/2019 134

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9104849329 $342.394/11/2019

2 BALL VALVES9105275987 $108.444/11/2019

ALVARADO PUMP 4 VFD TROUBLESHOOTING1067170845 $2,335.00 $2,335.00TRUE BLUE AUTOMATION SERVICES4/11/2019 170

AVR FOR COGEN3976914170795 $2,243.10 $2,243.10WESTERN ENERGY SYSTEMS4/4/2019 171

1 PACKER WITH FLOW THRU68484170720 $2,232.01 $2,232.013T EQUIPMENT COMPANY INC4/4/2019 123

2564 LBS SODIUM HYDROXIDE927023170734 $733.12 $2,192.68BRENNTAG PACIFIC INC4/4/2019 121

5128 LBS SODIUM HYDROXIDE927024 $1,459.564/4/2019 121

TEMP LABOR-THACH, P. WK END 03/03/20199028340170764 $1,036.20 $2,072.40KELLY SERVICES INC4/4/2019 113

TEMP LABOR-THACH, P. WK END 03/10/201910026811 $1,036.204/4/2019 113

EXP REIMB:LODGING/AIRFARE/PER DIEM/PARKING CGA CONF, TAMPA FL20190408170833 $2,036.12 $2,036.12SHAWN NESGIS4/11/2019 120

TPS PUMP DRIVE MODIFICATIONS6419170763 $1,925.00 $1,925.00KBL ASSOCIATES4/4/2019 143

OZII CAMERA REPAIR42912170792 $1,862.35 $1,862.35WECO INDUSTRIES LLC4/4/2019 121

BULK OIL44109170788 $1,837.60 $1,837.60VALLEY OIL COMPANY4/4/2019 134

Page 6 of 14100 of 112



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

03/30/2019-04/12/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

PAINT & RELATED PAINT SUPPLIES70007260170740 $-753.13 $1,792.29CARBOLINE COMPANY4/4/2019

PAINT & RELATED PAINT SUPPLIES21629608 $753.134/4/2019 172

PAINT & RELATED PAINT SUPPLIES21629609 $618.694/4/2019 172

PAINT & RELATED PAINT SUPPLIES70007261 $-618.694/4/2019

PAINT & RELATED PAINT SUPPLIES21642902 $946.964/4/2019 170

PAINT & RELATED PAINT SUPPLIES21642510 $845.334/4/2019 170

SERVICE & REPAIRS BUILDING 66 ROLL UP DOOR38172170777 $1,752.00 $1,752.00R & S ERECTION OF S ALAMEDA4/4/2019 170

19 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS1156191170817 $425.00 $1,725.00ENTHALPY ANALYTICAL LLC4/11/2019 113

64 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS1156830 $640.004/11/2019 113

40 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS1156802 $660.004/11/2019 113

1 PMG KIT907453170848 $1,634.01 $1,634.01VINCENT ELECTRIC MOTOR CO4/11/2019 170

GRIT HAULING 03/08 & 3/11/201919031308170780 $1,629.28 $1,629.28S&S TRUCKING4/4/2019 110

SAFETY GLASSES - SHENK, R262395170838 $216.20 $1,613.77PRESTIGE LENS LAB4/11/2019 121

SAFETY GLASSES - PORTEOUS, T262501 $216.204/11/2019 121

SAFETY GLASSES - CULBERTSON, R262354 $216.204/11/2019 121

SAFETY GLASSES - GHOSSAIN, S262492 $273.274/11/2019 140

SAFETY GLASSES - POWELL, J262498 $216.204/11/2019 121

SAFETY GLASSES - HOVEY, M262499 $259.504/11/2019 172

SAFETY GLASSES - COUTO, F262566 $216.204/11/2019 123

Page 7 of 14101 of 112



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

03/30/2019-04/12/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

1 EASY-CARRY WATER-REMOVAL PUMP90783828170767 $165.22 $1,598.37MCMASTER SUPPLY INC4/4/2019

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS90275857 $28.124/4/2019 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS90653313 $911.404/4/2019

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS90925461 $112.844/4/2019 122

10 PACKS LOCK-OUT TAGS90527877 $116.024/4/2019 121

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS90245145 $142.974/4/2019 170

1 CAM & GROOVE HOSE COUPLING90383501 $46.214/4/2019 170

1 WEATHER-RESISTANT ENCLOSURE90542894 $75.594/4/2019 111

MONTHLY AUTO PARTS STMT - MARCH 201920190326170771 $1,391.11 $1,391.11NAPA AUTO PARTS4/4/2019 122

ER STUDIO RENEWAL107943170750 $1,355.00 $1,355.00EMBARCADERO TECHNOLOGIES, INC.4/4/2019 173

GOVERNMENTJOBS ANNUAL SUBSCRIPTION27891170832 $1,338.75 $1,338.75NEOGOV4/11/2019 173

ASTD PVC FITTINGS3N2631170759 $531.72 $1,140.90HARRINGTON INDUSTRIAL PLASTICS4/4/2019 170

20 COUPLINGS3N2633 $76.484/4/2019 170

ASTD PVC FITTINGS3N2632 $437.054/4/2019 170

ASTD PVC FITTINGS3N2731 $95.654/4/2019

2564 LBS SODIUM HYDROXIDE929041170812 $729.78 $1,096.33BRENNTAG PACIFIC INC4/11/2019 121

1282 LBS SODIUM HYDROXIDE929042 $366.554/11/2019 121

Page 8 of 14102 of 112



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

03/30/2019-04/12/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

3 FAUCETS91053724170829 $59.62 $1,077.32MCMASTER SUPPLY INC4/11/2019 170

1 SDS PLUS HAMMER DRILL BIT91175093 $54.014/11/2019 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS91219338 $655.674/11/2019

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS91069188 $88.424/11/2019 170

2 EA VALVES & PRESSURE GAUGE91388187 $219.604/11/2019 170

TEMP LABOR-THACH, P. WK END 03/17/201911036144170825 $1,036.20 $1,036.20KELLY SERVICES INC4/11/2019 113

EXP REIMB:  LODGING/LYFT/PER DIEM FOR NASTT NO-DIG SHOW20190329170761 $1,015.82 $1,015.82JOHN HWANG4/4/2019 141

MARCH PEST CONTROL664879170806 $1,005.00 $1,005.00A-PRO PEST CONTROL INC4/11/2019 170

REFUND # 218728261170835 $500.00 $1,000.00PARS POWER INC4/11/2019

REFUND # 218739372 $500.004/11/2019

SERV 02/11/19 - 3/10/196828937409170728 $882.85 $882.85AT&T4/4/2019

2 V BELTS24056208170769 $9.70 $841.00MOTION INDUSTRIES INC4/4/2019 170

2 OIL SEALS24056219 $15.494/4/2019 170

ASTD NUTS & BOLTS24056037 $815.814/4/2019 170

LAB SUPPLIES8085603022170791 $827.37 $827.37VWR INTERNATIONAL LLC4/4/2019 113

Page 9 of 14103 of 112



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

03/30/2019-04/12/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9099419344170758 $109.89 $692.10GRAINGER INC4/4/2019 172

1 EA BRASS ROD9101863349 $28.754/4/2019 122

4 EA VIBRATION ISOLATORS9099229974 $7.474/4/2019 122

24 EA PLEATED FILTERS9098043046 $334.784/4/2019 111

1 CRIMPED WIRE WHEEL9099231608 $15.204/4/2019 122

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9099154206 $74.924/4/2019 111

4 EA WIRE MARKER BOOKS9098293252 $91.964/4/2019 170

3 DOOR WEDGENO SLIPS9099154198 $29.134/4/2019 122

AWS CLOUD STORAGE - FEBRUARY 2019425197170748 $688.99 $688.99DLT SOLUTIONS, LLC4/4/2019 173

ASTD DUST MOPS, WET MOPS & TERRY TOWEL1102151336170805 $47.58 $664.27AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC4/11/2019 122

UNIFORM LAUNDERING & RUGS1102151316 $244.244/11/2019

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE1102151317 $372.454/11/2019

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS371712170840 $634.05 $634.05RKI INSTRUMENTS INC4/11/2019 170

UNIFORM LAUNDERING & RUGS1102147960170725 $255.49 $623.44AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC4/4/2019

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE1102147961 $367.954/4/2019

FM RELOCATION NEAR HICKORY STREET2037673170794 $596.00 $596.00WEST YOST ASSOCIATES4/4/2019 141

Page 10 of 14104 of 112



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

03/30/2019-04/12/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

ASTD PAINTING SUPPLIES62600000160025170826 $334.32 $583.86KELLY-MOORE PAINT COMPANY4/11/2019 170

ASTD PAINTING SUPPLIES62600000159477 $135.984/11/2019 170

ASTD PAINTING SUPPLIES62600000158777 $60.784/11/2019 170

ASTD PAINTING SUPPLIES62600000160030 $52.784/11/2019 170

FEB 2019 SERVICE FEES2522181466170730 $561.82 $561.82BANK OF NEW YORK4/4/2019 136

2 1.25" 90 DEGREE REEL SWIVEL238625170753 $543.62 $543.62ENVIRONMENTAL PRODUCTS & ACCES4/4/2019 134

SERVICE CALL: BLDG 68 NEW THERMOSTAT190302429170802 $521.62 $521.62AIRTECH MECHANICAL INC4/11/2019 170

REFUND # 2186010121170721 $500.00 $500.00ABOVE ALL PLUMBING, INC.4/4/2019

REFUND # 2186110094170749 $500.00 $500.00ELITE ROOTER INC4/4/2019

REFUND # 2187110119170754 $500.00 $500.00FIX-IT PLUMBING INC4/4/2019

REFUND # 218959936170803 $500.00 $500.00AJ BONO PLUMBING4/11/2019

INSTALL 4G ANTENNA FOR MANHOLE MONITOR20456170837 $500.00 $500.00PONTON INDUSTRIES INC4/11/2019 173

REFUND # 2189610070170842 $500.00 $500.00STREAMLINE PLUMBING & DRAIN4/11/2019

REFUND # 2187510061170844 $500.00 $500.00TRENCHFREE INC4/11/2019

REFUND # 2189410140170847 $500.00 $500.00USA ROOTER & PLUMBING4/11/2019

TRAVEL EXP - CWEA CONF PER DIEM20190221170745 $315.00 $315.00MANUEL DEL TORO4/4/2019 123

AIR FLOW TESTING - HEADWORKS BLDG VENTILATION SYSTEM190202421170722 $291.00 $291.00AIRTECH MECHANICAL INC4/4/2019 143

ASTD JANITORIAL SUPPLIES603368895170823 $284.79 $284.79HILLYARD/SAN FRANCISCO4/11/2019

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS7015738079170726 $274.55 $274.55APPLIED INDUSTRIAL TECHNOLOGIE4/4/2019 170

Page 11 of 14105 of 112



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

03/30/2019-04/12/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

TRAVEL REIMB: GRADE 4 PREP COURSE MILEAGE/PER DIEM20190402170820 $271.96 $271.96MOHAMMAD FARSAI4/11/2019 111

2 BLADES30239170773 $261.52 $261.52NIXON-EGLI EQUIP OF S CAL4/4/2019 134

SERVICE 02/21/2019 - 03/20/201985340220190321170781 $257.30 $257.30SAN FRANCISCO WATER DEPT4/4/2019 170

TRAVEL PER DIEM: CWEA ANNUAL CONFERENCE20190313170735 $252.00 $252.00STEVE BULLIS4/4/2019 123

TRAVEL PER DIEM - CWEA CONFERENCE20190313170736 $252.00 $252.00STUART BULLIS4/4/2019 121

E911 CLOUD SERVICE6025706170793 $250.00 $250.00WEST SAFETY SERVICES INC4/4/2019 173

10 PKS INDEX LTR JAN-DEC13326620170733 $47.08 $238.50BLAISDELL'S4/4/2019 113

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES13339860 $107.044/4/2019 141

1 PK COMP NOTEBOOKS13331090 $10.754/4/2019 130

1 PK ADD/CALC PAPER13325150 $8.364/4/2019 130

8 PKS LABELS13314850 $65.274/4/2019 130

TRAFFIC FLAGGER TRAINING - LOTHIAN10703170785 $195.00 $195.00TURNER SAFETY4/4/2019 144

6 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS1155985170752 $185.00 $185.00ENTHALPY ANALYTICAL LLC4/4/2019 113

120 7-LB BAGS OF ICE484979223170757 $176.40 $176.40GLACIER ICE COMPANY INC4/4/2019 144

TUITION REIMBURSEMENT FALL SEMESTER 201820190402170732 $170.55 $170.55RICA BERCASIO4/4/2019 172

EXP REIMB: CONTRACT SIGNING RECOGNITION20190401170782 $162.60 $162.60JAMES SCHOFIELD4/4/2019 120

SAFETY SHOES: M. FARSAI22245400170809 $157.86 $157.86BECK'S SHOES4/11/2019 111

CSDS DIAGNOSTIC2161542170737 $75.00 $150.00CALIFORNIA SURVEYING DRAFTING4/4/2019 143

CSDS DIAGNOSTIC2161552 $75.004/4/2019 143

Page 12 of 14106 of 112



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

03/30/2019-04/12/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS5838646170760 $144.37 $144.37HOSE & FITTINGS ETC4/4/2019 122

EXP REIMB:  LCW SEMINAR REGIS FEE/MILEAGE & QAI SNACKS20190408170827 $135.54 $135.54KATHLEEN KING4/11/2019 132

EXP REIMB:  MILEAGE/PARKING/BRIDGE TOLL GFOA ACCT ACADEMY TRNG20190405170830 $126.04 $126.04LILIANA MORENO4/11/2019 136

APRIL 2019 PAGER SERVICE20190331170841 $123.94 $123.94SPOK INC4/11/2019 141

IRIDIUM SVC FEE APRIL 201999713170779 $112.00 $112.00REMOTE SATELLITE SYSTEMS INT'L4/4/2019

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES13347840170811 $56.31 $107.31BLAISDELL'S4/11/2019 120

1 2-HOLE PUNCH13347290 $29.624/11/2019 130

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES13343650 $21.384/11/2019 130

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS3911170821 $96.27 $96.27FERGUSON ENTERPRISES, INC.4/11/2019 170

EXP REIMB: DMV FEE - CLASS B PERMIT20190402170746 $78.00 $78.00MICHAEL DELA ROSA4/4/2019 122

10 T-CONE TEST PLUGS2392026001170796 $76.68 $76.68WHCI PLUMBING SUPPLY CO4/4/2019 141

1 ARSENIC STANDARD 1000 MG/L1000547319170818 $66.27 $66.27ENVIRONMENTAL EXPRESS4/11/2019 113

SERV TO 03/24/19 CS TRAINING TRAILER224720190329170834 $58.73 $58.73PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC4/11/2019 110

ASTD METAL, STEEL, STAINLESS & ALUMINUM202408170772 $37.57 $37.57NAYLOR STEEL INC4/4/2019 122

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9086727096170801 $33.01 $33.01AIRGAS NCN4/11/2019 121

1 SELF INKING ADDRESS STAMP163038170755 $31.44 $31.44FREMONT RUBBER STAMP CO INC4/4/2019 141

MONTHLY HARDWARE STMT - MAR 2019768520190328170824 $25.68 $25.68HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES4/11/2019 170

EXP REIMB: LIVESCAN FEE20190409170828 $25.00 $25.00ANTHONY MARTINEZ4/11/2019 132

Page 13 of 14107 of 112



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

03/30/2019-04/12/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

 14

 60

 1

 149

Credit Memos :

$0 - $1,000 :

$1,000 - $10,000 :

$10,000 - $100,000 :

Over $100,000 :

Total:

Invoices:

 4

 228 

 232,074.98

 589,733.11

 218,589.58

 44,652.48

-1,464.11

Checks:

$10,000 - $100,000 :

Total:

Over $100,000 :

$1,000 - $10,000 :

$0 - $1,000 :

 1,083,586.04

 19,084.87

 194,620.42

 532,457.02

 337,423.73

 1,083,586.04

 56

 56

 16

 2

 130

Page 14 of 14108 of 112



109 of 112



 

Walnut Creek 

Sewer	Rate	Increases	On	Tap	In	
Contra	Costa	County		
Central Contra Costa Sanitary District; City of Concord considering 
hikes in service fees  
By Bob Porterfield, Patch Staff | Apr 10, 2019 1:07 pm ET | Updated Apr 10, 2019 1:49 pm ET  
 
CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, CA — Come July 1 thousands of homeowners will begin paying more to rinse, 
shower and flush if new rates being proposed by the Central Contra Costa Sanitary District are approved 
following a public hearing this month. 

If implemented, single‐family homeowners will see an increase of 21.7% in what they pay for wastewater and 
sewer service over the next four years. Apartments, condominiums, duplexes, second living units and mobile 
homes will see increases totaling 19%. For commercial and other non‐residential customers rates will vary 
depending upon the volume of effluent they produce. 

Central San says the increases are necessary to pay for extensive repair and maintenance work on both its 
regional treatment plant in Martinez and its aging system of underground pipes that collect and carry 
wastewater and sewage to its treatment facilities. 

According to the District, all additional revenue generated from increased rates for the first three years 
will be spent on major infrastructure projects that include renovation, replacement and expansion of 
sewage handling facilities, pump stations and filtering facilities for producing recycled water. During the 
fourth year, 98% of revenue will be used for infrastructure improvements. 

 
 
This year the District plans to rehabilitate or replace nearly six‐and‐one‐half miles of sewer pipes in 
Lafayette, Moraga, Orinda, Walnut Creek and Danville neighborhoods. Overall, by 2022 Central San 

110 of 112



expects to have completed rehabilitation and replacement of some 28 miles of neighborhood sewer 
pipes. 
 
Central San's underground sewage collection system is a patchwork of pipes cobbled together over the past 
century, with much of it more than 50 years old and in some areas up to 100 years old. 

"Most of the pipes are made of vitrified clay, a material similar to terracotta," Central San spokesman Chris 
Carpenter told Patch. "There are also pipes made of concrete, iron, steel, and more recent installations 
consisting of plastic materials such as PVC and HDPE [a type of flexible plastic pipe]." 

Some of the older clay sewer pipes have been infiltrated by roots that work their way between pipe sections 
and cause cracks or blockages, the District says. Pipes with the greatest potential to fail will be replaced first. 

Complex & Costly System 

From toilet to treatment, Central San's operation is a complex and expensive process requiring pumping 
stations, filtering systems that remove around 276 tons of plastics and other debris from wastewater every 
year, air pollution control systems and incinerators burning about 200 tons of sludge each day, reducing it to 
14 tons of sterile ash that is recycled for use to amend soil for gardens and flower beds. On average Central 
San treats 36 million gallons of wastewater each day and during the past five years has recycled almost a 
billion gallons, enough to fill 20,000 average‐sized backyard swimming pools. Storm water from street runoff 
is managed by the county. 

Central San's furnaces use renewable landfill gas obtained from the ACME landfill in Martinez with some 
energy recovered and reused to produce steam, which in turn is used to power turbines that run the blowers 
providing air to the District's biological sewage treatment process. 

Like many municipal services Central San doesn't generate profits. The District has consistently reported 
annual operating deficits that must be defrayed from other sources. 

Last year Central San collected $92.5 million in residential and commercial service fees, including nearly $15 
million paid by the City of Concord under a contract with the District. These revenues fell $17.2 million short 
of covering actual operating costs and were supplemented with non‐operating income that included property 
tax contributions from the county along with other sources, such as permit and inspection fees. 

According to county officials, of the 1% countywide property tax levied on every parcel of real estate about 
19.6% is distributed to special districts such as Central San. During the 2018 fiscal year, Central San's share 
was $17.7 million, or about 4.3% of the total property taxes earmarked for special districts. 

Lump Sum Payments 

Unlike many municipal utilities that bill customers on a monthly or other periodic basis, Central San 
customers pay sewer service charges in a lump sum collected as part of their annual property taxes. While 
this charge is itemized in the "Special Taxes & Assessments" section of tax bills as CCCSD Sewer Chg, the 
description is confusing because the payment is considered a property‐related service fee and not a tax 
under provisions of Proposition 218, a constitutional amendment approved by voters in 1996. 

Designed to alleviate some of the constraints placed on municipal governments' ability to raise property 
taxes imposed by the state's landmark Proposition 13 requiring a two‐thirds vote before any local tax could 
be imposed. Although the debate over the definition of "fee" and a "tax" continues, Proposition 218 exempts 
certain charges if the revenues are generated from "a property‐related fee" and used solely to pay for sewers 
and other services such as streets, flood control and mosquito control. 

How many homeowners actually pay attention to sewer fees and other special charges appearing on annual 
property tax bills is unknown because thousands of tax payments are made from escrow accounts controlled 
by mortgage lenders and informational copies sent to each borrower are often overlooked or not examined 
closely. 

111 of 112



Last year Contra Costa County issued 371,195 property tax bills. According to county tax officials, about 
119,456 first‐half tax payments and approximately 116,307 second‐ half tax payments were made from 
escrow accounts. 

Concord, Clayton an Exception 

Residents of Concord and Clayton do not pay sewer fees to Central San. Instead those charges are remitted 
directly to the City of Concord which pays a portion to Central San for the treatment of wastewater. Each city 
has its own collection system transporting sewage to a central collection point where volume is measured 
before it flows to Central San facilities for treatment and both systems are maintained by the City of Concord. 

Justin Ezell, Concord's Director of Public Works told Patch the city calculates the cost of operating and 
maintaining the two sewage systems, and the cost of sewage treatment by Central San, and sets its own rates 
based upon those calculations. For residents of the neighboring cities sewer service charges appear on 
property tax bills as Concord Res Sewer and Clayton Res Sewer. 

Next month the Concord city council will consider its own proposed rate increases that will boost residential 
sewer charges by 30.4% over a four‐year period beginning July 1. Rates for non‐residential customers will 
vary by volume of wastewater collected. 

 

City officials say that 75% of the service charges it collects are passed along to Central San for sewage 
treatment and other services it provides under contract with the city. What remains is used to pay the costs 
of operating the collection system in Concord and Clayton, routine maintenance, necessary repairs or 
replacement of infrastructure and reserves for emergencies. 

Last year, Concord's sewer system, operated by Concord Sanitary Sewer Services, Inc., a city enterprise 
activity managed by the Department of Public Works, reported revenues of $33.1 million and expenses of 
$31 million. 

Yet, before sewer rates can be raised by either Central San or Concord they are required to notify every 
property owner within their service areas of the proposed increases and hold public hearings. If a majority of 
the property owners submit written protests, fees cannot be increased. 

Central San has scheduled a public hearing on its rate increases for 1:30 p.m. April 18th at its Martinez 
headquarters. Concord city council members will conduct a public hearing May 7th at 6:30 p.m. in the council 
chambers. 

 

112 of 112


	1 04222019_Agenda
	1. Call to Order.
	2. Salute to the Flag.
	3. Roll Call.
	7. Oral Communications.
	Motion 8. Authorize Staff to Approve CSRMA Invoice for Settlement and Expenses Associated with Fernando Trujillo and Maria Del Carmen Bibiano v. USD, Case No. 1781769683 (to be reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee).
	Motion 9. Reject All Bids Received for the Newark Pump Station Cathodic Protection System Upgrade Project and Authorize Staff to Re-bid the Project (to be reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee).
	Motion 10. Review and Consider Approval of Policy No. 3210, Boardmember Use of E-mail for District Business (to be reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee).
	Direction 11. Receive Information and Provide Direction Regarding Union Sanitary District Ad-Hoc Recommendations for East Bay Dischargers Authority JPA Negotiations.
	Direction 12. Receive Information and Provide Direction Regarding Policy No. 2040, Exceptions to Ordinance Fees (to be reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee).
	Information 13. Union Sanitary District to Purchase Natural Gas from the California Department of General Services (DGS) (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee).
	Information 14. Legislative Update on Regional Issues of Interest to the Board (to be reviewed by the Legislative Committee).
	Information 15. Cal-Card Quarterly Activity Report (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee).
	Information 16. Boardmember Expenses, Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2019 (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee).
	Information 17. National Association of Clean Water Agencies (NACWA) 2019 Winter Conference.
	Information 18. Check Register.
	a. Comments and questions. Directors can share information relating to District business and are welcome to request information from staff.
	b. Scheduling matters for future consideration.
	22. Adjournment – The Board will adjourn to a Combined Board Workshop in the Boardroom on Tuesday, April 23, 2019, at 6:00 p.m.
	23. Adjournment – The Board will then adjourn to the Plant Master Plan #3 Board Workshop in the Boardroom on Wednesday, May 8, 2019, at 5:30 p.m.
	24. Adjournment – The Board will then adjourn to the next Regular Meeting in the Boardroom on Monday, May 13, 2019, at 7:00 p.m.

	2 04222019 BOD Mtg Cmte Ags - REVISED
	04172019 Budget and Finance Cmte Ag
	04192019 Legal Community Affairs Cmte Ag
	04192019 Legislative Cmte Ag

	4 04082019 Minutes
	5.1 March 2019 Monthly Ops Summary
	5.2 CS March 2019 Odor Report
	5.3 Odor Report Map March 2019
	5.4 BS Monthly Ops
	1. Hours Worked
	Charts032019
	Report032019

	2. Budget & Finance
	Dist Summary

	3. Revenues & Expenses
	Charts

	4. Business Services Group Activities Report
	5. Portfolio Holdings Charts
	6. Portfolio Holdings Report
	7. Portfolio Activity Report

	5.5 TS03-2019_MOR.Mar
	Construction Projects
	Sludge Degritter System Project – Kevin
	Design/Study Projects
	Cathodic Protection System Project – Thomas
	Newark Basin Masterplan – Andrew
	Standby Power Generation System Upgrade Project – Raymond/Kevin
	Force Main Condition Assessment – Andrew
	Emergency Outfall Improvements Project – Andrew 
	Primary Digester No. 7 Project – Curtis
	Plant Master Plan – Raymond/Curtis
	Effluent Management Study – Curtis
	Secondary Treatment Process Improvements – Curtis
	Odor Control Alternatives Study – Kevin
	Headworks Screens Replacement Project – Thomas
	Alvarado Influent Pump Station Improvements Project – Thomas
	Force Main Corrosion Repairs Project Phase 3 – Andrew
	Control Box No. 1 Improvements Project – Kevin
	WAS Thickener Replacement Project – Curtis
	Newark Equalization Storage Facilities Project – Somporn
	Centrifuge Building Improvements Project – Somporn
	Primary Digester No. 2 Rehabilitation Project – Derek

	5.6 CS March 2019 Ops Rpt
	CS March 2019 Ops Rpt

	5.7 March_MonthlyOps
	5.8_TD_Ops_Mar_2019
	Report Pages

	8 Staff Report - Trujillo Settlement
	9.NPSCathodicRejectBid
	01 Board Newark PS Cathodic Protection_Reject Bid_Final
	02 Figure 1
	Blank Page

	03 Table 1_Bid_Tabulation
	Bid Summaries


	10.1 SR for Policy 3210
	10.2 3210 Boardmember Use of E-mail for District Business - Redline
	10.3 3210 Boardmember Use of E-mail for District Business - Clean
	11.1 Staff Report - EBDA Draft Term Sheet
	11.2 DRAFT JPA Term Sheet_3-8-19
	12.1 Staff Report - Rescind Policy on Fee Exceptions
	12.2 2040 Exceptions to Ordinance Fees
	Policy
	Purpose
	Procedure
	Management Responsibility
	This revision supersedes the versions listed below, which are no longer effective.

	13.Purchase_Natural_Gas_DGS
	14 Regional Leg Report
	15 FY 2019 Q3 Cal-Card Quarterly Merchant Activity Report
	16 Board Expenses, 3rd Qtr, FY19
	17.NACWA_Conference_Summary
	18 Bd Ck Reg Rpt04112019
	04222019 BOD Mtg Articles
	03292019 Proof of Pub for Intematix Significant Violator
	04102019 Sewer Rate Increases in Contra Costa County




